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A. CORPORATE POLICY

. Vision, Mission and Core Values

Vision:

As a partner in nation-building, to be recognized as among the leading rural banks of
value to customers, shareholders and employees, continuously striving to create more
valued products, achieve greater results and make a positive contribution to the life of every
individual.

Mission:

e To encourage the people to practice the habit of savings and thrift and the judicious
use of credit in the communities that it serves;

e To help eradicate usurious practices in the communities it serves;

e To provide quality service to the people of the communities it serves whether they
are depositors or borrowers so that they can improve their economic standing;

e To enhance the knowledge, skills and community relations of the employees, so they
can become good citizens and uplift their economic well-being;

e To encourage the people to be proactive in banking activities so as to spur economic
activity in the community, as partners in nation-building.

Core Values:

Respect
Excellence
Responsibility
Teamwork
Concern for People
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I[I. About us

BRIEF HISTORY
OF PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC.
Formerly Pangasinan Savings and Loan Bank

In the early part of 1976, a closely-knit circle of friends from San Fabian, Pangasinan
informally gathered together and decided to organize the second thrift bank in Pangasinan.
The group was composed of Dr. Gregorio T. de Guzman, Jr., a private medical practitioner,
Atty. Conrado P. Gubatan, at that time Mayor or San Fabian, Mr. Daniel P. Calimlim, an
insurance underwriter also engaged in the poultry business, and Mr. Mauro S. Abalos, an
accountant and businessman. They invited Msgr. Oscar A. Aquino, who was then parish
priest of San Fabian and a native of Mangaldan to join them. With the support of some
relatives, namely, Dr. Letecia L. Quinto and Mr. Alfredo B. Quinto, related by affinity to Dr.
Gregorio T. de Guzman, Jr. and Dr. Loreto J. Gubatan, a dentist and brother of Atty.
Conrado P. Gubatan, the group managed to deposit Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (P
500,000.00) with the Central Bank and this amount was the minimum paid-up capital
required of a thrift bank at that time.

In August of 1976, the first staff of the bank led by Dr. and Mrs. Gregorio T. de
Guzman, Jr. underwent a 15-day training at the Central Bank Training Institute. The basic
training course was especially designed for employees of savings and loan associations,
one of three categories of thrift banks.

With a fully trained staff, the Bank opened on October 3, 1976 on a rented building in
Mangaldan, right at the center of business of the town. The Banks name back then was
PANGASINAN SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION, INC. The blessing was officiated by
the late Msgr. Federico Limon, Archbishop of Lingayen-Dagupan with prospective
depositors, hundreds of them, in attendance. The guest of honor was the late Mr. Manuel
Santos, the Central Bank Director in charge of savings and loan associations.

At the end of 1976, after three months of operation, the Association has exceeded
break even and realized a profit of P 137.00. Since then, the Corporation has been profiting
except for the troublesome years that followed the assassination of Ninoy Aquino.

One year after the bank’s establishment, due to profitable operation, the Central
Bank granted rediscounting privileges and availment of cheap special time deposits (STD)
for supervised and non-supervised credit. These privileges expanded the resources of the
Bank although most of the time, the Bank did not need loans from the Central Bank due to
the rapid increase of deposits from the general public. The Bank has been a pioneer in the
financing of cotton industry which flourished in San Fabian and neighboring towns in the
eighties. It was in fact one of the biggest financiers of cotton planting in the entire country.

After exactly two years of operation, on October 3, 1978, the Bank opened a Savings
Agency, its first branch unit, in San Fabian (which was converted into a full branch in 1990).
Then came a rapid succession of branches which were also approved by the Central Bank
because of profitable operation and efficient management and strict adherence to all rules
and regulations prescribed by the Central Bank. The Malasiqui branch was opened on April
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22, 1979, followed by Binmaley branch on June 17, 1979 and the Alaminos Branch on
March 3, 1980.

From December 31, 1977 to June 30, 1980, the Bank’s stockholders gradually
increased the paid-up capital of the Bank using their hard-earned savings, from P
500,000.00 to P 2 Million to comply with the minimum capital requirement prescribed by the
Central Bank. When the Bank had attained the P 2 Million mark, it earned the right to
change its corporate name to PANGASINAN SAVINGS AND LOAN BANK, INC. and its new
name was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In 1981, the Central Bank required another round of capital build-up with P 5 Million
as the target for savings and loan associations outside of Metro Manila. But due to the
economic crisis that started in 1983, the stockholders were not able to comply immediately
with the increase in capital. To remedy the situation, the stockholders channeled all
available dividends from the undivided profits to stock dividends and the members of the
Board of Directors infused back all their per diem and honoraria.

Despite the economic debacle during the martial law years, Pangasinan Savings and
Loan Bank, Inc. maintained a consistent growth in resources and total deposits. In 1980, it
was adjudged the First runner-up as Best Savings and Loan Association in the country by
the Philippine League of Savings and Loan Associations, with the Central Bank acting as
the judge of the contests.

In 1983, Pangasinan Savings and Loan Bank was accredited as a participating or
originating bank by the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation to grant PAG-IBIG
housing loans, the only accredited bank in Pangasinan. It was given a continuous automatic
revolving line of P 1.5 Million. Since then, Pangasinan Savings and Loan Bank Inc. has
released about 150 housing loans amounting to about P 15 Million. On December 22, 1984,
the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation granted Pangasinan Savings and Loan
Bank, Inc. a P 7.4 Million new credit line, one of the only 38 banks given accreditation.

From P 500,000, the Bank’s resources had reached P 143 Million at the end of 1996.
The original stockholders had managed to increase the Bank’s capital to P 10 Million in
1992. But because the Central Bank in 1992 had required all thrift banks operating outside
Metro Manila to have a P 20 Million capital, the original stockholders invited S & F Realty
Corporation owned by Mr. & Mrs. Romualdo C. Siapno to infuse additional capital.

Finally, the P 20 Million capital requirement was complied with in 1996 only to be
increased by the Central Bank (now the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas) to P 40 Million. The
latest minimum capital requirement for thrift banks is P 52 Million at the end of 2000 and P
64 Million at the end of year 2001.

The present total capital accounts of Pangasinan Savings and Loan Bank, Inc. is P
44 Million, or P 20 Million short of the required capital. Knowing their limited capability, the
present stockholders decided to downgrade the Bank’s category to a rural bank. The group
had also in mind the greater privileges now being enjoyed by rural banks like lower reserve
requirements and easier branching requirements. The Bank will then be able to open
branches in Rosario, La Union where it owns a prime lot and in other towns of Pangasinan,
and will be eligible also to offer current accounts to its clients. The new name of the Bank
as approved by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas last January 2001 and by the Securities and
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Exchange Commission in August 27, 2001 is now PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK),
INC.

In August 2011, the capitalization of the Bank reached P50 million. Since the bank is
over capitalized when it downgraded to rural bank, the bank decided to expand its operation
to the north, and in March 26, 2007 the bank opened its first branch outside of Pangasinan
located at Rosario, La Union.

EARLY YEARS:

1976 - The bank was organized as the second thrift bank in Pangasinan with a minimum
paid up capital of P500, 000.00 as a requirement for a thrift bank that time.

August of 1976 - when the first staff of the bank led by Dr. and Mrs. Gregorio T. de Guzman,
Jr. underwent a 15-day training at the Central Bank Training Institute.

October 3, 1976 - when the bank first opened and was then was named PANGASINAN
SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION, INC.

GROWTH YEARS:

December 31, 1977- the Bank’s stockholders gradually increased the paid-up capital of the
Bank using their hard-earned savings, from P 500,000.00 to P 2 Million to comply with the
minimum capital requirement prescribed by the Central Bank.

October 3, 1978 - the Bank opened a Savings Agency, its first branch unit, in San Fabian.
April 22, 1979 - opening of Malasiqui branch.

June 17, 1979 - when Binmaley branch was opened.

March 3, 1980 - when Alaminos branch was opened.

1980- it was adjudged the First runner-up as Best Savings and Loan Association in the
country by the Philippine League of Savings and Loan Associations, with the Central Bank

acting as the judge of the contests.

1981- the Central Bank required another round of capital build-up with P 5 Million as the
target for savings and loan associations outside of Metro Manila.

1983- as economic crisis was going on, the stockholders were not able to comply
immediately with the increase in capital. To remedy the situation, the stockholders
channeled all available dividends from the undivided profits to stock dividends and the
members of the Board of Directors infused back all their per diem and honoraria.

PSLB was accredited as a participating or originating bank by the National Home Mortgage

Finance Corporation to grant PAG-IBIG housing loans, the only accredited bank in
Pangasinan. It was given a continuous automatic revolving line of P 1.5 Million.
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December 22, 1984 - the NHMFC granted PSLB a P 7.4 Million new credit line, one of the
only 38 banks given accreditation.

1996- the Bank’s resources had reached P 143 Million from its original resources of P500,
000.00.

January 2001- the BSP approved the new name of the bank.

August 27, 2001- the new name of bank is now PANGASINAN BANK, (A RURAL BANK)
INC. approved by BSP and SEC.

2005 — The bank computerized its loan and deposit operations.

March 26, 2007- opening of the first branch outside Pangasinan which is located at Rosario,
La Union.

2008 - Pangasinan Bank released its first radio advertisement.

August 19, 2011- the total capitalization reached P50 million

January 30, 2015 — an agreement was entered into between the bank and Gate Distribution
Enterprise, Inc. regarding the services of ECPAY for the provision of an electronic system

infrastructure which includes electronic loading and payment facility. Additional product of
the bank.

March 17, 2015 marked the first release of Auto Loan Product of the bank. Its loan
concentration rise up to 85% to date.

August 24, 2022 — Amendments of the BSP as to the Minimum Capitalization or Rural
Banks from 50 million to 120 million for Rural Banks with 6 to 10 branches including Head
Office.

March 16, 2023 — Bank’s application with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas regarding the
downgrade of Rosario Branch into Branch Lite Unit.

INTERVENING YEARS:

e Recognition of Bank Employees labor union and several completed cycles of CBA
negotiations/implementation of DWL increases per DOLE mandate.

e Restructuring of Bank Operations Set-Up and Organizational Plantilla:
- COO*/General Manager/*Security Officer
- Sales Manager*
- Remedial Officer/Pollution Officer
- Centralized Loan Processing Unit**
- Credit Risk and Review Unit
- MIS-IT Section

*Position now vacant
**Loan Bookkeeper/Processors reverted back to branches.

Page 9 of 250



@ PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 10

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

[ll. Bank’s Business Model and Brand

Pangasinan Bank (A Rural Bank), Inc. is a six-unit bank with Head office located in the
agricultural town of Mangaldan, a 1% class municipality in the province of Pangasinan. It has
four branches in Pangasinan located in City of Alaminos, Binmaley, Malasiqui, and San
Fabian, and one branch in Rosario, La Union. It offers traditional loan and deposit products.
Revenues are primarily driven by interest income from loans and supplemented by gains
from disposal of ROPA. Funding is sourced mainly from deposits, which account for 80.58
percent of total resources.

These are channeled to loans and due from BSP and other banks comprising 48.17%
and 36.79% respectively of total resources. Lending activities are mostly for motor vehicle
(84.36%), and trading and commercial (7.06%) loans. Other loans are granted to
agricultural (3.03%), agrarian (00.02%), real estate (3.09%) sectors and the rest for salary
and consumption (2.44%) loans.

The bank faces stiff competition from the increasing number of commercial banks in the
area. Further, competition from non-bank financial institutions is also intensifying as the
latter offer similar loan products with minimal documentary requirements. To date, the bank
has gradually shifted to risk-based lending wherein credit decisions are based primarily on
the capacity to pay of the borrowers.
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B. EFINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

PANGASINAN BANK (A Rural Bank), INC.
Mangaldan, Pangasinan

CONSOLIDATED

2023 2022
Minimum Required Data
Profitability
Total Net Interest Income 26,204,051 27,566,246
Total Non-Interest Income 6,292,087 7,670,688
Total Non-Interest Expenses 28,225,753 31,329,806
Pre-Provision Profit 4,270,385 3,484,196
Allowance for Credit Losses 6,780,144 8,289,974
Net Income 3,827,438 3,484,196
Selected Balance Sheet Data
Liquid Assets 150,791,796 173,146,318
Gross Loans 197,435,450 190,013,215
Total Assets 409,862,844 427,465,854
Deposits 330,257,122 342,521,876
Total Equity 74,690,719 72,385,631
Selected Ratios
Return on Equity 5.19% 4.35%
Return on Assets 0.92% 0.76%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 17.75% 16.91%
Others
Cash Dividends Declared 2,750,000 2,750,000
Headcount 45 48
Officers 14 14
Staff 31 34
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C. EINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

PRESIDENT’S ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2023

This year marks the end of the COVID-19 pandemic and luckily we have
passed and survived the crisis and I’'m happy to see everyone alive and healthy.

Now that everything is back to normal, there is stiff competition among
financial institutions in the marketing of loans. During the pandemic other
banks were not too keen on offering their auto loan product especially with
overseas workers and health workers. Our bank took advantage of this situation
by offering our auto loan product to these sectors who are very much in need of
this product. Likewise, there is also stiff competition in the marketing of
deposits. Almost all deposit interest rates went up beginning the second
semester and our bank followed suit increasing our interest on deposits so as to
be competitive and to give our depositors higher yield for their savings.

Last March 2023, the bank formally applied for the conversion of the
Rosario Branch into a branch-lite unit (BLU) which the BSP is yet to approve.
This is in compliance with BSP’s Rural Bank Strengthening Program (RBSP)
wherein the minimum capitalization was increased to P120 Million for our bank
with 6 branches including head office. The RBSP was introduced to enhance
the operation, capacity, and competitiveness of the industry. Our bank chose to
convert one branch into a branch-lite unit in order to retain the present
minimum capitalization of P 50 Million. If approved, all transactions of
Rosario BLU will be recorded in its mother branch, which is the San Fabian
Branch. Other rural banks opted to merge with other rural banks. There is one
rural bank in Pangasinan who availed of this option of merger.

On a sad note, this year, a total of seven problematic rural banks
including one in Pangasinan, were ordered closed by the BSP Monetary Board.
As of December 2022, there were about 3,303 rural bank branches and branch-
lite units across the country.

With regards the bank’s plan for digitalization, the bank is still looking

for a suitable digital banking solution provider that is affordable, reliable and
secure.
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Lastly, I am happy to report that although the total income decreased, the
bank managed to lower its total expenses thereby resulting in net income for the
year. The decrease in total deposits is the main reason for the decline in our
total assets. As always, | enjoin everyone to market for deposits and new loans
and also to seriously take into consideration, increasing our authorized capital
in preparation for future increases in capital requirement in order for the bank to
remain strong and stable.

Finally, the Board has declared a 5% cash dividends to all common
shares and 10% cash dividends to all preferred shares that are on record as of
December 31, 2023 which was released on January 19, 2024. Likewise, the
BOD has approved the distribution of net profits as provided under Article XI
of the Amended By-Laws as follows: 5% equally to the Board of Directors, 5%
to the Executive Officers and 5% as profit sharing to all employees as provided
for in the CBA.

We owe all these blessings to Almighty God and to the support of all our
employees, stockholders, borrowers, depositors, friends and benefactors.

On behalf of the Board of directors, thank you for your presence during

this annual stockholder’s meeting and for your continued trust in our
management.

ANNE Q. DE GUZMAN
President
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (5-YEAR COMPARATIVE)

%o of
Increase
(Decrease) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
FOR THE YEAR ) ) ) ) ) )
(In Millions)
TOTAL INCOME -6.21% 33.999 36.251 37.876 37.363 39.753
TOTAL EXPENSES -7.92% 30.172 32.767 33.598 33.005 41.804
NET INCOME 9.84% 3.827 3.484 4.278 4.358 -2.051
AT YEAR END
(In Thousand Pesos)
RESOURCES -3.00% 409.862 422.565 427.759 423.247 397.042
LOANS 3.91% 197.435 190.013 181.599 156.764 168.517
DEPOSITS -3.58% 330.257 342.522 345.929 338.325 315.974
CAPITAL FUNDS 1.83% 74.164 72.832 73.738 72.599 68.693
LIQUID ASSETS (Cash and
Other -12.91% 150.792 173.146 183.249 202.007 179.815
Cash Items, Due From BSP,
Due
from Other Banks)
RATIOS
EARNINGS PER SHARE 9.76% 7.65 6.97 8.55 8.72 -4.1
PAST DUE RATIO -19.56% 8.76% 10.89% 11.22% 16.77% 24.26%
CAPITAL ADEQUACY 3.49% 17.50% 16.91% 17.06% 18.39% 17.66%
RATIO (CAR)
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Total Income decreased by 6.21% or P 33.999 Million compared to prior
year’s P 36.251Million. Admin Department contributed the highest gross
income of P 8.164 Million coming from sale of acquired assets followed by the
Malasiqui branch with P 7.504 Million coming from their auto loan product.

Total Expenses decreased by 7.92% or P 30.172 Million compared to P 32.767
Million the year before. The decrease was a result of the cost cutting measures
being implemented by the bank.

Net Income increased by 9.84% or P 3.827 Million compared to the preceding
year’s P 3.484 Million. Alaminos, Malasiqui, Mangaldan, San Fabian and
Rosario contributed a combined total of P 7.872 Million in net earnings while
Binmaley and Admin Department contributed a net loss of P 4.045 Million to
account for the 2023 figures.

Total Assets/Resources decreased by 3% or P 409.862 Million compared to
the previous year’s P 422.565 Million. This was due to the decrease in
deposits.

Total Loans significantly increased by 3.91% or P 197.435 Million compared
to the previous year’s P 190.013 Million. The bank released a total of P 77.241
Million in new loans of which P 63.680 Million or 82.44% is the motor vehicle
loans.  The bank cater mostly to borrowers whose guarantors and/or co-
borrowers are OFW’s and US based residents.

Total Deposits decreased by 3.58% or P 330.257 Million compared to last
year’s P 342.522 Million. The decrease is attributable to the low deposit interest
rate of the bank. In July, the Board approved the increase in the bank’s interest
rates to keep up with other banks.

Capital Funds increased by 1.83% or P 74.164 Million compared to prior
years’ P 72.832 Million. The Net Income generated this year of P 3.827
Million is higher than the Net income last year of P 3.484 Million.

Liquid Assets decreased by 12.91% or P 150.792 Million compared to P

173.146 Million the year before. The decrease was the result of the Bank’s
aggressive auto loan lending.

Page 17 of 250



@ PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 18

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

Earnings per Share increased by 9.76% or P 7.65 per share compared to last
years’ P 6.97 per share due to the higher Net Income.

Past Due Ratio decreased by 19.56% or 8.76% by the year-end compared to
previous year’s 10.89%. The decrease was brought about by the collection of
past due accounts and boosted by the new auto loan bookings.

Capital Adequacy Ratio increased by 3.49% or 17.50 % compared to 16.91%
the year before. The industry level is at 10% which means that the bank’s
capital structure is still very much adequate.
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SUMMARY OF
BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS
As of DECEMBER 31, 2023
(in millions)
CASH AND DUE FROM OTHER BANKS : P 150.792
| TOTAL LOANS : P 208.717 (393 accts) |

(Net of Allowance for Probable Losses of P 6.6 Million)

| PAST DUE RATIO : 8.68% |

INVESTMENT IN BONDS & OTHER DEBT
INSTRUMENTS : P 26.830

BANK PREMISES : P 8.958
(Net of Depreciation)

REAL & OTHR PROPERTIES ACQUIRED (ROPA)

AND SALES CONTRACT RECEIVABLE, Net : P 11.080

OTHER ASSETS(Net) : P 3.858

TOTAL ASSETS : P 410.235

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES : P 330.257

(5,326accts)

OTHER LIABILITIES : P 5.288
| CAPITAL ACCOUNTS : P 74.690 |
| TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL ACCOUNTS : P 410.235 |

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR)
As of September 30, 2023 ¢ 17.75 )
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SUMMARY
INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS
As of DECEMBER 31, 2023
(in millions)
INTEREST INCOME : P 28.115
OTHER INCOME : P 6.292
TOTAL INCOME : P 34.407
INTEREST EXPENSES : P 1911
COMPENSATION/FRINGE BENEFITS : P 16.251
DIRECTORS’ FEES : P 0.291
TAXES & LICENSES : P 2.956
OTHER ADMIN EXPENSES : P 7.520
DEPRECIATION : P 2.034
LOSS/RECOVERIES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS P (0.827)
| TOTAL EXPENSES P 30.136
| NET OPERATING INCOME P 4.270
LESS PROVISION FOR CORPORATE INCOME TAX P (0.435)
| NET INCOME P 3.835
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D. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK ADOPTED

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES & PROCESSES

1. IDENTIFY: to search for and locate the various risks before they become problems.

2. ASSESS/MEASURE: evaluate its impact or consequence and the probability of the
risks happening or taking place

3. MONITOR: observe/study/keep an eye on the risk marker/risk indicator as well as
the risk limits set and the mitigation plans set in place

4. CONTROL: check for and make the correction for deviations versus the internal
control systems and the risk-mitigating plans

5. REPORT: Supply or furnish information and feedback on the various risk activities,
current/existing risks, and emerging risks.

In addition to the above, there is a need to:
a.) Define and disseminate risk orientation/familiarization training and policies
set in writing
b.) Develop the risk management system and its control foundations
c.) Institutionalize the risk management process. To make it as the code of
practice/a habit, a fixture in the company.

FOUR GUIDING QUESTIONS IN RISK MANAGEMENT:
R — Return. Are we gaining an appropriate return for the risk we are taking?
I — Immunization. Do we have the necessary controls in place, to lessen the risk

losses?

S — Systems. Do we have the actual system to measure and manage the various
risks we face?
K — Knowledge. Do we have the right people, sufficient skills, suitable culture,
and proper values for an effective risk management?

RISK as DEFINED:

It is the uncertainty of whether events expected or otherwise, will have an
adverse impact on the bank’s capital or earnings. It is an inevitable part of the business of
Banking.

The Bank Risk Spectrum:
The wide range of risks faced by a Bank is generally grouped into:

a.) Credit risk — estimated to be 54% of the risk range:

b.) Operations risk - approximately 27% of the risk band,;

c.) Market risk - composing the remainder of the 19% portion.

Market and Credit risks are faced and experienced primarily in the hope of

ample rewards or good returns. A portion of the bank’s capital addresses the potential
losses resulting from these risks.
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Operational risk is taken unintentionally and it is a cost of doing business.

VARIOUS RISKS THAT BANKS FACE:

1.

2.

Market Risk — the risk of loss, immediate or over time, due to adverse fluctuations in
the price or market value of instruments, products, and transactions in the bank’s
overall portfolio-whether On or Off the Balance sheet.

It is influenced by:

a.) Interest Rate Risk — the bank’s financial condition is exposed to adverse
movements in interest rate. It means that changes in interest rate may reduce
the current or future earnings and/or the economic value of capital of a
Financial Institution.

b.) Foreign Exchange Risk — possibility that movements in exchange rates may
adversely affect the value of the company’s holdings, thus, its financial
condition.

Areas of market risk may include the following:
a.) Risk of decline in value of trading accounts and investments due to fluctuations in
market prices
b.) Risk that the issuer may not be able to meet its obligations promptly
c.) Risk of decline in value of investments due to investment decisions which fail to
take into account:

e marketability of investment instrument. If the bank cannot wait to hold on
to the investment until maturity, there must be many buyers in the market
willing to pay at a price that is close to the bank’s acquisition cost so that
the bank will not incur a loss

e diversification of investment outlets

e maturity and rate of return

e type of issuer (to ensure payment on maturity)

e BSP regulations on limits and ceilings

Credit Risk — the risk arising from the borrower’s failure to honor to pay his
obligations (interest and/or loan principal) on the due or maturity date. It is the most
recognizable risk in relation to the banking business.
Credit risk events that will burden on a bank’s bottom-line:
- the need for loan loss provisioning
- adramatic increase in NPLs
- arapidrise in ROPA
Avreas of credit risk may include the following:
1. Risk of poor or non-collection of loans
» borrower does not have the capacity to pay as shown by financial
statements, income tax returns, statements of assets and liabilities, credit
investigation, or such other credit basis.
> borrower belongs to a distressed industry
» borrower’s loan grant is beyond his approved credit limit
» corporate borrower has doubtful paying capacity because its capitalization
is minimal in relation to loan or project to be financed
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» borrower’s co-makers, endorsers, sureties and/or guarantors in case of
unsecured loans, do not possess good credit standing and are not financially
capable of fulfilling their commitments to the bank in case borrower fails to
do so.

» Borrower’s loan is in excess of loan value of his submitted collaterals.

» Borrower’s loan repayment plan does not jibe with his cash flows

» Borrower’s loan was approved and released without proper approval or
beyond the lending authority of officers or with incomplete signatories on
loan documents or with incomplete documentation or with collateral
deficiency such as unregistered REM and chattel mortgage.

> Borrower was able to renew his loan without 20%
reduction in his principal obligation or without submitting updated financial
statements/income tax returns

Deficiencies associated with operations risks such as

>

>

YV VVV VYV

lack of or inadequate review of loan portfolio to assess quality and adequacy
of loan loss provisioning

absence of early warning system to detect/recognize symptoms/indicators of
problem accounts

absence of or inadequate loan supervision — monitoring of maturing or
matured loans, periodic visitation of the borrower or borrower’s place of
business; updating of credit information

absence of reminders to borrowers to pay maturing and past due obligations
ineffective monitoring of insufficient post-dated checks to cover monthly
amortizations of borrowers

poor monitoring of status and value of collateral

lack of equipment supports to keep track of collectibles and actual collections
absence of collateral valuation and review, collection, credit review, and loan
loss provisioning

lack of periodic review to determine if existing policies are still compatible
with the changing market conditions

2. Risk of excessive credit to a single borrower/group of borrowers vis-a-vis the

>

single borrower’s limit (SBL).

In order to mitigate the risk, the bank observes a lower internal single
borrower’s limit than the prescribed limit of twenty-five (25%) of the bank’s
qualifying capital. But if ever it exceeds the limit the portion of the exposure
above the limit must be secured by cash, acceptable government securities
(with conditions and settlement endorsed in favor of the bank), or a
combination of both.

Monthly reporting of SBL and Large exposure to the BOD for monitoring and
implementation of regular reportorial monitoring (Monthly Loan Release,
Monthly Past Due Loan Report and Credit Stress Testing and Scenario).

3. Risk of concentration of credit to a single industry
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Grant of loans by type/industry i.e., consumer loans, real estate loans, auto loan

and other is not diversified and exceeds the 30% benchmark or limit allocated.

» Conduct regular review of concentration limit in different types of products
offered and monthly reporting for monitoring of limit. As per recent approved
concentration limit, basis will be the total loanable funds of the bank.

> In breach of limit the bank shall prepare segmentation of its portfolio for
awareness of the breaches and implementing mitigating measures to avoid
future risks.

» Quarterly preparation of Stress Testing in product where the bank breaches
the concentration limit in order to monitor the possible risk that may affect the
bank performance.

4. Risk of overexposure to DOSRI and self-dealing practices
» Disregard of aggregate and individual ceilings prescribed by Bangko Sentral

ng Pilipinas

» Indiscriminate granting of loans to corporations and individuals identified
with DOSRI, although not falling within the technical description of
DOSRI

3. Operations Risk — the risk to earnings or capital arising from problems with service
or product delivery.
Its occurrence is influenced by the following factors:
- internal control
- information system
- employee integrity
- operating processes
Sub-categories of Operations Risk are:
a.) Transaction risk — risk of loss due to some failures in processing of
transactions or problems in the delivery of bank services. This may consist of:

b.) Documentation risk — risk of loss arising from incomplete or incorrect
documentation of the transaction.

c.) Exceeding limits — risk of loss arising as a result of limits being exceeded and
the need to reduce the excess.

d.) Fraud — risk of loss arising from either internal or external fraud within the
organization.

e.) Security risk — risk of loss from all manner of security breaches including
allowing competitors access to confidential information

f.) Key personnel risk — risk of loss due to having only one person with vital risk
management skills or knowledge

g.) Processing risk — risk of loss due to failings or errors in manual processes
usually associated with the quality of back — office staff.

h.) Systems error — risk of loss due to a failure in any of the systems used within
the bank.

i.) Management information risk — risk of loss arising from management making
decisions based on inaccurate or incomplete information.
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j.) Information technology system failure — risk of loss arising from a failure in
the computer systems

Avreas of operations risk may include the following:

a.

b.

«©« —h

organization that is not appropriate to the size and activities of the bank or not
flexible to meet changes in business conditions

duties and responsibilities of the board of directors, senior management, the
officers and staff that are not clear and properly delineated

reporting lines that are not clear

responsibilities that are not segregated nor distinguished as to those committing
the organization to a transaction, recording it, settling it, and controlling it
appointed officers who are not qualified to manage the bank

ineffective supervision of the bank’s affairs

BOD and senior management who are not generally informed of the bank’s
business environment and the legal and regulatory framework controlling the
bank’s activities or who do not devote enough time and attention in overseeing
the bank

Lack of or inadequate risk management system

Non-compliance with minimum internal control standards particularly on

» maintenance of proper accounting records and adoption of written accounting
policies and procedures

independent balancing

division of duties and responsibilities

joint custody

signing authorities

dual control

number control

rotation of duties

independence of the internal auditor

direct verification

Absence of internal audit personnel/department to make certain that controls to
protect assets are maintained, or in the absence of controls, to propose adequate
and effective control system and procedures

Management reports that are not timely, inaccurate and incomplete as to
information

Lack of management reports to the board and senior management on the financial
condition and performance of the bank which will be helpful in the formulation of
policies and plans

Absence of feedback mechanism on adherence to set policies, standards and
procedures on major activities of the bank

Lack of downward and upward flow of communication within the bank
Non-utilization of external and internal audit reports as well as BSP
recommendations on examination findings to improve performance

VVVVVVVVY
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10.

Liquidity Risk — the risk to earnings or capital arising from the Bank’s inability to

make a timely payment/meet any of its currently maturing financial obligations to

customers or counter parties in any currency.

Such risk may arise as a result of:

a. Mismatches in cash flows

b. Borrowing short and lending long

c. No provision for reserves (primary reserves to meet anticipated cash needs while
secondary reserves to meet contingent or extraordinary cash needs/withdrawals)

d. Absence of contingency plan to cover unexpected fund withdrawals during

financial stress

e. Absence of or non-compliance with maturity gap limits

f. High incidence of past due loans which put pressure on the bank’s liquidity
position (on-time loan collections, assure a steady source of funds/cashflows).

Compliance Risk — is the risk to earnings or capital arising from violations of or non-
conformance to laws, rules, and regulations, prescribed practices or ethical standards.
It exposes the Bank to fines, penalties, damages, and the voiding of contracts.

Legal Risk — is the risk to earnings or capital that may arise as a result of

unenforceable contracts, lawsuits, or adverse judgment.

Avreas of legal risk may include:

a. Contracts that are not legally enforceable due to failure to carefully review all
provisions therein.

b. Protracted legal/court case

Reputational Risk — is the risk to earnings or capital arising from the possibility that
negative publicity regarding an entity’s business practices (whether true or not) will
cause a decline in the customer base, increase cost of litigation or revenue reductions.

Personnel Risk — is the risk to earnings or capital arising from inadequate training,
inexperience, or illegal activities of a risk-taking personnel. It highlights the human
side of risk-taking and the important role and adequacy of institutional
guidelines/manuals, codes of conduct, personnel policies and training and
development programs.

Strategic risk — risk to earnings or capital arising from adverse business decisions or
the improper implementation of these business decisions.

Environment and Social Risk- is a potential financial, legal, and or reputational

negative effects in banks arising from:

a. Physical Risk- a potential loss or damage to tangible assets arising from climate
change and/or weather-related conditions such floods, typhoons, droughts,
earthquakes, extreme variability, and rising sea levels.

Elements of Climate Change
- Temperature
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- Atmospheric pressure
- Humidity
- Precipitation or rain
- Wind
- Solar irradiance
- Topography; soil erosion; landslides, sinkholes & fissures,
river/water tributary siltation, presence of big water
dams
b. Transition Risk- is a potential economic adjustment cost resulting from policy,
legal, technology, and market changes to meet climate change mitigation and
adaptation requirements.

Top Five (5) Environmental Problems
a.) Pollution
b.) Deforestation
c.) Landslide and Coastal Erosion
d.) Wildlife extinction
e.) Dynamite Fishing or use of poison in catching aqua-marine products

Unregulated Business/Industries Affecting the Environment
1. lllegal Logging
2. lllegal Mining and Quarrying
3. lllegal Fishing and Poaching
4. lllegal Reclamation

To address and to mitigate possible impacts of climate change and the other

environmental and social risks to the Bank, the following action plans will be
observed:

a. Constant and careful monitoring of the advises; issuances; pronouncements
and similar announcements coming from various government agencies such as
DENR, Department of Agriculture (DA); BFAR; PAGASA; PhilVolcs;
National Power Corporation (NPC); NIA and others.

b. Give importance and greater reliance on the “topography mapping projects”
conducted/provided by the Mines and Geosciences Bureau (MGB) and its
Geohazard and Engineering Geology Section.

c. Reuvisit the existing protocols covering the observance/enforcement of the
“Dam Water Release” that was put in place following the Typhoon
Pepeng/San Roque Dam incident in 2009 which flooded a wide swath of
Pangasinan and was recently replicated by the Typhoon Ulysses/Magat Dam
event that inundated the Cagayan and Isabela provinces.

d. Continued observance of the minimum health and safety protocols/standards
during pandemic, for its prevalent effect to all levels of social strata and age
brackets.

e. Other Related Matter/Issues/Developments that could have Social/Societal
Risks:
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- Outcome of the investigation of the Phil Health controversial care
programs during the Covid-19 pandemic, which could affect the
servicing of the Universal Healthcare Program;

- Passage of the “Divorce Law” in the Philippines;

- Acceptance or Eventual recognition of the “Same-Sex Marriage” in
the country.

FACTORS/EVENTS THAT CHALLENGE RISK
MANAGEMENT

Those that are brought about by Market Place or Economic change
Change that are due to Technology Improvements or due to Process Change
Change that come about because of New Strategies introduced
Change because of Competition bringing in
- new products
- new channels
5. Change within the company itself due to:
- product change
- new leadership or shift in organizational structure
6. Change to comply with new Regulation or Legislative enactments.
7. Changes to climate and other environmental and social risks that can threaten the
financial condition of the bank.

Eall el

LEVELS OF RISK APPETITE AND LIMITS/THRESHOLD OF
BREACHES:

a. For Aqua-Culture/Fishponds and Related Fishing Industries:
2% of Total Loan Type on

b. For Poultry/Piggery and similarly classified Animal Industry businesses:
4% % of Total Loan Type

c. All Agricultural Production; Horticulture Industry and related cut flower business:
4% of Total Loan Type

d. Lumber/Timber and Logging Business and Related Forest cover Industry:
2% of Total Loan Type

e. Construction and Other Similar Resources Related Businesses:
3% of Total Loan Type

f. Auto/Car Loans (follow guidelines/policies of the latest revision of the Phil. Clean Air
Act 40% of Total Loan Type

Measures to be taken in case of Breaches in Limits or Thresholds or the Non-
Compliance of a Particular Industry or Sector:

a. Temporary suspension of the grant of new loans

b. Stoppage of new and/or additional loan releases in the areas affected
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c. Cancellation/Termination of the particular type of loan that is heavily affected/or is a
“non-compliant” industry or sector.

LIMITS SETTING FOR LENDING RATES; COLLATERAL;
BORROWERS’ AGE _AND TYPES

Marketing Risk:
A. REM Normal Rates
Loans P3M or Less: 1year - 16% (over the term) interest for a one-year term
2 years - 24% (over the term) interest for two years
3 years - 32% (over the term) interest for three years
4 years - 40% (over the term) interest for four years
5 years - 48% (over the term) interest for five years

Note. With a 3% one-time Service Charge for all terms indicated in the Promissory
Note

Loans more than P3M: 1year - 12% (over the term) interest for a one-year term
2 years - 18% (over the term) interest for two years
3 years - 24% (over the term) interest for three years
4 years - 30% (over the term) interest for four years
5years - 36% (over the term) interest for five years
Note. With a 3% one-time Service Charge for all terms indicated in the
Promissory Note

Special Rate: Case to case basis
floor: 9.5% interest + 2% SC (one-time or continuing)
ceiling 15% interest + 4% SC

Considerations:
b. Class “A” or prime loan clients
c. Prior/existing clients with proven track record of paying
capacity or established proper loan account handling
d. Very marketable; attractive; highly-priced loan collateral
e. Readiness/willingness to submit the required/requested
supporting documents/evidences

B. AUTO LOAN RATES and COLLATERAL
Regular Rate for Brand New Unit — 80% maximum loanable amount for cars and 60%
maximum loanable amount based on official receipts for Trucks
Walk-in w/o Insurance Walk-in with Insurance ~ Walk-in with Dealer

And Chattel Fee and Chattel Fee
12 months 12% 21%
18 months 15% 24%
24 months 18% 27%
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36 months 23% 32% 36%
48 months 31% 40% 44%
60 months 39% 48% 52%

i. Financing of Secondhand Units from Dealers
2018-2022 model 2015-2017model

70% maximum loanable amount  50% maximum loanable amount

12 months 18% 20%
18 months 25% 26%
24 months 32% 34%
36 months 46%

ii. Chattel Mortgage — 50% maximum loanable amount based on the approved
appraisal value (note: first owner w/official receipt)

12 months 15%
18 months 22%
24 months 29%
36 months 43%

iii. Dealer Generated “ALL-IN” Loans

36 months 36%
48 months 44%
60 months 52%

REM COLLATERAL
Accept only:
1. Collaterals covered by Transfer Certificate of Title (TCT) or Original
Certificate of Title (OCT).

2. Commercial Lot (with or without building)

3. Residential Lots or Residential house and lot- situated in the Poblacién area only
(first lot) or along National or Provincial Highway of any town in Pangasinan and La
Union.

4. Gated Subdivision Lots.

5. Agricultural lots situated along provincial road or national highways.

Not to Accept:
1. Fishponds particularly that are susceptible to storm surges/fish kills/siltation and
flooding

2. Lots situated in Mountainous or Hilly areas(bundok)

3. Secondary lots even if with right of way

4. Lots situated in an area prone to natural calamities like floods, erosion, and
earthquake.
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5. Lots that are in low-lying areas; adjacent to a river, lagoon, lake, coastal areas
and shorelines in danger to inundation /siltation and storm surges.

*** On a case to case basis, the bank may accept collateral situated in a Mountainous or
Hilly areas (bundok) subject to Board approval for any amount.

Loan Factors:
a. residential
(Loan factor, is normally 70% x 60% or 42%)
b. agricultural
(Loan factor, is normally 70% x 50% or 35%)
c. commercial/residential
(Urban and rural areas: on a case-to-case basis and or a very
special/noteworthy situation the loan factor could be upgraded to
70% x 70% or 49% (floor limit) or 70% x 80% or 56% (ceiling)
d. if Sec. 4, Rule 74 appears on face of TCT or mentioned in Deed of Sale covering
Tax Declarations, the corresponding Heir’s Bond must be required; or if annotated
for more than 2yrs, shall be cancelled.

Lot with Improvement —

- if the building is made of light or even semi-concrete materials and distinctly
already old, do not assign a value

- other improvements not included above; loan factor shall be 50% of appraised
value.

- insurance coverage against the fire of the building improvement/s must be
implemented properly

Note:

Lots which are irregularly shaped/triangular, trapezoidal; or with numerous
points or those with more than 10 boundary points as per the technical description
appearing on the TCT shall not be acceptable.

Lots that are low-lying areas adjacent to rivers, lagoons, lakes, coastal areas,
and shorelines and areas that are prone to flood, erosion, landslide, and
fissures/sinkholes due to earthquakes are subject to the approval of the approving
body.

Eligible Borrowers:
1. Must have no NFIS or CISA findings. If with NFIS or CISA findings, there
should be:
a. Managers recommendation
b. Approval by the Credit Committee or Board of Directors whichever is
applicable.
c. Must have settled his/her account at least one (1) year prior to application.
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2. Must have the capacity to pay or if none, the co-borrower/guarantor must have the
capacity to pay the obligation.

3. Must be the owner of the land/collateral.

4. Borrowers with Special Power of Attorney (SPA) with Red Ribbon from foreign
consuls.

5. Senior Citizen Borrower aged 60 but not more than 70 years old with
guarantor/co-borrower

5.1 Must have the capacity to pay or if none, a co-borrower is required who is/are
1t degree (Parents, Spouse, Brother, Sister, and Children) related and
aged between 21-59 years old. On a case-to-case basis, 2"-degree (Niece,
Nephew, Aunt, Uncle, and Grandchild) related co-borrower is subject to
CreCom approval.

5.2 A co-borrower residing abroad is sufficient to support the loan and no longer
required to have a co-borrower who is/are residing in the Philippines as long
as they have the capacity to pay the loan, is/are willing to submit the required
documents, and is/are willing to sign the bank forms and Guaranty Letter.

Industries
Industry classification is being considered in granting loans and sustainable
financing.

Low-Risk Industries are those businesses that are not strict and they have a higher
probability of making money. They have the lowest competition like Affiliate
marketing, Freelance, Consulting, drop shipping, Merchants that use products
daily to earn consistent revenue, Apparel, Department Stores, and Antique Shops.
Business duration is over ten (10) years already.

Medium-Risk Industries are those businesses that have medium competition like
gift and stationery shops, car dealers, small food shops, telecommunication
services, schools/universities, and Utility payment centers. Established or
existence for at least five (5) years.

High-Risk Industries are those businesses with a low rate of potential success due
to high/lot of competition, location the of business, their popularity in the area,
strictly regulated, inconsistent revenue, or business trends. Some of the businesses
are restaurants, online sellers, beauty salons, gyms, insurance, travel agencies,
alcohol manufacturers, and oil business. Recently put up or have not yet reached
three (3) years in actuality. The bank will not automatically reject high risk
industries if they could show history of profitability and stability of their business.

Not Acceptable Industries:
1. Online gaming and similar industries

2.

Illegal logging, illegal mining, illegal fishing, illegal gambling, forced labor and
child labor

3. Production or trade of dangerous drugs as defined in RA No. 9165
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Power generation from non-renewable energy and nuclear power

Nuclear power fossil fuel power

generation/transportation/technology/transmission, landfills, and hazardous waste

management

All public passenger transportation not transitioning into a modernized version

7. Biomass energy production and supplementary infrastructure using biomass or
feedstock derived from sources that compete with food production or grown in
areas currently or previously with high biodiversity or will decrease carbon pools
in the soil

8. Activities involving forced labor, violence against women, child labor, gambling,
military contracting Production or trade of materials considered as health hazards
(such as asbestos fibers), alcoholic beverages, tobacco products, lethal defense
goods including small arms and weapons, and palm oil

9. Other businesses/industries deemed harmful by the bank

ok~

o

PROPER PROCEDURE AFTER LOAN RELEASE:

1) Follow-up visit to Loan clients’/Loan collateral (within 1 month from loan
release):

Under Section 304 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB), it states
that: The proceeds of a loan shall be utilized only for the purpose/s stated in the loan
contract/(PN); otherwise, the Bank may terminate the loan and demand immediate
repayment of the loan obligation.

Conduct site visits and/or validation reviews on the actual use of loan
proceeds to ensure that credit granted was used for the purpose applied for, and
consistent with ESR assessment. Valued clients who re-availed with the purpose of
additional capital may be exempt from the actual visit as long as there is proof that
the business is existing and operating. There must be documents submitted like
pictures of the business, permits and proof that the loan proceeds was properly
utilized as per declared purpose.

2) Sending of Confirmation Letter to Loan Clients

The present/permanent address written on the Loan Application Form and
Signature Card shall be used to send confirmation or thank you letter for opening an
account with the bank. Returned letters due to an unlocated address or person shall
have a note of restrictions in his/her account.

Monitoring of Loan
The monitoring of loans is one of the effective ways to manage the risk by the
constant update to borrowers through risk profiling and client calls. Regular review of
the composition of the loan portfolio as this may have existing exposures in markets,
sectors, or geographical areas vulnerable to material ESRs. Some tools for monitoring
will be Internal Borrowers Risk Rating Report, Stress Scenario and Reports, and Loan
Monitoring with aging and ACL provision.
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Monitoring of Delinguent Loan

» Loans delinquent for 60 days in auto loan and 90 days in REM shall already
be submitted to the Remedial Officer and ROPA Dept. for the initiation of
restructuring or foreclosure proceedings (collection notices, follow-up letters
and attorney’s demand letter must be ready by then).

» Loans past due for less than 90 days may be restructured only once.

» Collection Letters and Update of BRR

1t Letter-Reminder Letter — to be sent through e-mail, messenger, text
message with screenshot at least 15 days before
due date

2nd | etter-1%t Collection Letter- to be sent through mail (post office) or
delivered personally to the client and properly
acknowledged at least 7 days after due date.

3 Letter-Demand Letter- to be sent through mail with return card (post
office) or delivered personally to the client and
properly acknowledged at least 30 days from
due date.

4™ | etter-Attorney’s Demand Letter- to be sent through mail with return card
(post office) at least 45 days after due date for
Auto Loans, and 60 days from due date of REM
Loans.

» For past due accounts of more than 30 days the Cash Flow Investigation
Report (CFIR) shall be prepared by the Credit Investigation Officer by
confirming collection updates from the proponent branch and conducting
interviews with borrowers on their current cash flow status (including
interview/checking with relatives, the immediate neighborhood, barangay
and other sources of credit information as applicable).

» Update of BRR is required for past due loans of more than 30 days after due
date for Auto Loans and REM Loans based on the result of the Cash Flow
Investigation Report (CFIR) and missed repayments of borrowers.

> Review of the ROPA listing and also the current list of PDLs, would provide a
certain degree of assistance in the decision of the grant of loan. Numerous
ROPA items or numerous foreclosures or a greater number of clients with
PDLs can show a pattern or the paying habits of the inhabitants in a certain
location.

Particular kinds or types of industry-financed, which indicate problematic
loan handling, could also provide a sort of indication, of which businesses are
strong and which are already waning/sunset industry.
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INVESTMENTS in IBODI

Cash outlay for investment in Bonds and Other Debt Instruments must be for the
purpose of complying with regulations concerning:
- liquidity
- mandated reserve requirement
- Agrarian-Agricultural requirement
- SME requirement
- Investment (secured)

RELATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:

A. Authorized Investment Instruments
1. Government Securities such as treasury bill, notes, and bonds;
2. Certificate of Time Deposit (CTD) from Universal and
Commercial Banks.

B. Limitation on Investment Transactions
e The Bank’s funds should not, in general, be invested in securities or
CTDs maturing more than 1 year from date of
purchase/placement. Except, as herein provided in the
diversification provision of the policy.
e Limit of CTD placement
a. Universal Banks - up to 20 Million Pesos (for top five universal

banks)
i. between 12 M up to 15M Pesos (for all other Universal
banks)
ii. unlimited deposits for government banks namely: DBP and

LBP
b. Commercial Banks — up to 10 Million Pesos
c. Thrift Banks — between 3 Million Pesos to 5 Million Pesos except
Malayan and Producers Bank.
d. For Malayan & Producers Bank up to 10 Million Pesos

C. Diversification of the Bank’s Investment
The Bank recognizes that some level of risk is inherent in any
investment transaction. Losses may be incurred due to market price
changes or closing investments prior to maturity due to unanticipated
cash flow needs. Diversification of the Bank’s investment portfolio by
type of investment instrument and term to maturity is the primary method
to minimize investment risk.

To the extent possible, the Bank will attempt to match its
investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a
specific cash flow need, the Bank’s fund should not, in general, be
invested in securities maturing more than 1 year from the date of the
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purchase. However, longer maturities of more than 1 year but not to
exceed five (5) years are allowed if maturities of the investments are
made to coincide as nearly as practical with the expected use of the funds.

D. Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions
The Board shall maintain a list of financial institutions authorized
to provide investment services to the Bank. All financial institutions who
desire to provide investment service to the Bank shall supply the Board
with information sufficient to adequately evaluate the institution and
answer any and all inquiries posed by the Board, Including the following
information:
a. Audited Financial Statements.
b. Company Profile including Regulatory reports on financial
condition.
c. Written Memorandum of Agreement for the deposit of public
funds or trading resolution, as appropriate.
The Board shall evaluate the financial capacity and credit
worthiness of financial institutions prior to the placement of the
Bank’s funds. The Board shall conduct an annual review on
financial condition and registrations of financial institutions and
based on the review, make any recommendations regarding
investment policy or program changes determined to be necessary.

E. Safekeeping and Custody
Investment assets shall be secured through third-party custody and
safekeeping procedures. Any officer/employee of the bank authorized to
engage in investment transactions shall be bonded in an amount
established by the Board. The safekeeping procedures utilized in the
Bank’s investment program shall be reviewed annually by an
independent auditor.

DEPOSIT TAKING ACTIVITIES

In complying with the Know-your-Client (KYC) policy, the bank must
endeavor to  require all its clients opening a deposit account to provide/submit
accepted/valid 1Ds, including two (2) copies of their latest picture.

LIST OF ACCEPTABLE IDENTIFICATION DOCUMENTS AND OTHER
REQUIREMENTS FROM PROSPECTIVE DEPOSITORS
DOCUMENTARY REQUIREMENTS
A. PERSONAL ACCOUNT
A.1 Individual Account
» Presentation of at least 1 valid ID
» Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture
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A.2 Joint Accounts
> Presentation of at least 1 valid ID for each depositor
» Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture for each depositor

A.3 Guardianship/Estate Accounts

> At least one (1) valid ID of Guardian/Representative/Administrator
» Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture of

» Birth Certificate (for In-Trust-For account)

> Death Certificate of deceased person

» Court order or testamentary will authenticated by its legal department

B. COMMERCIAL/CORPORATE ACCOUNT
B.1 Single Proprietorship
» Presentation of at least 1 valid ID
» Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture of depositor
» Business/Mayor’s Permit
» DTI/BIR Certificate of Registration
» Current and notarized Special Power of Attorney (SPA).

B.2 Partnership Account
> At least 1 photo and signature bearing ID of authorized signatory/ies
» Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture of authorized signatory/ies
> Certified True Copy of Articles of Co-Partnership
» Partnership Agreement
» Duly notarized Partnership Resolution/Authorization designating the Bank as
depository bank and the authorized signatories

Corporate Account-Domestic Corp.
Presentation of at least 1 valid 1D of authorized signatory/ies
Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture of authorized signatory/ies
Certified True Copy of Articles of Incorporation
Corporate By Laws with SEC Certificate of Filing.
DTI/SEC Certificate of Registration
Board Resolution certified by its Secretary stating the ff:
e Authority to open an account or transact business with the bank; and
o Officers authorized to sign checks and other instruments, their limits and
combinations

VVVVVVw

B.4 Treasury-In-Trust

At least one (1) valid ID of Authorized Signatory/ies

Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture of Authorized Signatory/ies

Proposed Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws which include the temporary
appointment of Treasurer-in-Trust

Letter from Treasurer-in-Trust addressed to Bank

Treasurer’s Affidavit

VV VVYYVY

Page 38 of 250



% PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 39

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

B.5 Fiduciary Account

» At least one (1) valid ID of Authorized Signatory/ies

> Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture of Authorized Signatory/ies

» Trust agreement indicating the trustee appointed or any court order designating
the guardian, trustee or administrator

B.6 Associations, Club, Foundation, Cooperatives and Other Unincorporated

Groups
At least one (1) valid ID of Authorized Signatory/ies
Two (2) latest 1x1 or 2x2 picture of Authorized Signatory/ies
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of Cooperative, Association or
Unincorporated Organization
Certificate of Registration (COR) with SEC and/or COR with the concern
affiliation
Board Resolution or notarized minutes of meeting of general membership and/or
governing body certified by its Secretary stating the following:

e Authority to open an account or transact business with the bank; and

e Officers authorized to sign checks and other instruments, their limit and

combinations.

Y V. VYVYV

Valid Identification Documents
A. Customer and the authorized signatory/ies of a corporate juridical entity who engage in
a financial transaction with the bank for the first time shall be required to present the
original and submit a clear copy of at least one (1) valid photo-bearing ID document
issued by the authority.
The following are accepted valid ID by the bank:
1. Passport including those issued by foreign governments
2 Driver’s License
3 PRC ID
4. NBI Clearance
5. Police Clearance
6 Postal 1D
7 Voter’s ID
8 Tax Identification Number
9. Barangay Certification
10.  GSISe-card

11. SSS Card

12. Senior Citizen Card
13. OoOww ID

14, OFW ID

15. Seaman’s Book

16.  Alien Certification of Registration/Immigrant Certificate of
Registration

17.  Government Office and GOCC (e.g. AFP, HDMF IDs)

18. Certification from the NCWDP
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19.  DSWD Certification

20. IBP IDF

21.  MARINAID

22.  Company IDs issued by private entities or institutions registered with
or supervised or supervised or regulated either by the BSP, SEC or IC

NOTE: The Philsys digital 1D and the printed E. PhillD are added to this list, as per
BSP Memo 2022-044

B. Students who are beneficiaries of remittances/fund transfers and who are not yet
voting age, may be allowed to present the original and submit a clear copy of one
(1) valid photo- bearing school ID duly signed by the principal or head of the
school.

C. Where the customer or authorized signatory is a non-Philippine resident, similar
ID’s  duly issued by the foreign government where the customer is a resident or a
citizen may be presented.

D. The bank shall require their customers or authorized signatory to submit a clear
copy of at least two (2) valid ID’s at the commencement of business relationship.
They shall require their clients to submit an updated photo and other relevant
information on the basis of risk and materiality.

E. The bank may classify identification documents based on its reliability and ability
to validate the information indicated in the identification document with that
provided by the customer.

F. Whenever it deems necessary, the bank may accept other IDs not enumerated above
provided that it shall not be the sole means of identification.

G. In case the identification documents mentioned above or other identification
documents acceptable to the covered institution do not bear any photo of the
customer or authorized signatory, or the photo bearing ID or copy thereof does not
clearly show the face of the customer or authorized signatory, the bank may utilize
its own technology to take photo of the customer or authorized signatory.

IMPORTANCE OF DOINGS:
Customer Identification/Know your Client (KYC)

The Bank maintains a system of verifying the true identity of its customers
and, in case of corporate and juridical entities, a system of verifying their legal
existence and organizational structure. The system of identification is embodied in its
Manual for Record-Keeping of Deposit.
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Customer Acceptance

Ensures that the financially or socially disadvantages are not denied access to
financial services while at same time prevent suspicious individuals or entities from
opening an account.

Sending Thank You Letter

As our computerized savings deposit system is capable of generating “Thank
You” letters for all newly opened accounts, the same must be strictly mailed to check
properly on the indicated address of the depositor/client.

“Thank You” letters that are returned to the Bank/returned undelivered by the
Post Office must be properly investigated and “flagged” to corresponding deposit
account, to trigger formal verification with particular bank client concerned. To
properly ascertain the validity of the correct address, the clients must be required to
submit the latest copy/copies of billing statements from various utility companies
(electric, telephone, water, cable/cellphone/credit card) that is in the name of the
client.

Customer Risk Rating Methodology

The bank uses a risk rating methodology to calculate a customer risk rating
score (slow, medium or high score) based on the verified information received during
the opening of the account. The risk score shall determine if reduced due diligence
(RDD), average due diligence (ADD) or enhance due diligence (EDD) shall be
applied based on the following parameters.

Covered and Suspicious Transaction Reporting

All covered and suspicious transactions (CTR/STR) shall be prepared by
the Frontline employee, verified by the Bank’s Compliance Officer and electronically
reported by the Chief Accounting Head, in accordance with the reporting procedure, to
the AMLC within five (5) working days, unless the AMLC prescribes a different
period not exceeding fifteen (15) working days from occurrence thereof.

Updating of Depositor Records
As a matter of policy, depositor records shall be updated every five (5)
years, except when there is imminent need to update the record immediately.

AUTHORITIES and RESPONSIBILITIES

1.

Organizational Structure of the Risk Management Function

The Risk Management Department is manned by the Credit Risk Review
Officer. The independence and seniority of the position is ingrained in the
organization. It has no line functions in the bank and functionally reports to the banks
board-level Audit Committee (AC).
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Status of the Credit Risk Review Officer Functions

The Credit Risk Review Officer is responsible for providing an independent
evaluation of the credit quality and the management of credit risk. The primary task
of a credit risk manager is to protect the bank from credit losses. He She will be with
working closely with Credit Department, Audit Department and Credit Committee.

The position is responsible for conducting independent loan reviews and
reporting policy and underwriting exceptions to the Credit Committee. The individual
Credit Risk Review Officer will perform credit analysis, which will include analysis
of financial statements, feasibility studies, ratios, cashflow, and loan decisions.
Objectives of the review are to ensure individual credits are adequately underwritten,
properly graded, appropriately priced and conformed to the bank policy. The review
and analysis performed will help the bank manage risk in the loan portfolio by
ensuring compliance with bank and regulatory requirements, as well as following up
on trends identified so appropriate training can be developed and provided to lending
staff.

2. Senior Management for its part must develop and implement the risk management
policies, procedures, and practices. There must be periodic review of the Bank’s risk
management policies and procedures to make sure that they remain appropriate and
reliable. It must make certain that the lines of authority and responsibilities are being
strictly followed.

It 1s the “implementor”; it shall be responsible for carrying out the risk
management decisions, under a system of delegated authorities. In carrying out this
mandated authority, it shall be subject to close monitoring and control that the BOD
has set up.

Other related functions of senior management in risk handling are the following:

e maintenance of appropriate limits structures as well as the presence of
adequate measurement systems;

e to oversee the implementation of the banks sustainability objectives
and proper upkeep of management information system (MIS);

o the establishment of an effective internal controls;

e adoption of methodologies and tools that will effectively identify, and
quantify/measure, monitor, and control ESRs.

e Clear and effective communication of policies, procedures, and
processes across the bank

e Make sure that adequate resources are available.

e Facilitate the identification, assessment, monitoring and mitigation of
E&S risk.

e Asses’ consistency of operations and performance of personnel with
bank’s sustainability objectives.

e Apprise the BOD on a regular basis on the bank’s exposure to E & S
risks which shall include potential issues associated with both internal
and external activities of the bank and the clients that may have
material impact on the bank’s portfolio or reputation.
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e Integrate E&S risks in stress testing exercises covering both short-term
and long-term horizons following the principles and requirements
provided under Sec. 151. The results shall feed into bank’s capital and
liquidity planning and management exercises as well as in the business
continuity and disaster recovery plan.

Internal Auditor and Compliance Functions shall incorporate in their respective
programs the assessment of adherence to policies related to management of E&S risks and
valuation of the appropriateness and continuing relevance of policies. The internal audit
function shall also review the bank’s adherence to international sustainability standards
and principles as well as relevant laws and regulations.

4. The Board of Directors must define the policy structure and lay down the risk
management framework. Towards this end, it must:

e approve the policies for the various key risks;

set-up the risk management foundation

identify who shall be responsible for carrying out the policies,
originate controls to comply with the policies

Integrate into the credit, market and liquidity, and operational risk
management framework the environmental and social risks (ESRS).

Additionally, the BOD must establish and guide the Bank’s strategic direction and
tolerance toward risks. It must periodically review, discusses, and approve needed
changes to address the overall objectives in relation to the acceptable level of liquidity
and market risks

The BOD shall institutionalize the adoption of sustainability principles, including
those covering E&S risk areas in the bank, by incorporating the same in the corporate
governance and risk management frameworks as well as in the bank’s strategic objectives
and operations taking into account the bank’s risk appetite and ability to manage risk.

The BOD must ensure that policies and procedures include the extent of the
bank’s engagement with its counterparties, including partner agencies and outsource
service providers, with regard to the adoption of sustainability principles in accordance
with its strategy and clearly communicated across the institution, and to its investors,
clients, and stakeholder.

The BOD shall ensure that adequate resources are available to attain the bank’s
sustainability objectives and its agenda is integrated in bank’s performance appraisal
system.

It must set limits, which indicate its maximum tolerance for each major risk. The
limits structure is vital for interest rate risk; credit risk; liquidity and operational risks.
Relatedly, there must be an exposure measurement mechanism in place to properly
quantify the limit structure so established.
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The BOD must also ensure that technical and human resources are allocated
toward risk management. There must be personnel available who possess technical skills
to evaluate and control risks. There must be continuous training of personnel and that the
internal audit function is properly manned by a staff with competent background.

It must monitor risks, ascertaining that the levels of risk are maintained with the
tolerance limits which is properly supported by adequate capital base.

The BOD shall exercise its oversight function in risk management by seeing that:
e set policies are being followed:;
e set limits are being properly considered
e controls are in place
e approve risk appetite on specific risk areas the bank is willing and
capable to manage
e approval of result of stress testing

There must be timely reporting and clear presentation when there are noted
breaches to the established limits so that thoughtful, well-informed, and properly
coordinated risk management decisions are formulated and timely actions are
undertaken in a timely manner.

MONEY LAUNDERING AND TERRORIST FINANCING
PREVENTION PROGRAM

. RISK MANAGEMENT

As a covered institution, the Bank has developed policies and procedures
to ensure that risks associated with money-laundering such as
counterparty, reputational, operational, and compliance risks are identified,
assessed, monitored, mitigated and controlled, as well as to ensure
effective implementation of these regulations. In this respect, the following
areas of sound risk management practices shall be adequately and
actively maintained by the Bank:

e Active Board and Senior Management Oversight. Senior
management shall oversee the day-to-day management of the
covered person, ensure effective implementation of AML/CFT
policies approved by the board and alignment of activities with the
strategic objectives, risk profile and corporate value set by the
board.  Senior management shall establish a management
structure that promotes accountability and transparency and
upholds checks and balances.
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AML Compliance System-Management of the implementation of
the Bank’s MLPP shall be the primary task of the Compliance
Officer reporting directly to the Audit Committee.

Acceptable policies and procedures-This program must be updated
whenever there are new laws, rules, and regulation that will warrant
for its revision

Appropriate monitoring and Management Information System-A
MIS that is commensurating to the size and complexity of the
Bank’s operation

Comprehensive internal controls and audit-Internal controls which
are imbued within the system and audit that is independently
functioning.

. CUSTOMER IDENTIFICATION PROCESS AND ACCEPTANCE

POLICY

(A) CUSTOMERS IDENTIFICATION/KNOW YOU CLIENT (KYC) — The
Bank maintains a system of verifying the true identity of its customers
and, in case of corporate and juridical entities, a system of verifying
their legal existence and organizational structure. The system of
identification is embodied in its Manual for Record-Keeping of Deposit

(B) CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE - Ensures that the financially or socially
disadvantaged are not denied access to financial services while at the
same time prevent suspicious individuals or entities from opening an
account.

Generally, customer acceptance shall be based on the following

guidelines:

1. Those who can'’t be properly identified will NOT be accepted.

2. Customers who have been “watch listed” as engaged in illegal
activities circularized by BSP, AMLC and other monitoring agencies
shall NOT be accepted.

3. The Bank will NOT establish business relationships with “anonymo
us
customers” or those who use fictitious names.

4. Those who hold businesses that due to the nature of the business

make it impossible to verify its legitimacy or that of the funds being
inconsistent with their financial status will NOT be accepted.
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5. Itis arequirement of the Bank that customers submit the relevant
documentation in due course and proper form, and those who fail to
comply will NOT be accepted as customers.

6. Those people who are suspects, based on reliable information, of
being involved in any sort of criminal activities, mainly related to
drug trafficking, terrorism and organized crime will NOT be
accepted.

Along these policies, a risk-based and tiered customer acceptance
policy, customer retention policy and customers identification process
that involves application of Reduced Due Diligence (RDD) and
Enhanced Due Diligence (EDD), is developed by the Bank.

. CUSTOMER RISK RATING METHODOLOGY

(A) The Bank uses a risk rating methodology to calculate a customer risk
rating score (slow, medium or high score) based on the verified
information received during the opening of the account. The risk score
shall determine if reduced due diligence (RDD), average due diligence
(ADD) or enhance due diligence (EDD) shall be applied based on the
following parameters:

Customer Risk Rating Methodoloqgy

Risk Factors Weights
Type of Customer 5
Type of Account 5
Amount of Initial Transaction 15
Source of fund 10
Address/Location 5
Employment 15
Politically Exposed Person (PEP) 10
Nationality 10
Referral 5
Attitude in opening the account 5
Type of ID Presented 5
Age 10
Total 100

(B) Risk factors are further categorized with the following risk weight:

Type of Customer (5) Risk Weight
» New Customer 5
» Existing Customer 2
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Type of Account (5) Risk Weight
» Regular Savings Deposit 5
» Special Savings Deposit 2
» Loan Account 2
Amount of Initial Transaction (15) Risk Weight
» P500,000 and below 2
» P500,001 to P5,000,000 5
» P5,000,001 to P10,000,000 10
» P10,000,001 and above 15
Source of Funds (10) Risk Weight
» Employment (e.g. salary/compensation/PF) 2
» Inheritance/Donation 10
» Savings/Investment 5
» Business 5
» Regular Pension 2
» Remittance (Domestic/Foreign) 5
» Others 10
Address/Location (5) Risk Weight
» Residing/working within the banking area 2
» Residing/working outside the banking area 5
Employment (15) Risk Weight
» Employed:
Government Entity 12
Government Own & Controlled Corp. (GOCC) 12
Private Entity 7
» Self Employed/Business owner(nature of
business):
Agriculture 7
Manufacturing 7
Service Sector 7
Financial Services 10
Real Estate/Construction 15
Insurance 15
Online marketing 15
Wholesale & retail trade 10
Art collection 15
Forex/Money changer 15
Other (specify) 10
» Unemployed 10
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Politically Exposed Person (PEP) (10) Risk Weight

» No 2

» National Official and Related Individuals 10

» Local Official and Related Individual 8

» Other position 5
Nationality (10) Risk Weight

> Filipino 2

» Non-resident Filipino 5
Referral (5) Risk Weight

» Referred by bank employee 2

» Referred by existing customer 3

» Walk-in customer 5
Attitude in opening the account (5) Risk Weight

» Cooperative 2

» Not cooperative 5
Type of ID presented (5) Risk Weight

» TIN/Driver’s License/SSS/UMID/PRC/PHealth 2

» Passport/Company ID/Student 1D 2

» Voter’s ID/Postal ID/LGU or Brgy. Issued ID 3

» Other Valid IDs 5
Age (10) Risk Weight

» Under 18 years old 2

> Between 18 to 40 years old 10

> Between 41 to 60 years old 5

»> Above 60 years old 2
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PANGASINAN BANK (A Rural Bank), INC.
Mangaldan, Pangasinan

CUSTOMER RISK ASSESSMENT FORM

(For Individual Accounts)

Name of Customer

Account No.

Date

DETAILS

RISK SCORE

DETAILS

RISK SCORE

Type of Customer
( ) New Customer (5)

() Existing Customer (2)

Address/Location:
() Residing/Working within the banking area (2)
() Residing/Working outside the banking area (5)

Type of Account/Transaction to be done
() Regular Savings Deposit (5)
( ) Remittance (5)
{ ) Special Savings Deposit (2)
( ) Loan Account (2)

Type of ID presented:
() TIN/Driver's Lic./S55/UMID/PRC/PHealth (2)
( )Passport/Company ID/Student 1D (2)
( ) Voter's/Postal/LGU or Brgy. Issued (3)
( ) Other Valid IDs (5)

Nationality
{ ) Filipino (2)
() Non-resident Filipino (5)
( ) Resident Alien (5)
{ ) Non-resident Alien (10)

Amount of Initial Transaction
{ ) P500,000 and below (2)
() PS00,001 to P5,000,000 (5)
() P5,000,001 to P10,000,000 (10)
{ ) P10,000,001 and above (15)

Age

( ) Under 1B years old (2)

( } Between 18 ta 40 years old (10)
( ) Between 41 to b0 years old (5)

({ ) Above 60 years old {2)

Source of Funds

) Employment (salary/compensation/PF) (2]
] Inheritance (10)

) Savings/investments (5)

) Business (5)

) Regular Pension (2)

) Remittance (Domestic/Fareign) (5)

) Others (10)

Referral
( ) Referred by bank employee (2)
( ) Referred by existing customer (3)

( ) Walk-in customer (5)

Employment
( ) Employed
() By government Entity (12)
( )ByGOCC(12)
( ) By private entity (7)

() self-employed/Business Owner

} Agriculture (7)

} Manufacturing (7)

) Service sector (7)

JFinancial services (10)

} Retail & wholesale trade {10)
} Insurance (15)

} Online Marketing (15)

) Art collection (15)

) Real Estate/Canstruction (15)

) Forex/Money Changer (15)
} Others (specify) (10)
( ) Unemployed (10)

Attitude in opening the account
( ) Cooperative (2)
( ) Not cooperative (5)

Politically Exposed Person (PEP)
[ )No(2)
( ) National Official & Related Individual (10)
( ) Local Official & Related Individual (8)
( } Other position (5)

of the bank.

disqualified from doing business with the bank.

Scoring System:
Score Range Risk Required Due Diligence OVERALL CUSTOMER RISK SCORE
0-50 Low Reduced Due Diligence
51-75 Medium Average Due Diligence
el il sl o0 REQUIRED CUSTOMER DUE DILIGENCE (CDD)
Remarks:
Conducted by* Reviewed by: Approved by:
mportant:

1. This Customer Risk Assessment Form (CRAF) shall be accomplished by the cashier/teller during the opening of the account.
2. For instructions on required due diligence procedure, refer to the Money Laudering and Terrorist Financing Program (MLPP)

3. "Linked" accounts and "Watchlist" individuals as circularized by BSP, AMLC and other international entities are automatically

4. The accomplished torm shall be kept for five (5) years following the procedure for record-keeping of deposit documents.
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(C)The overall customer risk score is arrived after considering the
information taken from the initial assessment of risk factors and
assigned a range of scores to determine if the customer is Low Risk,
High Risk, or Medium Risk, as presented in the following table:

Score (100)

Overall Customer Risk Required CDD Score

Range

Low Risk Reduced Due Diligence (RDD) 0to 50
Medium Risk Average Due Diligence (ADD) 51to 75
High Risk Enhanced Due Diligence 76 to 100

(EDD)

(D)A Customer Risk Assessment Form (CRAF) shall be used by the
cashier or teller conducting the new account interview to record the
overall risk score of a customer (see Annex A-Customer Risk
Assessment Form)

IV. CUSTOMER DUE DILIGENCE (CDD)

In conducting customer due diligence, a risk-based approach
shall be undertaken depending on the type of customer, business
relationship or nature of the product, transaction or activity. In this
regard, the bank shall maintain a system that will ensure the conduct of
customer due diligence which shall include:

Identifying the customer and verifying the true identity of
the customer based on official documents or other
reliable, independent source documents, data or
information. In case of corporate and juridical entities,
verifying their legal existence and organizational structure,
as well as the authority and identification of all persons
purporting to act on their behalf;

Identifying the beneficial owner and taking reasonable
measures to verify the identity of the beneficial owner,
such that the covered person shall be satisfied that it
knows who the beneficial owner is, as well as the
ownership and control structure of the customer, in case
of juridical entities or legal arrangements;
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Understanding and, as appropriate, obtaining information
on the purpose and intended nature of the business
relationship; and

Conducting ongoing due diligence on the business
relationship and scrutiny of transactions undertaken
throughout the course of the relationship to ensure that
the transactions being conducted are consistent with the
covered

person’s knowledge of the customer, their business and
risk profile.

A covered person shall be required to undertake customer due
diligence when:

It establishes business relationship with any customer;

It undertakes any occasional but relevant business
transaction for any customer who has not otherwise
established relations with the covered person;

There is a suspicion of money laundering or terrorism
financing; or

There is doubt about the veracity or adequacy of
previously obtained customer identification data.

Customer due diligence shall be applied to all new customers. The
degree of diligence to be applied shall depend on the overall risk score
obtained by the customer based on the information provided during the
opening of the account. As a general rule, the following procedures

shall apply:

1. Reduced Due Diligence (RDD) shall be applied to customers
that are assessed as Low Risk. Whenever RDD is applied, the
following rules shall apply:

a. For individual customers, the account may only be opened
under the true and full name of the account owner or owners
and obtain the following minimum information at the time of
account opening:

(i) Name;

(i) Present Address;

(iif) Date and place of birth;

(iv)Nature of work, name of employer or nature of self-

employment/business;
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(v) At least one (1) valid photo-bearing ID issued by official
authority

(vi) Contact details;

(vii)  Specimen signature; and

(viii)  Source of funds

Obtain the following information after the account is opened,

but not to exceed 90 days:

() Permanent address;

(i) Nationality;

(iif) Tax Identification No. (TIN)

(iv)Name, present address, date and place of birth, nature of
work and source of funds of beneficial owner or
beneficiary, whenever applicable.

. For corporate, partnership and sole proprietorship entities,

the Bank shall develop a systematic procedure for identifying
corporate, partnership and sole proprietorship entities as
well as the stockholders/partners/owners, directors, officers
and authorized signatory of these entities. It shall obtain the
following minimum information and/or documents before
establishing business relationships:

(i) Certificate of Registration issued by Department of Trade
& Industry for single proprietors, or by the Securities
and Exchange Commission, for corporations and
partnerships, and by the BSP, for money
changers/foreign exchange dealers and remittance
agents

(ii) Articles of Incorporation or Association and By-Laws

(iif) Principal business address

(iv)Board or Partner's Resolution duly certified by the
Corporate/Partners’  Secretary  authorizing the
signatory to sign on behalf of the entity

(v) Latest General Information Sheet which lists the names
of directors/partners, principal stockholders owning at
least twenty percent (20%) of the outstanding capital
stock and primary officers such as the President and
Treasurer

(vi)At least one (1) valid photo-bearing ID issued by official
authority for each of the authorized signatories

(vii) Contact numbers of the entity and authorized
signatory/ies
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(viii)  Source of funds and nature of business

(ix) Name, present address, date and place of birth, nature of
work and source of funds of beneficial owner or
beneficiary, if applicable

2. Average Due Diligence (ADD) shall be applied to customers
that are assessed as normal risk. In applying average due
diligence, the Bank shall obtain, at the time of account opening,
the preceding requirements and confirming this information with
at least two (2) valid identification documents.

3. Enhanced Due Diligence (EDD) shall be applied to customers
that are assessed as high risk for money laundering and
terrorist financing. Whenever enhanced due diligence is applied
as required by the Rules or covered by the bank’s customer
acceptance policy, the bank shall, in addition to profiling of
customers and monitoring of their transactions, do the following:

a. Gather additional customer information and/or identification
documents, other than the minimum information and/or
documents required for the conduct of average due diligence
as enumerated under Subsec. X806.2/4806Q.2:

() In cases of individual customers,

e Supporting information on the intended nature
of the Dbusiness relationship/source of
funds/source of wealth (such as financial
profile, ITR, Loan Application, Deed of
Donation, Deed of Sale, etc.);

e Reasons for intended or performed
transactions;

e List of companies where he is a stockholder,
director, officer, or authorized signatory;

e Other relevant information available through
public databases or internet; and

e A list of banks where the individual has
maintained or is maintaining an account.

(ii) In case of entities:
e Prior or existing bank references;
e The name, present address, nationality, date of
birth, nature or work, contact number and
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source of funds of each of the primary officers
(e.g. President, Treasurer)

e Volume of assets, other information available
through public databases or internet and
supporting information on the intended nature
of the business relationship, source of funds or
source of wealth of the customer (ITR, Audited
Financial Statement, Loan Application, Deed of
Donation, Deed of Sale etc.); and

e Reasons for intended or performed
transactions.

b. Conduct the following minimum validation procedures:

(i) Confirm the date of birth from a duly authenticated official
document

(i) Verifying the permanent address through evaluation of
utility bills, bank or credit card statement or other
documents showing permanent address of through
on-site visitation

(iif) Contact the customer by phone, email or letter

(iv) Determine the authenticity of the identification documents
through validation of its issuance by requesting a
certification from the issuing authority or by any other
means.

For corporate or juridical entities, validation procedures shall
include but is not limited to the following:

(i) Require the submission of audited financial statements
conducted by a reputable accounting/auditing firm

(i) Inquire from the supervising authority the status of the
entity

(iif) Obtain bank references

(iv) On-site visit of the company

(v) Contact the entity by phone, email or letter

c. Secure senior management approval to commence or
continue business relationship/transacting with the customer;

d. Conduct enhanced ongoing monitoring of the business
relationship, by, among others, increasing the number and
timing of controls applied, and selecting patterns of
transactions that need further examination;
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e. Require the first payment to be carried out through an
account in the customer's name with a bank subject to
similar Customer Due Diligence standards, where
applicable; and

f. Perform such other measures as the covered person may
deem reasonable or necessary.

Where additional information cannot be obtained, or any information or
document provided is false or falsified, or result of the validation process is
unsatisfactory, the covered person shall deny banking relationship with the
customer without prejudice to the reporting of a suspicious transaction to
the AMLC when circumstances warrant.

V. MINIMUM _VALIDATION PROCEDURES (ENHANCE DUE

DILIGENCE)

Aside from requiring face-to-face contact between the Banks
authorized personnel and the potential customer, the following
validation procedures for individual customers shall be applied:

1.

w

5.

Confirming the date of birth from a duly authenticated official
document;

Verifying the address through evaluation of utility bills, bank or
credit card statement, sending thank you letters, or other
documents showing address or through on-site-visitation;
Contacting the customer by phone or email;

Determining the authenticity of the identification documents through
validation of its issuance by requesting a certification form the
issuing authority or by any other effective and reliable means; or
Determining the veracity of the declared source of funds.

For corporate or juridical entities, validation procedure shall include but
is not limited to the following:

1.

no

Validating source of funds or source of wealth from reliable
documents such as audited financial statements, ITR, bank
references, etc.;

Inquiring from the supervising authority the status of the entity;
Verifying the address through on-site visitation of the company,
sending thank you letters, or other documents showing address; or
Contacting the entity by phone or email.
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VI.VALID IDENTIFICATION DOCUMENTS

(A) Customers and the authorized signatory/ies of a corporate juridical
entity who engage in a financial transaction with the bank for the first
time shall be required to present the original and submit a clear copy of
at least one (1) valid photo-bearing ID document issued by official
authority. An Official authority refers to any of the following

Government of the Republic of the Philippines;

Its political subdivisions and instrumentalities;

GOCCs; and

Private entities or institutions registered with or supervised or
regulated either by the BSP, SEC or IC

The following are accepted valid ID by the bank:

Passport including those issued by foreign governments
PHILSYS ID

Driver’s License

PRC ID

NBI clearance

Police Clearance

Postal ID

Voter's ID

Tax ldentification Number

. Barangay certification

. GSIS e-card

. SSS Card

. Senior Citizen card

. OWW ID

. OFW ID

. Seaman’s book

. Alien Certification of Registration/Immigrant Certificate of

Registration

. Government office and GOCC (e.g. AFP, HDMF IDs)
. Certification from the NCWDP

. DSWD certification

. IBP ID

MARINA ID

. Company IDs issued by private entities or institutions registered

with or supervised or regulated either by the BSP, SEC or IC.

Minimum customer information for corporation:

Name of corporation;
Proof of incorporation/creation/registration;
Current status of its legal existence;
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Address

By-laws or other document stating the powers of its officers;

List of directors/senior officers;

List of owners having twenty percent (20%) or more ownership

and/or voting rights;

e Board resolution or other document appointing a resident
individual to represent the corporation and made accountable to
competent authorities

e Legal arrangements entered into by the corporation with other

persons, including the legal owners, and such contracts,

certificates and other documents evidencing these legal
arrangements and the capabilities, duties, and responsibilities
defining the relationships.

(B) Students who are beneficiaries of remittances/fund transfers and who
are not yet voting age, may be allowed to present the original and
submit a clear copy of one (1) valid photo-bearing school ID duly
signed by the principal or head of the school.

(C)Where the customer or authorized signatory is a non-Philippine
resident, similar IDs duly issued by the foreign government where the
customer is a resident or a citizen may be presented.

(D)The bank shall require their customers or authorized signatory to
submit a clear copy of at least two (2) valid IDs at the commencement
of business relationship. They shall require their clients to submit an
updated photo and other relevant information on the basis of risk and
materiality.

(E) The bank may classify identification documents based on its reliability
and ability to validate the information indicated in the identification
document with that provided by the customer.

(F) Whenever it deems necessary, the bank may accept other IDs not
enumerated above provided that it shall not be the sole means of
identification.

(G)In case the identification documents mentioned above or other
identification documents acceptable to the covered institution do not
bear any photo of the customer or authorized signatory, or the photo
bearing ID or a copy thereof does not clearly show the face of the
customer or authorized signatory, the bank may utilize its own
technology to take the photo of the customer or authorized signatory.
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VIl. COVERED AND SUSPICIOUS TRANSACTION REPORTING

1. All covered and suspicious transactions (CTR/STR) shall be prepared
by the Frontline employee, verified by the Bank’s Compliance Officer
and electronically reported by the Chief Accounting Head, in
accordance with the reporting procedure, to the AMLC within five (5)
working days (in the case of the covered transactions), unless the
AMLC prescribes a different period not exceeding fifteen (15) working
days, from occurrence thereof. By definition in accordance with BSP
Cir. 706, a Covered Transaction (CT) is a transaction in cash or other
equivalent monetary instrument covering a total amount in excess of
Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (P500, 000) within one (1) banking day.
On the other hand, a Suspicious Transaction (ST) are transactions with
covered institutions, regardless of the amount involved, where any of
the following circumstances exist:

a. There is no underlying legal or trade obligation, purpose or
economic justification;
b. The client is not properly identified;

C. The amount involved is not commensurate with the business or
financial capacity of the client;
d. Taking into account all known circumstances, it may be

perceived that the client transaction is structured in order to
avoid being the subject of reporting requirements under the
AMLA, as amended,;

e. Any circumstance relating to the transaction which is observed
to deviate from the profile of the client’s past transactions with
the covered institution;

f. The transaction is in any way related to an unlawful activity or
any money laundering activity or offense under the AMLA, as
amended, that is about to be, is being or has been committed;

or
g. Any transaction that is similar or analogous to any of the
foregoing.

2. Should a transaction be determined to be both a covered and
suspicious transaction, the Bank shall report the same as suspicious
transaction.

For suspicious transactions, “occurrence” refers to the date of
determination of the suspicious nature of the transaction, which
determination should be made not exceeding ten (10) calendar days
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from the date of transaction. However, if the transaction is in any way
related to, or the person transacting is involved in or connected to,
unlawful activity or money laundering offense, the 10 day period for
determination shall be reckoned from the date covered person knew or
should have known the suspicious transaction indicator.

3. The following non-cash, no/low risk covered transactions shall not be
reported by the Bank to the AMLC:

0] Transactions between the Bank and the BSP;

(i) Transaction between the Bank and its domestic depository
banks;

(i) Internal operating expenses of the Bank;

(iv)  Transaction involving transfer of funds from one deposit account
to another deposit account of the same person within the Bank;

(v) Roll-overs of placements of time deposit; and

(vi)  Payment of loan and/or its corresponding interest regardless of
the manner of payment (cash, fund transfer, debit of account,
check), provided that the grant of loan was previously reported
as covered transaction;

(vii)  Reclassification of loan to Real and other Properties Acquired
(ROPA); provided that the loan availment was previously
reported,;

(viii) Installment or partial payment in the sale of ROPA, provided
that the total selling price of the ROPA in excess of P500,000.00
was reported at the time of the execution to sell or sales
contract receivable, or deed of sale;

(ix)  Loan repricing, loan renewal, loan restructuring, provided that
there is no change in borrower’s name, otherwise, the loan shall
be considered as new loan, hence, reportable;

(x)  Agrarian Reform Receivables;

(xiy  Payment for agricultural lands under the Agrarian Reform Law.

4. A spurious check - refers to a document having the appearance of a
check or similar documents, but is actually a fake or counterfeit
document. It may also refer to a genuine check or similar documents
that is materially altered or falsified. In a case where a client deposits a
spurious check to a bank that has not clearing facilities, a presenting
bank necessarily takes the place of the depository bank to present the
check to the drawee bank for clearing purposes.

5. Manual monitoring — The bank does not have an electronic system
flagging and monitoring transactions but we shall ensure that it has the
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means of flagging and monitoring the transactions. We maintain a
register of all STs that have been brought to the attention of Senior
Management whether or not the same was reported to the AMLC.
CTRs’ are automatically reported by our personnel handling it,
following the maker-checker concept.

6. Electronic Submission of reports — The CTR and STR shall be
submitted to AMLC in a secured manner, in electronic form and in
accordance with the reporting procedures prescribed by the AMLC.
The bank shall provide complete and accurate information of all the
mandatory fields required in the report. In order to provide accurate
information, the bank shall regularly update customer identification
information at least once every three (3) years.

7. Pursuant to AMLC Resolution No. 10-C dated 24 January 2013, the
Bank adopted the following policies in the data collection system:

7.1 Reporting of Covered and Suspicious Transaction reports
(CTRs/STRS)

The requirement on the submission of reports under R.A. No. 9160, as
amended, otherwise known as the Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA)
of 2001, pertains to transactions initiated by the customers of the bank.
The bank may be considered a customer if it transacts business with
another covered institutions. In such case, the latter shall file a
CTR/STR on the former’s transactions, except those covered under
Resolution No. 10, Series of 2013, on “no risk/low risk” covered
transactions.

The sale of Real and other Properties Acquired (ROPA) shall be
reported at the time of the execution of the Contract to Sell, or any
similar contract, in the amount of the total contract price. Any
installment payments, and the subsequent execution of a Deed of
Absolute Sale and issuance of a new Transfer Certificate of Title (TCT)
to the buyer need not be reported.

Transactions lodged under Contingent accounts pending settlement
or maturity thereof shall be reported only at the time such transactions
are actually settled, or have matured, or availed of.

7.2 Report Format

A single report format using Format 1.0 in CTRs/STRs, which format
shall be shall be adopted. The Mandatory Fields, as determined by the
Secretariat, shall be strictly filled-up.

Moreover, the following additional fields shall be incorporated in the
new format:
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a. Beneficiary account number;
b. Nationality; and
c. Place of Birth

8. Exemption from Bank Secrecy Laws — When reporting covered or
suspicious transactions to the AMLC, the bank and the officers and
employees shall not be deemed to have violated Republic Act No.
1405, as amended, Republic Act No. 6426, as amended, and other
similar laws, but are prohibited from communicating directly or
indirectly, in any manner or by any means, to any person, the fact that
a covered or suspicious transaction report was made, the contents
thereof, or any other information in relation thereto. In case of violation
thereof, the concerned officer and employee of the bank shall be
criminally liable in accordance with the provisions of the AMLA, as
amended.

9. Confidentiality Provision — When reporting CTs and STs to the
AMLC, the bank’s directors, officers and employees are prohibited
from communicating directly or indirectly, in any manner or by any
means, to any person or entity, the media, the fact that a covered or
suspicious transaction report was made, the contents thereof, or any
other information in relation thereto. Neither may such reporting be
published or aired in any manner or form by the mass media,
electronic mail, or other similar devices. In case of violation thereof, the
concerned officer and employee of the bank and media shall be held
criminally liable.

10.Safe Harbor Provision — No administrative, criminal or civil
proceedings, shall lie against any person for having made a CTR or an
STR in the regular performance of his duties in good faith, whether or
not such reporting results in any criminal prosecution under AMLA.

VIIl. IMPLEMENTATION OF FREEZE ORDER

Contemplated actions of covered persons in effecting and
implementing Account Freeze Order and Targeted Financial Sanctions
under R.A. 10167 (amendments to Secs. 10 and 11 of R.A. 9160 or
the AMLA of 2001).

What is a Freeze Order (F.0.)?

A freeze order covers a main account, which the AMLC and
Court of
Appeals determined, there is a probable cause that it is related to
money laundering and terrorist financing. On the other hand, related
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or materially linked accounts are determined by covered persons in
compliance with the Freeze Order.

- Observe the filing of returns and to consider the start of the 20
days effectivity of freeze order, from the time the accounts are
actually frozen;

- Per implementing rules and regulations, written returns with
pertinent details on an account should be submitted to the
AMLC and the Court of Appeals (CA) within 24 hours since a
particular account is frozen.

- A complete written return should include the account number;
names of the account holder/s; amount in the account at the
time it was frozen; all relevant information pertaining to the
nature of the account or property; any information on related
accounts or property associated or connected to the frozen
account or asset, and the time when the freeze order took effect.

Failure to immediately freeze accounts upon receipt of a freeze
order is considered grave violation under R.A. 9160 or the
AMLA of 2001, as amended. Attached hereto is the said
advisory from AMLC: indicating the penalties for failure; late
implementation, delayed submission of returns.

IX. DIGITIZATION OF CUSTOMER RECORDS

A. Customer records shall refer to:

1. Those obtained by covered persons to establish the true and full
identity of customers in accordance with their Customer Due Diligence
(CDD) policies and procedures, such as customer information files
where the customers provide minimum information; copies or records
of official identification documents or similar documents, establishing
the true and full identity of customers; account files and business
correspondence, including the results of any analysis undertaken, such
as inquiries, to establish the background and purpose of complex,
unusually large transactions, collectively referred to as CDD records or
CDD documents;

2. Account transaction histories or statements of accounts, whether in the
Philippine pesos or other currency.

Page 62 of 250



PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 63

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

B. Duties of covered persons:

Act promptly, and treat with utmost confidentiality all requests
for information and/or documents, as well as orders, to provide
customer records pursuant to the AMLC’s functions to
investigate or conduct bank inquiry;

Digitize all customer records in accordance with the timelines
set, including those pertaining to accounts existing prior to
implementation period thereof, but excluding customer records
of closed accounts beyond the five (5) year record-keeping
requirement of the AMLA,;

Develop a central database of customer records to be
maintained in head office and branches and authorize the
Compliance Officer to have direct, immediate, and unimpeded
access to the database;

Ensure compliance with prevailing laws related to data privacy,
data protection and security in developing database and
adoption of retrieval procedures;

Keep all required customer records in central databases, in
such forms as may be admissible in court or as may be
prescribed by the AMLC,;

C. Submission of Digitized Customer Records to the AMLC

The customer records extracted from the covered person’s
central database shall be completely, accurately and timely
submitted to the AMLC’s FTRF, using log-on credentials, given
by the AMLC.

X. RECORD KEEPING AND RETENTION

(A) The Bank shall maintain and safely store all customer identification
records as long as the account exists.

(B) The Bank shall maintain and safely store all transaction records,
including all unusual or suspicious patterns or account activity whether
or not an STR was filed with the AMLC, for five (5) years from the date
of transaction.
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(C)Records and files maintained and safely stored by the Bank shall
contain the full and true identity of the owners or holders of the
accounts involves and arranged in an orderly manner. The following
are identification and relevant documents to be kept by the Bank:

e Signature Card/Customer Information File

e Photocopy of Valid IDs

e |D Pictures

e Deposit Agreement Form/Terms & Condition

e Correspondences and other pertinent documents

(D)Closed accounts record on customer identification, accounts files and
business correspondences, shall be preserved and safely stored for at
least five (5) years from the date of closure.

(E) Records of money laundering cases filed in the court shall be retained
beyond the five (5) year retention period until it is confirmed that the
case has been finally resolved or terminated by the court.

(F) The Bank designates the Branch Manager and Cashier/Teller as joint
custodians of all records and documents required to be retained by the
AMLA. They shall responsible and accountable in making these
documents available without delay during BSP regular or special
examinations.

XI.UPDATING OF DEPOSITOR RECORD

As a matter of policy, depositor records shall be updated every
three (3) years, except when there is imminent need to update the record
immediately, such as, but not limited to the following situations:

1. Change in name/account name

1.1Due to change in marital status — the Cashier shall require the
depositor to submit a certified true copy of the marriage contract
and updated valid ID (if already available) and accomplish the
“Customer Account Maintenance Form”. In accomplishing the
CAMF, all the co-depositors, in the case of a joint account, shall
sign to signify their conformity in the changes to be made in the
account. A new set of CIF/SSC is prepared by the Cashier and
follow the procedure in accomplishing the form, as applicable.

1.2When there is a court order — the depositor is required to submit
certified true copy of the court order and updated valid ID and
follow the procedure mentioned in 1.1.
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2. Change in address — the depositor is required to submit document
showing his/her new address e.g., utility bill, other documents showing the
new address. The procedure in accomplishing the form is then followed,
as applicable.

3. Updating of client specimen signature — update is imminent when there is
a deviation in the current signature e.g., change in name, as compared
with the specimen signature on file. In which case, the Teller, with the
approval of the Cashier or Manager, shall require the client to provide a
new set of specimen signature and attached to the CIF/SSC already on
file.

4. Amendments and changes in account type — The cashier shall require the
depositor to accomplished the “Customer Account Maintenance Form”
and indicate the nature of the request amendment/s/change/s in account
type. In the case of joint account, all the co-depositors shall affix their
signature in the CAMF to signify their approval/conformity with such
amendment/s/change/s to be made to the account. A new set of CIF/SSC
is prepared by the Cashier and follow the procedure in accomplishing the
form, as applicable.

5. No update or alteration is allowed on the records of depositors involving
associations, partnerships, and juridical parties without the express and
written consent from all the authorized signatories therein. The following
shall be required before update is allowed on these types of accounts:

a. Association
® Board Resolution or notarized minutes of general membership
or governing body certified by its Secretary stating the authority
to update the account;
(i) Pertinent documents required for the update, as follows:
1. Valid IDs of Authorized Signatory/ies
2. Latest picture of Authorized Signatory/ies
3. Updated Articles and By-Laws of Association or Certificate
of Registration, if any
b. Partnership
0] Duly notarized Partnership Resolution authorizing the update to
be made on the account;
(i) Required updated documents as follows:

1. Valid IDs of Authorized Signatory/ies

2. Latest picture of Authorized Signatory/ies

3. Certified true copy of Articles of Co-Partnership, DTI/SEC
Cert. of Registration, Partnership Agreement (If update is
needed)
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XIl.

c. Juridical Parties (Corporation)

0] Duly notarized Board Resolution or Secretary’s Certificate
approved by the Board of Directors stating the authority to
update the corporate account;

(i) Documentary requirements necessary for the update, as
follows:

1. Valid IDs of Authorized Signatory/ies

2. Latest picture of Authorized Signatoryl/ies

3. Certified true copy of Articles of Incorporation, Corporate By-
Laws with SEC Cert. of Filing (If update is needed)

STAFF TRAINING PROGRAM

The Bank believes that creating a compliance and control culture
among its directors and responsible officers and employees is the best
tool to combat money laundering. Therefore, there’s an ongoing effort to
promote staff training, development and awareness programs around the
many aspects that comprise the laundering of criminal proceeds and
terrorist financing.

(A) Induction Course
This course aims to inform newly hired employees about the
policies and procedures related to the prevention against money
laundering as well as raising awareness about the risks for the Bank
being used for the fulfillment of these illegal purposes. This course must
be conducted within 60 days of the date of beginning of employment.

(B) Periodic Courses (On-site or outsource seminar/training)

(C)There will be at least one AML course a year, for all the Bank’s officers
and employees to attend. This course will also cover AML updates
available. The HR Head, in coordination with the Compliance Officer,
shall develop an annual training program, taking into consideration the
need for bank staff to undergo AML training and the availability and
viability of such training.

(D) Refresher Course
Staff must always be updated about existing regulation. In order to do,
all officers and staff are required to undergo refresher course on a per
need basis. Front office employees (handling cash and loan
transactions) shall have the first priority in taking refresher course.

(E) Course Subjects
Staff in our Bank shall be trained in the following areas:
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XIII.

Trends in the prevention of money laundering

Domestic legal framework and regulations

Client Identification Program

Know Your customer Program

Customer’s Risk Profiling

Decentralized Monitoring of Transactions

Covered and Suspicious Transaction Detection and Reporting
Money laundering and Terrorist Financing Methodologies

S@"ea0ow

INDEPENDENT REVIEW

An independent review of this Manual must be conducted annually.
The Internal Audit Department shall be in charge of the review. The
review shall include an evaluation of the policies and procedures of this
Manual.

The review shall include an opinion as to the adequacy and
implementation of the policies and procedures adopted by the bank to
prevent the institution from being used for laundering funds coming from
criminal activities or for terrorist financing. The review must point out the
deficiencies or omissions that are considered important, and it must make
recommendations for resolving these issues and adopting corrective
measures. The Internal Auditor shall report the result of AML audit report
directly and independently to the Board-Level Audit Committee.
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ORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
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E. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Powers/Corporate powers of the board of directors. The corporate

powers of an institution shall be exercised, its business conducted, and all

its resources controlled through its board of directors. The powers of the

board of directors as conferred by law are original and cannot be revoked

by the stockholders.

The directors shall hold their office charged with the duty to exercise
sound and objective judgment for the best interest of institution.

1. Composition of the board of directors:

The corporate powers of the Corporation shall be vested in and
exercised, its business conducted, and its property controlled by a

Board composed of five (5) Directors.

The director who shall be elected at the annual meeting of the
stockholders shall hold office for a term of one (1) year and until their

successors shall have been duly elected and qualified.

Vacancies occurring in the Board, for any cause other than removal,

shall be filled for the unexpired term in the following manners: (a.) a
single vacancy, by the vote of the majority of the remaining directors;
(b.) more than one vacancy, or even a single vacancy when the
remaining directors cannot agree on who would fill the same, by the
stockholders at a special meeting to be called for that purpose as soon

as practicable.

PANGASINAN BANK (A Rural Bank), INC.
List of Board of Directors
As of December 31, 2023

Principal No. of No. of Percent
Name Type Stockholder yrs. as Shares to Total
Director Held Shares
Mr. Romualdo Patrick F. Chairman Siapno Family 21 6,262 1.25
Siapno
Arch. Mark Joseph F. Siapno | Director Siapno Family 21 5,956 1.19
Anne Q. De Guzman Director De Guzman 11 3,377 0.68
Family
Dennis N. Calimlim Director Calimlim Family 21 6,750 1.35
Atty. Gerald Z. Gubatan Independent Gubatan Family 5 9,991 2.00
Director
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2. Qualification of a director:

A director shall have the following minimum qualifications:

(1). He must be fit and proper for the position of a director. In
determining whether a person is fit and proper for the position of a
director, the following matters must be considered: integrity/probity,
physical/mental fitness; relevant education/financial literacy/training;
possession of competencies relevant to the job, such as knowledge
and experience, skills, diligence and independence of mind; and
sufficiency of time to fully carry out responsibilities.

In assessing a director’s integrity/probity, consideration shall be
given to the director's market reputation, observed conduct and
behavior, as well as his ability to continuously comply with company
policies and applicable laws and regulations, including market conduct
rules, and the relevant requirements and standard of any regulatory
body, professional body, clearing house or exchange, or government
and any of its instrumentalities/agencies.

(2.) He must have attended a seminar on corporate governance for
board of directors.

Independent and non-executive directors

In selecting independent and non-executive directors, the
number and types of entities where the candidate is likewise elected as
such, shall be considered to ensure that he will be able to devote
sufficient time to effectively carry his duties and responsibilities. In this
regard, the following shall apply:

(1.) A non-executive director may concurrently serve as director
in a maximum of five (5) publicly listed companies. In applying this
provision to concurrent directorship in entities within a
conglomerate, each entity where the non-executive director is
concurrently serving as director shall be separately considered in
assessing compliance with this requirement;

(2.) Anindependent director of a bank may only serve as such for a
maximum cumulative term of nine (9) years. After which, the
independent director shall be perpetually barred from serving as
independent director in the same bank, but may continue to serve
as regular director. The nine (9) year maximum cumulative term for
independent director’s hall be reckoned from 2012.

Members of the board of directors shall not be appointed as Corporate
Secretary or Chief Compliance Officer.
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3. Chairperson of the board of directors:

e Roles of the Chairperson of the board of directors. The
Chairperson of the board of directors shall provide leadership in the
board of directors. He shall ensure effective functioning of the board of
directors, including maintaining a relationship of trust with members of
the board of directors. He shall:

(1.) ensure that the meeting agenda focuses on strategic matters
including discussion on risk appetites, and key governance concerns;
(2.) ensure a sound decision-making process;

(3.) encourage and promote critical discussion;

(4.) ensure that dissenting views can be expressed and discussed
within the decision-making process;

(5.) ensure that members of the board of directors received accurate,
timely, and relevant information;

(6.) ensure the conduct of proper orientation for first-time directors and
provide training opportunities for all directors;

(7.) ensure conduct of performance evaluation of the board of directors
at least once a year.

Qualifications of the chairperson of the board of directors. To
promote checks and balances, the chairperson of the board of directors
shall be a non-executive director or an independent director, and must not
have served as CEO of the bank within the past three (3) years. The
positions of chairperson and CEO shall not be held by one (1) person.

4. Board of Directors Meeting:

The meetings of the board of directors may be conducted through modern
technologies such as, but not limited to teleconferencing and video
conferencing as long as the director who is taking part in said meetings
can actively participate in the deliberation on matters taken up therein:
Provided, that every member of the board of directors shall participate in
at least fifty percent (50%) and shall physically attend at least twenty five
(25%) of all meetings of the board of directors every year: Provided further,
that the absence of a director in more than fifty percent (50%) of all regular
and special meetings of the board of directors during his/her incumbency
is a ground for disqualification in the succeeding election.

The Board of Directors shall hold a regular meeting at least once a month,

on such date and at such time and place, as may be fixed by resolution of
the Board, without other or further notice than resolution.
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The Board of Directors can approve via an Information and
Communication Technology (ICT) virtual platform (group chat/messenger)
that allows it to easily and quickly exchange opinion/ideas especially for
loan approvals that are in the P1.5M and above range; particularly when
it/they need to be acted upon immediately, but are not within the time
frame of the scheduled regular monthly meeting.

This policy will be implemented to facilitate the fast approval of loans and
in order to maintain the competitiveness of the bank, relative to speedy
loan approvals.

Special meeting of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the
Chairman or by a written request of any three (3) Directors, and shall be
held at the Head Office of the Corporation, or at such place and time as
may be agreed upon by the majority of the Directors

Notice needs be given as a regular meeting of the Board. Notice of any
meeting shall state the date, time and place thereof, and the purpose or
purposes for which it is called. Such notice shall be deemed complete
upon its delivery to the place of residence, or the business address of the
Directors, at least one (1) day before the date of the meeting or upon its
being delivered to the Post Office, property addressed and postage
prepaid in time for it to reach the Director, at least one (1) day before the
meeting. However, when urgency of the meeting so requires, the
Chairman may authorize the Secretary to give the Directors notice by
telephone, or other expedition means, and such notice shall in all respects
be as effective as notice in writing. Notice of the meeting shall be deemed
a waiver of any failure, defect or irregularity of the meetings’ notice.

A quorum at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall consist of the
majority of the Directors, less than a quorum may adjourn any meeting
from time to time, and the meeting may be adjourned without further
notice; and unless there be a quorum, no business may be transacted. A
majority of such quorum shall decide every question or matter submitted
to the Board at any such meeting.

At any meeting of the Board, the following order of business shall be
observed:

Opening of the meeting by the Chairman;

Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes;

Reports of the officers and committees;

Unfinished business;

New business

Adjournment

VVVVVY
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PANGASINAN BANK (A Rural Bank), INC.
Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings
As of December 31, 2023

Name of Difeclors Board Number of Meetings Audit Committee
Attended % Attended %

Mr. Romualdo Patrick F. Siapno 10 91 na na
Arch. Mark Joseph F. Siapno 10 91 3 75%
Anne Q. de Guzman 11 100 na na
Atty. Gerald Z. Gubatan 10 91 3 75%
Dennis N. Calimlim 10 91 4 100

5. Specific duties and responsibilities of the board of directors

The board of directors is primarily responsible for defining the bank’s vision
and mission. The board of directors has the fiduciary responsibility to the
bank and all its shareholders including minority shareholders. It shall approve
and oversee the implementation of strategies to achieve corporate objectives.
It shall also approve and oversee the implementation of the risk governance
framework and the systems of check and balances. It shall establish a sound
corporate governance framework. The board of directors shall approve the
selection of the CEO and key members of senior management and control
functions and oversee their performance.

e The board of directors shall define the bank’s corporate culture and
values.

e The board of directors shall be responsible for approving the bank’s
objectives and strategies and in overseeing management’s
implementation.

e The board of directors shall be responsible for the
appointment/selection of key members of senior management and
heads of control functions and for the approval of a sound
remuneration and other incentives policy of personnel

e The board of directors shall be responsible for approving and
overseeing implementation of the bank’s corporate governance
framework.

e The board of directors shall be responsible for approving the bank’s
risk governance framework and overseeing management’s
implementation thereof.
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6. Specific duties and responsibilities of a director

The position of a director is a position of trust. A director assumes
certain responsibilities to different constituencies or stakeholders, its
stockholders, its depositors.

To remain fit and proper for the position for the duration of his term;

To conduct fair business transactions with the bank and to ensure that
personal interest does not bias board decisions;

To act honestly and in good faith, with loyalty and in the best interest of
the institution, its stockholders, regardless of the amount of their
stockholdings, and other stakeholders such as its depositors, investors,
borrowers, other clients and the general public;

To devote time and attention necessary to properly discharge their
duties and responsibilities;

To act judiciously;

To contribute significantly to the decision-making process of the board;

To exercise independent judgment;

To have working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory
requirements affecting the institution, including the content of its
articles of incorporation and by-laws, the requirements of the Bangko
Sentral and where applicable, the requirements of other regulatory
agencies;

To observe confidentiality

BOARD-LEVEL COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE. The Audit Committee shall be composed of members of the
board of directors, at least one (1) of whom shall be independent director, including
the Chairman, preferably with accounting, auditing or related financial management
expertise. Duties and responsibilities are the following:

a. The Audit Committee will oversee the bank’s financial reporting and
control as well as the internal and external audit activities.

b. It will be responsible for the setting up of the internal audit department
and for the appointment of the internal auditor as well as the independent
external auditor who will both report directly to the committee.

c. It will monitor and evaluate/review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system, including financial, operational and compliance
control and risk management; seeing to it that the latter is conducted
quarterly.

d. Effective and active supervision of the compliance function by diligently
guiding the Chief Compliance Officer in the conduct of regular updates on
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the compliance program, and monitor of Bank’s compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

e. The audit committee shall have an explicit authority to look into any
matter within its terms of preference. It shall have full access to and
cooperation of the management, as well as the full discretion to invite any
director or executive officer to attend its meetings.

f. The Audit Committee shall have the full responsibility in monitoring and
overseeing the over-all functions of the Credit Risk Review Officer
(CRRO). The CRRO will report to the Audit Committee functionally and
to the President administratively. The administrative functions of the
CRRO to the President includes but not limited to:

» Preparing, organizing and maintaining reports and
communications between her unit and the branches/senior
management;

» Communicating results of loan reviews, stress tests required
from her end to the senior management and/or other
employees;

» Scheduling appointments for supervisors, clients and
scheduling of in-offices meetings or conferences with
employees;

» Performing research projects for the senior management
related to credit/loan evaluation;

» To clearly and concisely relay information to others: senior
management, employees and clients.

g. The Audit Committee shall convene quarterly at every 3 Monday of the
following month of the quarter.

OFFICERS

Qualifications of an officer. An officer must be fit and proper for the
position he is being appointed to. In determining whether a person is fit
and proper for a particular position, the following matters must be
considered:  integrity/probity, education/training, and possession of
competencies relevant to the function such as knowledge and experience,
skills and diligence.

In assessing an officer’s integrity/probity, consideration shall be given to
the officer's market reputation, observed conduct and behavior, as well as
his ability to continuously comply with company policies and applicable
laws and regulations, including market conduct rules, and the relevant
requirements and standards of any regulatory and professional body.

Duties and responsibilities of officers
(1. To set the tone of good governance from the top;
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(2.) To oversee the day-to-day management of the bank;

(3.) To ensure that duties are effectively delegated to the staff and
to establish a management structure that promotes accountability and
transparency;

4.) To promote and strengthen checks and balances systems in the
bank;

(5.) To ensure that the company’s policies, procedures and
processes are properly implemented and observed.

Description of the Role and Contribution of Executive, Non-

Executive and Independent Directors, and of the Chairman of the

Board.

a. THE CHAIRMAN. The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of
the Board of Directors, in his absence or inability to do so, the meeting shall
be presided over by the Vice Chairman, or other Officers to whom this power
may have been delegated by the Chairman. The Chairman of the Board shall
have such other powers as may be prescribed by the Board.

b. THE VICE CHAIRMAN. The Vice Chairman shall have such powers and
perform such duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time
prescribe and as may be delegated to him by the Chairman. In the absence
of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall act in his stead and shall perform
any and all such powers and duties pertaining to the office.

c. THE PRESIDENT. The President who shall be elected from among the
Directors, shall be the Chief Executive officer of the Corporation. Aside from
those which may have been assigned to him by the Board, his powers and
duties shall include the following:

e To direct the implementation of the policies of the Board, and
report to it and the stockholders on all matters concerning the
affairs of the Corporation that may require action by them at
their respective meetings.

e To take active supervision and control over the property,
interest, business and affairs of the Corporation, and subject to
the approval of the Board, he may appoint, suspend or remove
any appointive officer or employee whenever in his judgment it
may become necessary to do so.

e To supervise, control and direct subordinate officers, agents
and employees in the discharge of their duties.

e To see to it that all officers, agents, employees, and other
personnel comply with the pertinent laws, as well as the
applicable rules and regulations of the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas and all other regulatory/supervisory bodies.

e To present to the Board of Directors at any regular or special
meeting or at such other times as it may require, a report on
the state of the business of the Corporation.
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e To attend meetings of the Board, and render such assistance
or advice as it may concerning the estate of the business of
the Corporation.

e To be responsible for the efficient management of the affairs of
the Corporation, to maintain harmonious relations between
management and the employees, see to it that the public in
general, and the clients of the corporation in particular, are
rendered prompt, courteous and efficient service, and to
develop and maintain sound public relations.

e The President may delegate to any officer any of his powers
and duties whenever in his judgment such delegation is
expedient and practicable.

d. THE VICE PRESIDENT. The Board of Directors may elect one or more Vice
Presidents who may not be members of the Board, whose powers and duties,
in general, shall be determined by the Board. In the absence or inability of
the President, the Board shall designate the Vice President, who should be a
member of the board of directors, to perform and discharge the powers and
duties of the office of the President. If the Vice Presidents are not members
of the Board, the Board shall designate who among the Board members shall
act in place of the President.

e. THE TREASURER. The Treasurer shall have the care and custody of the
funds, securities and properties of the Corporation. He shall deposit all
money and valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Corporation
in such banks, or trust companies, or with such bankers or other depositories
as the Board may from time to time designate, and any funds so deposited
shall be withdrawable only by checks or other instruments signed by duly
authorized officers of the Corporation as hereinafter provided. He shall
render to the Board of Directors and the President whenever required, an
account of the financial condition of the Corporation and of all his transactions
as Treasurer. He shall perform such other duties as the Board of Directors
may from time to time assign to him or are incident to his office. In the
absence of the Treasurer, or his inability to act, his duties shall be performed
by such person as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

f. THE SECRETARY. The Secretary who must be a citizen and resident of the
Philippines, shall have the following powers and duties:

o He shall keep accurate minutes of all meetings of the stockholder and
of the Board, and shall attend to the giving of all notices required by
these By-Laws to be given.

¢ He shall be custodian of the corporate seal, stock certificate books,
stock and transfer book, records, documents and papers of the
Corporation, prepare ballots for the annual elections and keep a
complete and up-to-date list of the stockholders and their addresses.
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e He shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him from
time to time by the Board of Directors of the President, and such other
duties incidental to his office.

o He shall also sign prepare such reports and statements as are
required by the Board and or the President.

o During the absence or inability of the Secretary, the Board shall select
the persons to act in his stead.

g. GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER. (The position in
place instead of Comptroller, as amended on 01-25-11 and confirmed on 02-
13-11). The General Manager/Chief Operating officer shall be the operating
head of the bank with the power to transact the general business of the bank.
He is responsible for the efficient and accurate execution of what the board of
directors decide upon. He supervises all the transaction between the bank
and customers through junior officers and employees. He provides
leadership and has to control the work of others. He has to ensure that the
best results are obtained from his own efforts and from those bank officers
and bank employees, he has tasked for being responsible.

In essence, the duties of the general manager are as follows:

e Plan, organize, coordinate and control all the financial and
administrative activities of the bank and to direct and supervise the
detailed operations of the bank.

e Establish and maintain adequate accounting system, provide periodic
financial and operating statements, and prepare budgets as
prescribed by the board of directors.

In specific terms, the duties of the general manager are as follows:

e Approve loan applications up to the amount delegated to him.

e Recommend the approval or disapproval of loan applications in
excess of the amount he could give to the credit committee.

See to it that all books of accounts are up-to-date and in balance.

e Sign or countersign checks or demand drafts when authorized by the
Board of Directors.

e See to it that an effective internal control system is installed and
maintained in order to prevent errors and frauds from being committed.

e Supervise the granting of loans, as well as follow up the collection of
accounts either in writing or in person and see to it that past due items,
if any, are within manageable levels.

e Approve payrolls as well as any disbursements for expenditures and
release of loan proceeds.

o See to it that all exceptions noted in the audit and examination of the
books and operations of the bank conducted by the Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas personnel and other supervisory bodies are corrected in
accordance with the instructions received.

o Certify such statements of financial condition, income statements,
reports, records and statistics as may be required by law, by the
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Monetary Board or requested by the President or the Board of
Directors.

Initiate and enforce measure and procedures relating to all accounting
matters including clerical and office methods, records, reports to the
end that the business of the Corporation shall be conducted in
accordance with law, lawful rules, regulations and directories of the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and with the maximum safety, efficiency
and economy.

Act as a budget director, and in conjunction with the other officers and
heads of departments, to prepare an annual budget covering all
activities of the Corporation, and to submit the same to the Board
before the calendar year begins.

Attend meetings of the Board of Directors and the standing
committees when so required by the Chairman or the Board and to
render such assistance and advice as the Chairman, President or
Board may desire concerning the books, accounts and system of
financial transactions of the Corporation, of all its branches, and of
any person, entity or Corporation in which the Corporation may be
interested.

In case of any defalcation, default, or dereliction of duty coming to his
knowledge at any time, to notify at once the Chairman and the
President.

In the absence of the General Manager or his inability to act, his
duties shall be performed by such person as may be designated by
the Board.

h. COMPLIANCE OFFICER. (Installation of Compliance Officer, as amended
on 01-25-11 and confirmed on 02-13-11). It is the bank’s discipline to stay
compliant with regulations on a going-concern basis that is essential to what
makes it a bank. His/her duties and responsibilities shall include the following:

In consultation with the Board of Directors and Board Officers,
prepares a Compliance Program for approval of the Board, and
thereafter, submit the same to the DRB, BSP.

Oversee and coordinate with the Board and Bank President the
implementation of Compliance Program.

Acquaint the Board members and the bank personnel with the
provisions of the Compliance Program.

Conduct regular updates orientation of the latest issuances, policies
rules and regulations issued by the regulatory institutions (BSP, PDIC,
SEC, BIR, DOLE, SSS, and DOF).

Build-up library of all relevant laws, rules, and regulations issued by
regulatory bodies.

Keep the library current and up-to-date be seeing to it that copies of
new laws and issuances of regulatory bodies, interpretations thereof,
amendments thereto and repeat revocation thereof are on file and
properly disseminated to the officers and employees of the bank.
Study each new law, rule or regulation with the following objectives:
(@) determination of the unit/group/department and personnel
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affected; (b) providing proper implementation guideline; (c)
identification of the risk of non-compliance thereof.

e Provide a vehicle for efficient dissemination of issuances, laws, rules
and regulations: (a) install system with which permanent laws, rules
and regulations together with their implementing guidelines and the
risks/consequences for non-compliance thereof are effectively
disseminated to acknowledged, and clearly understood by each and
every staff member of the bank; (b) conduct regular meetings and
seminar/workshops among the officers and staff on the proper
implementation of the guidelines and risk implications; (¢) maintain a
bulletin board and regularly post new issuances/implementing
guidelines for the information and guidance of all concerned; (d) adopt
an open communication system; (e) free flow of information should be
maintained and compliance related issues should be conveyed in a
complete and timely manner; (f) compliance issues should be brought
to the attention of the staff concerned as soon as possible for
immediate resolution in order to minimize risks/violations thereof.

o Regularly consult with appropriate regulatory agencies for additional
guidance on specific provisions of laws, rules and regulations and/or
discuss compliance findings with each agency, initiate dialogues
regarding borderline issues.

e Conduct annual competence assessment, future training needs and
introduce remedial action to correct/improve inadequate performance.

e Install compliance monitoring system in coordination with the Audit
Committee or Bank President to ensure that the directors, officers and
staff are familiar with the compliance program.

e Undertake periodic compliance review/monitoring and assessment of
each department/branch on a regular basis.

e Compliance officers should consult internal and external auditor of
any violation of laws, rules and regulation noted in their findings.

e Compliance Officer shall submit reports on the monitoring and
assessment to the President/Chairman of the Board of Directors to
document findings, issues, concerns and remedial/corrective
measures taken which report must be cleared and approved by the
department/unit head/branch managers before submitting the same to
the officers concerned.

e The Compliance Officer shall closely and religiously monitor the
following: (a) past due loans; (b) non-performing loans; (c) aging of
loans.

e The Compliance Officer should be familiar with the types/kinds of risks
the Bank is exposed to which are as follows: (a) credit risk; (b) market
risk; (c) interest risk; (d) foreign exchange risk; (e) liquidity risk; (f)
operational risk; (g) legal risk; (h) compliance risk.

e The Compliance Officer should be acquainted with the manner SAFr
is computed/evaluated: (a) Credit Risk; (b) Operational Risk; (c)
Market Conduct Risk; (d) Liquidity Risk; (e) Interest Rate Risk in the
Banking Book (IRRBB); (f) ML/TF/PF Risk; (g) Compliance (h)
Internal Audit; (i) Earnings; (j) Capital; (k) Liquidity; (1)
Governance.
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i. INTERNAL AUDITOR. (Installation of Internal Auditor, as amended on 01-
25-11 and confirmed on 01-13-11). The Internal Audit Section is being
tasked to assist in the financial and operational management of the company,
shall be responsible in conducting its activities in such manner, as to:

e provide the correct accountability;

e protect the company from losses and fraud, wastage and
extravagance;

o develop the necessary management information.

Its primary objective is to assist the management in achieving an
effective and efficient administration of its fiscal and operational functions.
This objective cover two phases:

e Protective - to protect the company’s interest, including the disclosure
of weaknesses and deficiencies in control standards needing
correction. To attain this objective, he/she must, (a) ascertain the
degree of reliability of the amounts and statistics; (b) ascertain the
extent to which the monies and properties are safeguarded from
losses of all kinds and are properly accounted for; (c) ascertain the
extent of compliance with the established policies, regulations, plans
and procedures.

e Constructive—the furtherance of the company’s interest, including the
recommendation of actions to improve its performance. To achieve
this objective, he/she needs to: (a) review and appraise the policies,
regulations, procedures and plans in the light of related date,
changing circumstances and other evidences having a bearing on
their effectiveness; (b) review and appraise the internal records of the
various units within the company in terms of their adequacy, efficiency
and effectiveness; (c) review and appraise the performance within the
framework of the policies, regulations, plans and procedures.

He/she has the authority to examine all the company’s records, books,
vouchers, files and properties necessary to carry out his/her work.
His/her examination and review shall in no way relieve the other persons
from their primary responsibilities assigned to them.

To carry out its work, its personnel shall institute and conduct an
independent review and appraisal of the accounting, financial and other
operational aspects of the company’s various organizational units.

As such, he/she shall conduct periodic audit and whenever necessary,
do special investigation of the records and operations of the company and
keep management informed of the irregularities and unsatisfactory
conditions discovered and other findings which may be of interest.

And in order to attain its objectives, internal audit personnel have to
report its findings and recommendations to the responsible officials of the
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company.

according to the circumstances.

These reports will be presented in writing or verbally,

He/she shall be directly responsible for the complete reporting in each
case, of all unsatisfactory conditions and deviations from the established
procedures to the management.

Additionally,

he/she is

also expected

to give

constructive

recommendations/suggestions regarding improvements of the procedures,
during the course of his/her work.

OTHER OFFICERS. The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers
as may be deemed necessary, provide their powers and duties, and fix their

compensation.

PANGASINAN BANK (A Rural Bank), INC.
List of Executive Officers/Senior Management

As of December 31, 2023

NAME

POSITION

QUALIFICATIONS/
EXPERIENCE

AGE

NATIONALITY

Anne Q. de
Guzman

President

BM Teller; Branch Mgr.,
Internal Auditor;
AVP-Compliance;

Asst. Gen. Manager;
BID-ROPA Overseer
President

54

Filipino

Ma. Socorro
Q. Aquino

Corp. Sec./
Chief Credit
Officer/
Property
Mgmt. Head

Teller; Cashier; Branch
Manager; Operations
Manager; Asset Mgt.
Head / Credit Officer

56

Filipino

Evelyn C.
Vergara

Chief
Compliance
Officer

New Accounts/Clerk
Teller; Audit Assistant;
Savings Bookkeeper;
Acctg. Head Operations;
Audit Assistant; Chief
Acctg. Head; HR Mngr.,
Operations Manager;
Internal Auditor;
Compliance Officer

58

Filipino

Dianne L.
Antenorio

Internal
Auditor

Acctg. Staff; Teller; Loan
Bookkeeper (SF); Loan
Bookkeeper 3 (CLU),
Audit Assistant; Opera-
tions Acctg. Head; Audit
Asst., Internal Auditor

32

Filipino

Chiqui T.
Ungson

Treasurer

Teller; Loan Bookkeeper;
Cashier; Accountant
(H.0.);

Cashier; Acctg./HR Asst.,
HR Head; Treasurer

41

Filipino
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Dina R.
Desamito

Credit Risk
Review Officer

Branch Account Officer/
Bookkeeper; Br. Accoun-
tant; Br. Account
Officer;

Br. Manager; Credit Risk
Review Officer

40

Filipino

Sebastina F.
Nepacina

Chief
Accounting
Head

LOAN BOOKKEEPER;
ACCOUNTING HEAD;
CASHIER; CHIEF ACCTG.
HEAD; BRANCH MANAGER;
CHIEF ACCTG. HEAD

47

Filipino

Dexter S.
Quinto

HR Head

Acctg staff; Accounting
Assistant / Cashier;

Loans Bookkeeper; 47
Teller;

Audit Assistant;
Assistant

Account Officer; Account
Officer; Cashier; Branch
Manager; Human
Resource

Head

Filipino

Performance Assessment Program For Officers and Employees

including Senior Management

The performance appraisal policy supports the performance appraisal scheme. The

scheme is a formal process centered on an annual meeting of each employee and their line
manager to discuss his/her work. The purpose of the meeting is to review the previous
year's achievements and to set objectives for the following year. These should align
individual employees’ goals and objectives with organizational goals and objectives.

Core Principles of the Appraisal Policy

1.

2.
3.

The appraisal process aims to improve the effectiveness of the organization by
contributing to achieving a well-motivated and competent workforce.

Appraisal is an ongoing process with an annual formal meeting to review progress.
The appraisal discussion is a two-way communication exercise to ensure that both
the needs of the individual, and of the organization are being met, and will be met in
the next year.

The appraisal discussion will review the previous year’s achievement, and will set an
agreed Personal Development Plan for the coming year for each member of staff.

All directly employed employees who have completed their probationary period are
required to participate in the appraisal process.

The appraisal process will be used to identify the individual's development needs
and support the objectives of the Training and Development Policy.

All staff will receive appraisal training as an appraisee, and where appropriate as an
appraiser.

The appraisal process will provide management with valuable data to assist
succession planning.

The appraisal process will be a fair and equitable process in line with our Equality
Policy.
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Performance Appraisal Implementation

Performance appraisal discussions will be held over a designated 4-week period on
an annual basis (usually conducted during the anniversary date or date of hiring of every
employee). They will be arranged by the appraisee’s line manager. Line managers are
encouraged to provide the opportunity for a supplemental 6-month verbal appraisal review,
mid-year and other informal reviews as necessary throughout the year.

The discussion will be held in private. Information gained during the appraisal will be
shared only with senior management. The exception is training needs that will be provided
to the HR / administration for action. Confidentiality of appraisal will be respected.

The appraiser (usually the employee’s line manager) will be expected to have
successfully completed appraiser training, and to be familiar with the appraisee’s work.

All appraisal documents should be issued to both parties prior to the discussion, in
order to allow time for both parties to reflect and prepare. These will provide a framework
and focus for the discussion.

A time and venue for the discussion will be advised at least one week before the
meeting takes place.
The Appraisal Discussion

The appraisal discussion will allow an opportunity for both the appraisee, and the
appraiser to reflect and comment on the previous year's achievements. It will praise
achievement and encourage the appraisee in his/her role.

The appraiser is accountable for giving the employee constructive, timely and honest
appraisals of their performance, which should take into account both the goals of the
organization and of the individual.

The discussion should be a positive dialogue, and will focus on assisting the
appraisee to acquire the relevant knowledge, skills and competencies to perform his/her
current role to the best of his/her abilities.

The appropriate forms will be completed and signed by both parties. The appraisee
will be given the opportunity to note any comments that he/she does not agree with and
complete a self-assessment.

The appraisee and line manager should agree on a Personal Development plan for
the appraisee for the following year. This will reflect the appraisee’s aspirations and the
organization’s requirements, and should align personal and organizational goals. The
organization and the line manager will support the individual to achieve these goals during
the forthcoming year.

Any training needs, future training requirements, planned qualifications, development

opportunities and career planning should be discussed in the light of the Personal
Development Plan.
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Training and Monitoring

Senior Management are responsible for the appraisal process, and he/she shall
ensure that appraisers and appraisees are adequately equipped and trained to undertake
the performance appraisal.

Guidelines and Policies on Position Changes and Salary Grading
Salary Process
- Starting salary for new hires without experience shall be the minimum rates.
- Starting salary for new hires with experience, shall take into consideration the factors in
the salary review:

e Applicant’s Experience: the number of years of previously worked in the
industry and relevant functional experience the applicant possesses at the time
of application.

¢ Applicant’s Education: relevant education, training and /or certifications that at
least meet the minimum requirements for the job.

o Applicant’s Salary History: the salary history in positions similar to the new
position or being considered as progressing towards the new position, may be
taken into consideration.

e Internal equity: the skills and background of applicants should be compared to
those of internal (department/division) employees performing similar work.
Salary equity does not imply that all employees in similar positions who have
similar years of experience and education should be paid the same salary.
Recognition of varying levels of skills and performance, for example, will result in
differences in salary among employees.

e Recruitment difficulties: skills in high demand or hard-to-find areas require
additional salary consideration. Factors such as the scarcity of qualified
applicants, the number of rejected job offers, and the turnover rate for the
position may be considered.

Qualifications for salary increases at mid-point rate.

a. Employee must have no tardiness beyond the allowable time within a year.

b. Employee must have no memos pertaining to violations of company policies and
rules within 2 years.

c. Employee must have passed the performance evaluation rate of at least 10 at 2
consecutive Performance Appraisal Activity.

d. Employee must have a positive recommendation from his/her immediate
supervisor/manager. (With attached supporting documents to justify the
recommendation.)

e. Employee must have passed the level of audit performance rate of least 30% as per
Internal Audit System.

Qualifications for salary increases at maximum rate.
a. Employee must have no tardiness beyond the allowable time within the previous 2
years.
b. Employee must have no memos pertaining to violations of company policies and
rules within the previous 2 years.
c. Employee must have pass the performance evaluation rate of at least 10 at 3
consecutive Performance Appraisal Activity.
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e.

Employee must have a positive recommendation of his/her immediate
supervisor/manager. (With attached supporting documents to justify the
recommendation.)

Employee must have passed the level of audit performance rate of least 30% as per
Internal Audit System within the previous 2 years.

Promotional Process

-when an employee moves from a position to another position that is assigned with a
higher salary grade, this is considered as promotion.

Qualifications:

a.
b.

o

> e@~oo

He/she must already be on regular status, and full-time employee.

Employee must be in his/her current position for at least 6 months to 2 years
consecutively.

Employee must have earned a performance rate of at least 10 during the 2years
period.

Employee must have no tardiness beyond the allowable time within a year.
Employee must meet the required competence and requirements of the new position.
No memos pertaining to company policies/rules violation within the past 2years.
Employee must have no record of cash overage/shortage within a year. (for
teller/cashier position).

Employee must have a positive recommendation of his/her immediate
supervisor/manager. (With attached supporting documents to justify the
recommendation.)

Employee must have passed the level of audit performance rate of least 30% as per
Internal Audit System within the previous 2 years.

Lateral transfer

When an existing employee is competitively selected as the most qualified candidate for
an existing vacant position within the same pay grade of their current job level.

Qualifications:

a.
b.

o

e@~oa

He/she must already be on regular status, and full-time employee.

Employee must be in his/her current position for at least 6 months to 2 years
consecutively.

Employee must have earned a performance rate of at least 10 during the 2 years’
period.

Employee must have no tardiness beyond the allowable time within a year.
Employee must meet the required competence and requirements of the new position.
No memos pertaining to company policies/rules violation within the past 2 years.
Employee must have no record of cash overage/shortage within a year. (for
teller/cashier position)

Employee must have passed the level of audit performance rate of least 30% as per
Internal Audit System within the previous 2 years.
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Voluntary Demotion

- When an existing employee applies for and is competitively selected as the most
qualified candidate for an existing vacant position within a pay grade lower than their
current job. Because the employee voluntarily applied for and accepted a 1-step or
lower-graded job, the employee pay level shall be steady. If the employee’s current
salary aligns with the internal equity of the new pay grade, the employee’s salary will not
be impacted. If the employee’s current salary does not align with the internal equity of
the new pay grade, the employee’s salary grade for reasons other than performance,
such as a department re-structuring, the salary will not be decreased; however, the
employee may not be eligible to receive additional pay increases until parity is reached.
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EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

EMPLOYEE'S NAME DEPARTMENT / BRANCH:
JOB CLASSIFICATION DATE HIRED:
DATE OF EVALUATION RATNG/DATE OF LAST EVALUATION
TYPE OF EVALUATION [ Jpnua [Jrronaen [Jores
INSTRUCTIONS:
This form is used to evaluaie supenvisory, professional and salaried employees. Any rate increases, promotions and transfers require
a current evaluation form. Assign a number for each rating within the scale and write that number in the comesponding box. Points will
will be totaled and averaged for and overdl performance score. Please review the Assigning Performance Levels Sheet forthe definition
of each level.
B ceptona satstactory [ ursatistactory
Supericr Needs Improvement
1. Quality Weight:  20% 2. Productivity Weight : 20%
a) Woark is accurae and precise 5 a)  Significant anount of work completed 5
b) Wark substantive and with content 5 b]  Proper time manage in work accomplish 5
c) Displays thoroughness and completeness in work 5 ¢|  Properorganzation of performance of responsibiiites. 5
d) Campletes work on time according to instructions with minimal emor 5
FINAL COMMENTS / RECOMMENDAT ION: FINAL COMMENTS / RECOMMENDATION:
Weighted Average 1.00 Weighted Average 1.00
3. Job Knowledge/Skills Weight :  10% 4. Dependability Weight : 10%
a) Displays adequate skills fexpertise in the performance of the job 5 a)  Completes tasks efficiently vithin required time frames 5
b) Uses proper procedures. 5 b]  Has intiatve to do tasks vathout prompting 5
c) Uses proper methods and tools. 5 ¢l Canbe trusted with all assioned tasks even those
d) Parforms wiork without much supervision/instructions 5 otherthan ragular functions 5
e) Able to follow verbal andlor wiritien instructions. 5 d)  Does the best according to ability and within
f) Has practicaltech nical knowledge to perform job 3 minimum job standards 5
9) Good jidgment and decision-making. 5
h) Good problem soiver 5
FINAL COMMENTS / RECOMMENDAT ION: FINAL COMMENTS / RECOMMENDATION:
Weighted Average 0.5 Weighted Average 0.0 |
5. Attitude towards the company Weight : 5% 6. Initiative / Creativity Weight : 5%
a) Keeps company's confidentid information and/or safequards the a)  Assumes addional responsibilities when needed 5
company's assats; actively promotes company's image and inferests 5 b)  Determines wha must ba done without being told 5
b) Shows concern to promote the company 5 ¢)  Makes suggestions on better ways of getting work done 5
c) Good team worker, always willing fo help or do the work 5 d)  Mentifies & comeds emors during the wark process 5
d) Cooperate, shows work interes: and takes pride in the work 5 €]  Finds ways to improve processes and ways of doing things 5
FINAL COMMENTS / RECOMMENDATION: FINAL COMMENTS / RECOMMENDATION:
Weighted Average 0.25 Weighted Average 0.25
7. Teamwork / Adaptability Waight : 10% 8. Policy Compliance / Woight : 5%
Customer Services / Others
a) Warks well wath supervisors, peers & subordinates 5 a)  Adheres toall company policies and regulations. 5
b) Sets an example with 2 positive and supportive attude 5 b)  Responsive and courteous fo internal/extemal client nquiries. 5
c) Communicates well with coworkers and supemisors 5 c)  Establishes positive relations interfintra departmentally 5
d) Promotes teamwork in the work place 5 d)  Proacfive in attendin and cther extemal requirements to BSP,
) Ability to adcpt fo changes. 3 external auditor, and other third party requirements 5
FINAL COMMENTS / RECOMMENDAT ION: FINAL COMMENTS / RECOMMENDATION:
Weighted Average 0.50 Weighted Average 0.25
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9. SSFESMRS Compliance Weight : 15%

a)  Compliance o all Board approved objectives, standards, and policies to mitigate and manage

Environmental and Social Risks 5
o) Active participation in all client and community awareness and leamings on E&S risk mitigation, as
well as enccuraging cient participation in related projects/actvities 5
¢} Active cocperation in all bank activifies and projects involving environment/atural resource
preservaton/protection and upholding of social respons hilities 5
d)  Canry on efficiently and effectively ones functions related to ESR mitigation, as indicated inthe
SFFand ESMRS of the Bank 5
[ Weighted Average 0.5
Total Weights Overall Average 500

Round off to next whole number if= or > 0.50
Supervisor's Comments/ Recommendations:

Employee's Comments:

SIGNATURE
EMPLOYEE RATER/ PRESIDENT

Signature over Prinied Name Signature over Printed Name

For Human Resources Use Only

Evaluation receved on: Action Approved by:

Follow Up Action Fom received:
Revised 11-11-2022
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Performance Assessment Program Board of Directors

1. BOARD SELF-EVALUATION FORM

of which provides input to this overall assessment.

Note - This is a form for the overall assessment of the quality of board oversight. The form is completed by every director, the result

Rating Scale: 1. Strong, 2. Satisfactory, 3. Fair, 4. Weak, 5. Critical ( Director to tick on the selected rating and provide comments)

EVALUATION FACTOR

RATINGS

1] 23] 415

COMMENTS

The Board of Directors...

pry

. has at least five (6) and a maximun of ffteen (15}
members of the Board of Directors, pursuant to
Section 15 of R A. No. 8791

[S]

has at least twenty percent (20%) but not less than one
(1) member who are hdependent Director

w

participates in at least fifty percent (50%) and virtually
attend at least twenty five percent (25%) of all board
meetings every year

=

approves and montors the strategic objectives con-
sistent with the bank's business plan initiated thereto
and implemented with clear definition of responsibilities
and accountabilities

o

approves and oversees the implementation of policies
govermning major areas of banking operations

=2}

appoints competent management team at all times,
monitor and assess the performance of the management
team, and conduct regular review of bank policies with
the managemernt team

~

consistently conducts the affairs of the bank with high
degree of integrity by establishing the tone of good
govermnance and in setting corporate values, code of
conduct and other standards

©

establish and actively promote, through policies and
practices, to reflect a culture of strong governance in
the bank as seen by both nternal and external stake-
holders

©

constitutes commitiees to increase efficiency and allow
deeper focus in specific areas

10. effectively utlizes the work conducted by the internal
audit, complance function and external auditors

11. ensures thatindivdual members of the board and share-
holders are accurately and timely informed of the bank's
performance, financial condition and risk exposures

12. regdarly monitors the actions of senior management
and ensure that these are consistent with the policies
that it has approved

13 reguary meets with senior management and engage
in discussions, question and critically review the reports
and information provided by the latter

Page 90 of 250




@ PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 91

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

EVALUATION FACTOR 1 ZRA";“GS —— COMMENTS

14. determines areas for improvement as well as to
properly identify and address significant nsk profile of
the bank

15. arficulates clear policies on the handling of any fran-
saction with DOSRI and other related parties, ensuning
that there is effective compliance with existing laws,
rules and regulations at all times and no stakeholder
s unduly disadvantaged

16. articulates policies that will prevent the use of the
faciities of the bank in furtherance of criminal and other
improper or illegal actvities

17. assess, at least annually, its performance and
effectiveness as a body, as well as its various
committees, individual directors and key officers.

Strong Satisfactory Fair Weak Critical

OVERALL RATING OF BOARD PERFORMANCE

COMMENTS
DIRECTORS WHO CONDUCT THE ASSESSMENT
NAME POSITION SIGNATURE DATE

ROMUALDO PATRICK F. SIAPNO Chairman of the Board

ANNE Q. DE GUZMAN Director/President

ARCH. MARK JOSEPH F. SIAPNO Director

DENNIS N. CALIMLIM Director

ATTY. GERALD Z. GUBATAN Independent Drector
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3. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR ASSESSMENT FORM

one being assessed, the result of which provides input to this overall assessment

Note - This is a form for the overall assessmert of a director’s performance. The form is completed by every director, except for the

Institution:

Director Details (The Appraisee) :
Name of Director being appraised
Designation

PANGASINAN BANK, INC.

Rating Scale: 1. Strong, 2. Satisfactory, 3. Fair, 4. Weak, 5. Critical (Director (o tick on the selected rating and provide cormments)

EVALUATION FACTOR

RATINGS

| 2[3]4]5

COMMENTS

COrporate Governance: The Director...

- remain fit and proper for the position for the
duration of his/her term by possessing unquestionable
credibility to make decisions objectively and resist
undue influence

2 conducts fair business transactons with the Bark and
ensures thal personal interest does nol bias Board
decisions and avoid, whenever possible, situations
that would give rise to a conflict of interest

|

~acts honestly and in good faith, with loyaity and in
the best interest of the institution, its stockholders,
and the other stakeholders such as its depositors,
investors, borrowers, other clients and general
public

4. devotes time and attention necessary to properly
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities in
familiarizing with the Bank's business condition and
knowledgeable enough to contribute meaningfully to
the Board's work

(32

. acts judiciously by thoroughly evaluating the issues,
ask questions and seek clarifications when
necessary before deciding on matters brought before
the BOD

6. contributes significantly to the decision making
process of the Board by actively participating and
exercising objective independent judgement on
corporate affairs requiring approval of the Board

~

exercise independent judgement and support plans
and ideas that hef/she thinks will be beneficial to the
institution; carefully evaluates each problem/situation
and states his/her position when a disagreement with
others occur

8_observes confidentiality of non-public information
acquired by reason of his/her position as director and
does not disclose said infformation to any other person
without the authority of the Board

9. have a working knowledge of the statutory and regu-
latory requirements affecting the Bank, including the
conterts of its Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws, and
BSP and other regulatory agencies' requirements

10. participates in the formulation of major pokcies to
pursue business sirategies of the Bank

11. goes over audit reports with due care & attertion
asking for actionable points that demand conside-
ration & decision by the Board
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EVALUATION FACTOR

RATINGS

1] 2]3]4]5

COMMENTS

Commitment and Competence; The Director...

BSP

12. has attended a special seminar on corporate
governance for BOD conducted or accredited by the

Seminar attended some years ago. Refresher
seminar is required under BSP regulation.

13. possesses competencies relevant to the job , such
as knowledge and experience, skills, diligence,
independence of mind and sufficiency of ime to

cary out responsibilities

14 keeps abreast with latest developments in the
banking sector by actively participating with
peer barks' association

15. hasthe abi'ITty to continuously comply with company
policies and applicable laws and regulations , including
market conduct rules, and the relevant requirements
and standards of any regulatory body

16. comes prepared for meetings and contnbutes to Board
deliverations or committee works

17. undertakes appropriate induction and regular
update and refresh skills, knowledge and familianty
with the Bank

Strong Satisfactory Fair Weak Critical
OVERALL RATING OF DIRECTOR PERFORMANCE
COMMENTS |
DIRECTORS WHO CONDUCT THE ASSESSMENT

NAME POSITION SIGNATURE DATE
ROMUALDO PATRICKF. SIAPNO Chairman of the Board
ANNE Q. DE GUZMAN Director/President
ARCH. MARK JOSEPH F. SIAPNO Director
DENNIS N. CALIMLIM Director
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AUDIT COMMITTEE SELF-ASSESSMENT TEST
For the Period

Evaluation the factors below using the 5 to 1 scale, where 5 means Completely Agree and 1 means Completely Disagree

Section 1 — Control Environment

1 - Demonstrate Commitment to Integrity and Ethical Values

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 112|345

Management demonstrates the importance of integrity and ethical values through their directives,
attitudes, and behavior.

Management establishes standards of conduct to communicate expectations concerning integrity
and ethical values.

Management establishes processes to evaluate performance against the entity’s expected
standards of conduct and evaluates adherence to the standards of conduct.

a) Tone at the top.
b) Standards of conduct.

c) Adherence to standards of conduct.

2 — Exercise Oversight Responsibility

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
There is an oversight body that oversees operations, provides constructive feedback to
a) Oversight structure. management, and informs decision-making to ensure that objectives are met and in alignment

with the entity’s integrity and ethical values.

The oversight body oversees management’s design, implementation, and operation of the
b) Oversight for the internal control system. |internal control system, including the control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication, and monitoring.

The oversight body provides input to management’s plans for remediation of deficiencies in the

€) Input for remediation and deficiencies. internal controls and is responsible for overseeing the remediation of deficiencies.

3 — Establish Structure, Responsibility, and Authority
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Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
Management establishes an organizational structure that is appropriate to plan, execute, control,
a) Organizational structure. and assess its ability to achieve its objectives. Lines of reporting are clear and defined at all
levels so that communication can flow down, across, up, and around.
b) Assignment of responsibility and delegation [Management assigns responsibilities and delegates authority to key roles throughout the
of authority. office/unit.
c) Documentation of the internal control Management develops and maintains documents of its internal control system so that the
system. components of internal control can be designed, implemented, and operate effectively.
4 — Demonstrate Commitment to Competence
Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
. Management establishes responsibilities and expectations that are clearly defined in writing and
a) Expectations of competence. . .
communicated as appropriate.
b) Recruitment, development, and retention of . . . . L
individuals. Management recruits, develops, and retains competent personnel to achieve desired objectives.
. . Management defines succession plans to address the need to replace competent personnel over
c) Succession and contingency plans and .
. the long term, as well as contingency plans to address the need to respond to sudden personnel
preparation. X )
changes that could compromise the internal control system.
5 — Enforce Accountability
Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345

a)

b)

Management holds personnel accountable for performing internal control responsibilities
through mechanisms such as performance appraisals and disciplinary actions.

Management evaluates pressure on personnel and reduces or rebalances workloads when
necessary.

Enforcement of accountability.

Consideration of excessive pressures.

Section 2 — Risk Assessment
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6 — Define Objectives and Risk Tolerances
Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
o L Management defines objectives in specific and measurable terms to enable the design of internal
a) Definition of objectives. i
control for related risks.
N . Management defines the acceptable level of variation in performance relative to the
b) Definitions of risk tolerances. - o
achievement of objectives.
7 — ldentify, Analyze, and Respond to Risks
Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
a) Identification of risks. Manfigemgnt has a process for a_nalyzmg risks, including both inherent and residual risk, and
considers internal and external risk factors.
. . Management has a process to estimate the significance of the identified risks and their effect on
b) Analysis of risks. LS . >0
achieving the defined objectives.
c) Response to risks. Management has specific actions to respond to the analyzed risk.
8 — Assess Fraud Risk
Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
Management considers the types of fraud that can occur (e.g., fraudulent financial reporting,
a) Types of fraud. misappropriation of assets, corruption), as well as other forms of misconduct (such as waste and
abuse).
. Management considers fraud risk factors (incentive/pressure, opportunity, and
b) - Fraud risk factors. attitude/rationalization) and uses this information to identify fraud risk.
Management performs a risk analysis to identify fraud risk and responds to fraud risk so they are
c) Response to fraud risks. effectively mitigated.
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9 — Identify, Analyze, and Respond to Change

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
Management identifies significant changes to internal and external conditions that have already
a) ldentification of change. occurred, or are expected to occur, and that could significantly impact the internal control
system.

Management analyzes and responds to identified changes and related risks in order to maintain

b) - Analysis of and response to change. an effective internal control system.

Section 3 — Control Activities

10 — Design Control Activities

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 1/2/3 4|5

Management designs policies, procedures, techniques, and mechanisms in response to the

a) Response to objectives and risk. S . . o
) P ! program office’s objectives and risks to achieve an effective internal control system.

Management designs appropriate types of control activities (i.e., management of human capital,
physical control over vulnerable assets, access restrictions to records, etc.) for its internal control
system.

b) Design of appropriate types of control
activities.

c) Design of control activities at various

levels Management designs control activities for appropriate coverage of objectives and risks.

Management considers segregation of duties in designing control activity responsibilities to help

d) Segregation of duties. prevent fraud, waste, and abuse in the internal control system.

11 — Design Activities for the Information System

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 1/2/3 4|5

Management designs the office’s information system and the use of information technology to

Design of th ity’s inf i : o :
8) Design of the entity’s information system respond to the office’s objectives and risk.
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Management designs appropriate types of general control activities (e.g., security management,

b) - Design of appropriate types of control physical access, contingency planning, etc.) and application control activities (controls over

activities. processing, input, output, etc.) in the information system.
c) Design of information technology Management designs control activities over the information technology infrastructure to support
infrastructure. the completeness, accuracy, and validity of information processing by information technology.

Management designs control activities (e.g., access rights to data) for security management of

d) Design of security management. . : . .
) g y g the office’s information system for appropriate access by internal and external sources.

Management designs control activities over the acquisition, development, and maintenance of

e) Design of information technology information technology

acquisition, development, and
maintenance.

12 — Implement Control Activities

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 1/2/3 4|5

a) Documentation of responsibilities through

oolicies Policies exist that document the control activities utilized by the office.

b) Periodic review of control activities. Management periodically reviews the control activities for effectiveness.

Section 4 — Information and Communication

13 — Use Quality Information

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
a) ldentification of information requirements. | Management identifies the information required to support the internal control system.
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Management obtains the relevant data from reliable internal and external sources in a timely

manner.

Management processes the obtained data and uses it to inform the internal control system.

14 — Communicate Internally

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
Management communicates information throughout the entity using established reporting lines,
a) Communication throughout the entity. ensuring that communication flows to all levels of the organization (down, across, up, and
around).
b) Appropriate methods of communication. Management sele_cts the appropriate method _for communicating internally after considering the
relevant factors (i.e., audience, nature of the information, etc.).
15 — Communicate Externally
Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345
N . . Management communicates with, and obtains quality information from, external parties (i.e.,
a) Communication with external parties. . ) . L
contractors, grantees, general public, etc.) using established reporting lines.
Appropriate methods of communication. Management selects the appropriate method for communicating externally after considering the
relevant factors (i.e., audience, nature of the information, cost, etc.)
Section 5 — Monitoring
16 — Perform Monitoring Activities
Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 12345

a) Establishment of a baseline.

Management assesses the current state of the internal control system, compared against the

intended design of the internal control system.
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Management monitors the internal control system through on-going monitoring and periodic

b) - Internal control system monitoring. separate evaluations (e.g., self-assessments, audits).

Management evaluates and documents the results of on-going monitoring and separate

c) Evaluation of results. ; . . .
) evaluations to identify internal control issues.

17 — Evaluate Issues and Remediate Deficiencies

Assessment Factor Indication of Controls 1/2/3 4|5

Management and personnel identify internal control issues and report the issues through
established reporting lines on a timely basis.

Management evaluates and documents internal control issues and determines appropriate
corrective actions for deficiencies.

a) Reporting of issues.

b) Evaluation of issues.

Management completes and documents corrective actions to remediate internal control

c) Corrective actions. A ) .
deficiencies on a timely basis.
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Remuneration and Other Incentives

The board of directors approved a remuneration and other incentives that is
appropriate and consistent with the bank’s operating and risk culture, long-term
business and risk appetite, performance, and control environment. All covered
employees are designed to encourage good performance that supports the interest
of the bank and its stakeholders. The board of directors or a board level committee
shall monitor and review the remuneration and other incentive policy including plans,
processes and outcomes, at least annually, to ensure that it operates and achieves
the objectives as intended.

The following are the considerations in the remuneration and other incentives
given to all covered employees in order to encourage good performance that
supports the interest of the bank:

e The remuneration and incentives shall take into account the employee’s
position, role, responsibilities and activities in the bank. It shall also consider
the risks that the employee takes on behalf of the bank. In this regard, it
should be sensitive to prospective risks and risk outcomes that have been
realized and considers the overall performance of the bank.

e Remuneration and incentive pay-out schedule should be sensitive to the time-
horizon of risk. This includes defer payment until risk outcomes are better
known or provisions under which remuneration and incentives may be
reduced or reversed if new facts emerge showing that the remuneration and
incentives paid was based on erroneous assumptions, such as misreporting,
of if it is discovered that the employee has failed to comply with internal
policies or legal requirements.

e Remuneration of employees in risk functions (i.e. Internal Audit, Compliance
and Risk Management Functions) is based on the achievement of their
objectives and shall be independent of the business lines which they oversee.

Directors’ Fees. Each Director shall receive a fee or per diem for attendance at
any meeting of the Board in an amount based on the Corporation Code of the
Philippines. However, subject to the approval of the stockholders in determining the
amount, the Board shall consider the financial capabilities of the Association,
provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be constructed to preclude
any Director from serving in any other capacity and receiving compensation
therefore. The Board shall fix the compensation and other remuneration of any
Director who serves in any other official capacity or performs executive functions or
any special service of the Corporation. (As amended on August 4, 1979)
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Orientation and Education Program

EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION PROGRAM

All newly hired employees shall undergo orientation program to be coordinated by HR
department.

ACTIVITY

e Company Profile

¢ Company Vision

e Organizational Chart

e Company Policies and Procedures
e Benefits

e Company Activities

After the orientation, new staff is given a tour of the office premises and is introduced to
other staff of the Company.

GENERAL GUIDELINES

Attendance and Training Programs

e No overtime pay shall be allowed even if the seminar extends beyond regular office
hours or held on Saturdays, whether inside or outside the office premises.

o An employee who is included in a training program is excused from his scheduled
work hours during the duration covered by actual training program. In case of out-of-
town seminars or seminar outside the office the office premises, duration shall also
include a reasonable travel time.

e Training programs held outside the workstation is not considered out-of-base official
business; hence, the employee is not entitled to per diem and/or meal allowance.
However, the employee is entitled to reimbursement of travel expenses to/from
training venue and meal expenses.

ELIGIBILITY FOR TRAINING

Any regular employee may be entitled to technical and Company sponsored training along
the line of his present job or to some other lines where he will be transferred of promoted.
Upon recommendation of his immediate superior or the President or General Manager.

EXPENSES FOR TRAINING

Expenses incurred for travel shall be borne by the Company.

SALARY FOR TRAINING

The employee’s salary shall continue to be paid. The absence from work shall not be
charged to leave privileges. If the employee is expected to report back to work at a definite
day but fails to do so, such absence shall be charged to his vacation leave. Unless he can
show good cause for the delay, like non-availability of air transportation due to cancellation
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of flight, or strike in the airport where he is expected to depart. Should it happen, he should
also advise the office of his delay.

TRAINING AGREEMENT

In consideration of the payment by the Company of the cost of the training /seminar,
concerned employee shall continue working with Company until the end of the holding
period that commences from the completeness of the training course subject to the
following:

COST/FEE HOLDING PERIOD
Php 25,000.00 or less 6 months
Php 50,000.00 or less 12 months
Php 75,000.00 or less 18 months
Php 100,000.00 or less 24 months

In cases where an employee attends consecutive trainings/seminars, the holding period of
the initial training/seminar should be completed first before continuing with the holding
period of the subsequent training/seminar. Holding periods should not overlap with each
other.

In case of voluntary or involuntary termination of employment, concerned employee shall
reimburse the Company of the training/seminar cost on a pro-rata basis corresponding to
the remaining portion of the holding period. The reimbursement will be deducted from
his/her last pay and if there is any deficiency, concerned employee shall pay within 5 days
without need of any demand.

REPORT ON TRAINING

An employee who attends the training program approved by the Management is required to
submit a report on course and cascade the same within the month after the completion of
the seminar. The employee concerned will be in-charge of his/her presentation materials,
presentation date, among other things relative to the cascading. The schedule proposed will
be subjected to the approval of HR department. A copy of his/her Training materials and
Certificate of Attendance shall be submitted to HR which will be filed on the employee’s 201
file.

Retirement and Succession Policy

Importance of Succession Planning

The Bank considers succession planning as part of its strategic planning on human
capital known as talent management. It shall cover the activities and processes
throughout the employee life cycle: recruiting and hiring, onboarding, training,
professional development, performance management, workforce planning,
leadership development, career development, cross-functional work assignments,
job leveling, and the employee exit process. When managing internal talents, the
Bank will ensure that the right people are moving at the right pace into the right
positions at the right time. An effective succession planning strategy, coupled with
solid career development programs, will help paint a more promising future for

Page 103 of 250



% PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 104

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

employees and help them focus more on realizing the objectives of the Bank by
actively guiding potential successors in their career development. In this way the
Bank is assured of continuous loyalty of the employees who would do everything
possible to ensure the growth and development of the Bank.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

O

The board shall approve appropriate hiring and selection policies and
processes, adopt a continuing professional development program, and
institutionalize a framework for continuing assessment of fithess and propriety
of employees.

Ensure that all branches/units have adequate resources, including personnel
complement;

Oversee implementation of a sound succession planning program by creating
and promoting an organizational culture that places high priority on business
continuity. This shall include providing sufficient financial and human
resources associated with the Bank’s business continuity initiatives.

Roles of the Senior Management

©)

Translate the approved succession plan into specific policies and processes
covering all businesses and functions of the Bank. Said policies should be
clearly documented, approved by the board of directors and communicated to
personnel at all levels.

Oversee the implementation of the program in close coordination with the
Human Resource Head.

Role of the Human Resource Head

O

O

Processes

The Human Resource Head shall assist the Board and the Management in
fulfilling the oversight responsibilities in the areas of recruitment, manpower
planning, personnel development, performance appraisal, remuneration and
other key human resource issues.

Implements policies and procedures as approved by the Board in achieving
the objectives covered by the succession plan.

1. Identification of Critical Position and Potential Successor

Identifying critical positions is an important part of the succession planning
process of the Bank. It allows the identification of talent investments to ensure

leadership continuity and mitigate risk from leadership erosion. In this regard, the
Bank has identified the following positions being critical in the succession
planning and their potential successor, based on the Personnel Qualifications
updated as of March 29, 2022:
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A. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Critical Skills/Competencies Tenure in the Successor
Positions Required Bank

Board of | The Board should take into | One (1) vyear | In case of vacancy in

. account the relevant | elected annually | the position of

Director e . . .

qualifications of every | during the | Chairmanship of the
candidate nominated for | Stockholders Board or any of its
election such as among | Meeting, where | Committees the Vice
others, physical/mental | non-independent | Chairman of the Board
fitness, relevant | directors can be | or Committee shall
educational and | elected annually | automatically take
professional  background, | without limit. over the position of
personal track record, Chairman.
diversity of related | Maximum of
experience/training, nine (9) vyears | In cases of vacancies
commitment to contribute | cumulative  for | for other positions the
willingness to serve and | Independent remaining Board
interest to remain engaged | Director Members will amongst
and involved. themselves elect a
replacement to fill in
the vacancies
Only when the
number of the
members of the Board
of Directors may no
longer adhere to legal
or regulatory
mandates shall a
Special  Stockholders
Meeting  shall  be
convened to fill in the
vacancies of the Board
of Directors.

President e Have an excellent | Ten (10) vyears | Any Member of Board
and through | above of Directors or
understanding  of Stockholder
the business;

e Have skills and
human qualities
which allow
him/her to advise,
train and raise
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awareness among
Bank Staff on the
significance of
business ethics and
compliance;

Must show
dedication and
allegiance to the
Bank and its
policies and
procedure;

Must prove that
they can be relied
on to show up to
work on time, to
attend to their
duties in a
professional  way,
and to uphold the
standards the Bank
sets for itself.

General
Manager

Excellent verbal
and written
communication;
Solid presentation
skills and ability to
explain complex
processes to an
audience;

Expert in financial
management and
persistent business
will to succeed;
Planning and
managing the
company's
performance;
Manage operations
and processes
within budget;

Five
above

(5)

years

Manager/Accountant
or Hire from external
source

or BOD discretion to
appoint if the position
becomes vacant.

Corporate
Secretary

Strong
administrative skills
and an aptitude for

Five
above

(5)

years

Any member of
Stockholders or hire
from external source
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using IT software;
Commercial
awareness;
Meticulous
attention to detail;
Interpersonal skills;
Influencing skills;
Excellent
organization and
time management;
The ability to take
the initiative;

A flexible and
practical approach
to work;

Discretion and
diplomacy;

at the discretion of the

Board of Directors

Compliance
Officer

Have an excellent
and thorough
understanding of
the business;
Have skills and
human qualities
which allow him to
advise, train and
raise awareness
among Bank Staff
on the significance
of business ethics
and compliance;
Must show
dedication and
allegiance to the
Bank and its
policies and
procedures;

Must prove that
they can be relied
on to show up to
work on time, to
attend to their
dutiesin a
professional way,
and to uphold the

Five
above

(5)

years

Internal
Auditor/Manager/
Accountant
(subject to the
confirmation)

BSP
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standards the Bank
sets for itself.

Internal Auditor

Communication
skills, including oral
communication,
report writing, and
presentation skills;
Problem-solving
skills (i.e.,
conceptual and
analytical thinking);
Ability to promote
the value of
internal audit
among key
employees within
the organization;
Keeping abreast
with regulatory
changes and
industry standards;
Knowledge in
auditing, internal
audit standards,
fraud awareness,
and professional
ethical standards;
Knowledge in
enterprise risk
management (i.e.,
risk analysis and
control
assessment);
Other
competencies that
were identified in
the survey were
organizational
skills, change
management skills,
critical thinking,
teamwork, and
conflict resolution
and negotiation

Five (5)
and above

years

Assistant Internal
Auditor/Manager/
Accountant

(subject to the BSP
confirmation).
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skills.

Treasurer

e Be capable of
handling figures
and cash;

e Have an orderly
mind and
methodical way of
thinking;

e Have experience in
dealing with large
sums of money and
budgets;

e Have experience of
financial control
and budgeting;

e Have an eye for
detail;

e Be available to be
contacted for ad
hoc advice;

Five (5)
and above

years

Manager/Cashier/
Accountant or BOD
discretion to appoint if
the position becomes
vacant.

(subject to the BSP
confirmation).

B. OFFICERS

Critical Positions

Skills/Competencies
Required

Tenure in the
Bank

Successor

Credit Head/
Property Mgmt.
Head

e Proven work
experience as a
Credit Manager,
Credit Analyst or
similar role;

e Hands-on
experience with
accounting
software;

e Solid
understanding of
lending
procedures;

e Excellent analytical
skills, with the
ability to create

Five (5) years
and above

Manager/Senior Loan
Officer

(subject to BOD
confirmation)
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and process
financial
spreadsheets (e.g.
in Excel);
Negotiation skills;

Credit Risk
Review Officer

Have a senior
experience in credit
risk underwriting or
adjudication
capacity;

Have a
comprehensive
understanding of
credit risk
management rules;
regulatory ratings
and regulatory
examination
process and
practices;

Have experience
underwriting,
assessing and
approving
leveraged lending
transactions and
understanding;
Have in-depth
knowledge of
lending products;

Five (5) years
and above

Manager/Senior Loan
Officer

(subject to BOD
confirmation)

Chief
Accounting
Head

Numerical Skill;
Eye for Detail;
Time Management
and Organizational
Skill;

Computer Skill;
Communication
Skill;

Business
Awareness;
Integrity;
Resilience and
Adaptability;

Five (5) years
and above

Manager/Accountant/
Senior Officers
(subject to BOD
confirmation)
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Critical thinking,
problem solving
and critical analysis
such as reviewing,
interpreting and
evaluating financial
data, business
systems and
operational data
and controls

Human
Resource Head

Business
Management &
Leadership Skills
Human Capital
Development Skills
Communication &
Interpersonal Skills
Strategic Thinking
& Planning Skills
Workplace Culture
Development Skills

Five (5) years
and above

Manager/Accountant/
Senior Officers
(subject to BOD
confirmation)

MIS/IT Officer

good problem-
solving skills;
ability to effectively
manage time and
resources;

a clear vision of
“the big picture” as
well as the “small
details”;

a desire to work
closely with other
people;

excellent
communication
skills;

ability to think
strategically about
technology;

Five (5) years
and above

Qualified Senior Officer
or hire from external
source.

Branch Manager

Computer literate;
Have a managerial
experience in any
applicable field of

Seven (7) years
above

Cashier/Accountant
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management;

C. STAFF
Non-Critical Skills/Competencies Tenure in the Successor
Positions Required Bank
Cashier e Computer literate; | Three (3) years Teller
e Knowledgeablein | above
tellering and
accounting;
e Know how to
detect counterfeit
money vs. genuine
bills and coins;
Accountant e Computer literate; | One (1) year Bookkeeper

e Know how to
interact with
people;

e Knowledge in basic
bookkeeping and
accounting;

above

Loan Appraiser

e Know how to
interact with
people;

e Knowledge in basic
appraisal

e Knows how to
drive a motorcycle
or four wheeled
vehicles

Two (2) years
above

Loan Processing
Officer/
Bookkeeper

Loans Processing
Officer

e Proven working
experience as a
Loan Officer.

e Familiarity with
computers and
banking
applications/softw
are.

e Solid
understanding of
direct/indirect
lending products

Six (6) to Twelve
(12) mos.

Loans Bookkeeper
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and practices.
Excellent
communication
and interpersonal
skills.

Customer
satisfaction
orientation and
sales
competencies

Loans Bookkeeper
And Teller/Clerk

Computer literate
(MS word and
excel);

Good PR and
communication
skills

Adaptability

Six (6) to Twelve
(12) mos.

Teller/Clerk
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POSITION:

TENURE IN THE BANK:
SUCCESSOR:

SKILLS/COMPETENCIES:

-Proven work experience as a Credit Manager, Credit Analyst
or similar role

-Hands-on experience with accounting software

-Solid understanding of lending procedures

-Excellent analytical skills, with the ability to create and
process financial spreadsheets (e.g. in Excel)

-Negotiaton skills

-Have a senior experience in credit risk underwriting or
adjudication capacity

-Have a comprehensive understanding of credit risk management rules;
regulatory ratings and regulatory examination process and practices

-Have experience underwriting. Assessing and approving leveraged
lending transactions and understanding

-Have in-depth knowledge of lending products

-Numerical skill; Eye for detail: Time management and organizational skill

-Computer skill; Communication skill; Business awareness, Integrity

-Resilience & Adaptability

-Critical thinking, probls

interpreting and evaluating financial data, business systems and
operational data and controls

o
9

Iving and critical analysis such as

SUCCESSION PROGRAM FOR OFFICERS
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FOR THE YEAR 2024
Credit Head /Property Credit Risk Chief Accounting Human Resource MIS/IT Officer | Branch
Management Head Review Officer Head Head Manager
7 years
5 years and above 5 years and above | 5 years and above 5 years and above 5 years and above | and above
Manager/Senior Loon Manager/Senior Loan Nanager/A / Manoger/A / Quolified Senior Officer | Cashier/
Accountant
Officer {subject to BOD Officer (subject to BOD | Senior Officers (subject to | Senior Officers {subject to | or hire from external
confirmation) confirmation) BOD confirmation) BOD confirmation) source
v v v
v v v v v v
v v
v v v
v ¥ v |
/ |
v v |
v v v |
v v v v v v |
v 4 v v v v
v v v v v v
v v v v v v
v v v
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-Business Management & Leadership Skills
-Human Capital Development Skills
-Communication & Interpersonal skills
-Strategic Thinking& Planning Skills
-Workplace Culture Development Skills

-Good problem solving skills

-Ability to effectively manage time and resources

-A clear vision of "the big picture” as well as the "small details”
-A desire to work closely with other people

-Excellent communication skills

-Ability to think strategically about technology

-Computer literate
-Have a managerial experience in any applicable field of management

Work Experience:
Teller
Bookkeeper
Loan Processing Officer
Accountant
Audit Assistant
Cashier
CIAU Head
Monager
MIS/IT Officer
Human Resource Head
Chief Accounting Head
Credit Risk Review Officer
Credit Head/Property Mngmnt. Head
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v v v v v v
v v
v v v v v v
v v v v v v
v
v v v v v v
v v v v v v
v v v v v Y
v v v v v v
v v v v v v
v
v v v v v v
v v v v v v
v v v v
v v v v
v v v
v
v
v v v v
v v v 4
v
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Trainings Required:

AMLA Seminar
Stressed Asset Mngmt. & Recovery Training
Business continuity Manag t Training

Key Risk Indicotors & Scorecard Training

Effective budgeting and forecasting
techniques for credit

Strengthening Internal control systems in RB's

Sound credit Functional Framework Training

Intro to IT Auditing Seminar

Customer Service Excellence Training

Cash flow statement training

Credit & Collection Seminar

Financial Statement Analysis

Risk-Bosed Methodology Seminar

1 day Briefing on BSP Prudential Reporting-
FRP & CAR

Advanced Supervisory Development Program
Seminar workshop on the conduct of internal
Audit Engagement

Risk Management Basic Course

Bank Security and Protection Program

Branding your Rural Bank Through the HR
Perspective

Remediol Management Seminar

Credit Analysis & Loan Packaging Seminar

Risk Based Compliance Program

Effective business Communication Training

Strategic Human Resource Management

Managing IT Outsourcing Reqts. And Risk

Credit scoring and credit loss estimation course

Risk-Bosed Lending for SME Workshop
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Positions held during the
tenure of service:

Teller

Bookkeeper
Accountant

Loan Processing Officer
Audit Assistant

Branch Manager
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POSITION:

TENURE IN THE BANK:
SUCCESSOR:

ADDENDUM:
EDUCATION:
-Bachelor’s degree
Preferably in:
Accountancy
Finance
Marketing
Business Administration
Human Resources Management
Information Technology
Computer Science
Bachelor’s degree relevant to the job

SUCCESSION PROGRAM FOR OFFICERS

118
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FOR THE YEAR 2024
Credit Head /Property Credit Risk Chief Accounting Human Resource MIS/IT Officer | Branch
Management Head Review Officer Head Head Manager
7 years
5 years and above 5 years and above | 5 years and above 5 years and above 5 years and above | and above
Manager/Senior Loan ger/Senior Loan | Manag Manager/A / J Quadlified Senior Officer | Cashier/
| Accountant
Officer (subject to BOD Officer (subject to BOD | Senior Officers (subject to | Senior fficers (subjectto | o hire from external
confirmation) confirmation) BOD confirmation) BOD confirmation) | source
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POSITION:
TENURE IN THE BANK:
SUCCESSOR:

SKILLS/COMPETENCIES:
-Computer Literate
Excel
Word
Powerpoint
Byte per byte system

-Knowledgable in tellering and accounting

-Know how to detect counterfeit money vs. genuine bills and coins
-Know how to interact with people

-Knowledge in basic bookkeeping and accounting

Knowledge in basic isal

L) PP

-Knows how to drive a motorcycle or four wheeled vehicle

-Good communication skills

-Proven working experience as a loan officer

-Familiarity with computers and banking applications/software

-Solid understanding of direct/indirect lending products and practices

SUCCESSION PROGRAM FOR STAFF

FOR THE YEAR 2024
Loan Processing
Cashier Accountant | LoanAppraiser | Loans Bookkeeper | Officer
3yrs.and above | 1yr. above 2yrs.andabove | Six to twelve months | Six to twelve months
Teller Bookkeeper Loan Processing Officer/ | Teller/Clerk Loan Bookkeeper
Bookkeeper

v v v ‘ v v
v v v v v
v v v v v
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v
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-Excellent communication and interpersonal skills

-Customer satisfaction orientation and sales competencies

Work Experience:

Trainings Required:

Teller

Bookkeeper

Accountant

Loan Processing Officer
Cashier

Appraiser / C.I. Assistant

AMLA Seminar

AML Rules and Regulations

and Risk Rating System

Signature Verification Bank Fraud

and Forgery Detection Seminar

Financial Statement Analysis

Basic course on Cashiering Seminar

Credit & Collection Seminar

Comprehensive Property Appraisal

Seminar

Credit Investigation Seminar

Sound credit Functional Framework
Training

Customer service excellence

training

Financial Statement Analysis

Credit Risk Rating Provisioning &
Loan Pricing Training

<
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Positions held during the
tenure of service:

Training needs assessment for l

microfinance course

Credit Analysis & Loan Packaging [

seminar

Effective business communication l

Training

Teller

Loans Bookkeeper

Branch Accountant

Loan Processing Officer

Audit Assistant

Appraiser / C.I. Assistant
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POSITION:
TENURE IN THE BANK:
SUCCESSOR:
ADDENDUM:
EDUCATION:
-Bachelor’s degree
preferably in:
Accountancy
Finance
Marketing
Engineering related courses
Business Administration
Bachelor’s degree relevant to the job

SUCCESSION PROGRAM FOR STAFF

FOR THE YEAR 2024
Loan Processing
Cashier Accountant Loan Appraiser Loans Bookkeeper | Officer
|3 yrs anddbiave. | LyF: albave 2yrs.andabove | Sixtotwelemonths | Six to twelve months |
Teller Bookkeeper Loan Processing Officer | Teller/Clerk Loan Bookkeeper
v v v v
v v v v
v v v v
£ 2 = - 5
v v v v
v v v v v
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2. ldentifying Competencies

The Bank shall implement a system of identification and competency-profiling
of critical positions in order to develop strategies to transfer critical knowledge
and attract, develop and retain qualified candidates to compete for these
positions if and when they become vacant. The HR Head shall develop said
identification and profiling process to assist the BOD/Management in the
internal selection process.

3. Employees Training Program

Training is a program that helps employees learn specific knowledge or skills
to improve performance in their current duties and responsibilities. The Bank
believes that good training programs help keep the right people and
contribute to its profitability.

On top of the trainings and seminars already undertaken by the personnel as
indicated in the updated Personnel Qualifications (Annex A), the Bank is
committed to providing the required and necessary trainings needed by the
officers and employees of the Bank by adopting an Annual Training Program,
copy of which is hereto attached as Annex B, which will ensure continuous
development of qualified pool of candidates ready to fill critical or key
positions while helping them realize their career plans and aspirations and
improve their ability to respond to changing work environment.

Policies and Procedures on Related Party Transactions

A. Policies and Guidelines

1.

Related party transactions shall be allowed provided that these comply with
applicable regulatory limits/requirements and dealings are conducted at arm’s
length basis. Said transactions shall only be made and entered into, substantially
on terms and conditions not less favorable than those with other customers of
comparable risks.

Related party transactions shall require the approval from the Board of Directors.

All approved related party transactions shall be reported by the Chief Compliance
Officer (CCO) to the Audit Committee and to the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
(BSP) quatrterly, as required under BSP Circular 895. Such transaction shall also
be ratified and approved by the stockholders in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

If an actual or potential conflict of interest arises on the part of a director, officer

or employee, he is mandated to fully and immediately disclose the same and
should not participate in the decision-making process relating to the transaction.
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Any member of the Board who has an interest in the transaction under
discussion shall not participate therein and shall abstain from voting on the
approval of the transaction.

5. Reportorial/Disclosure Requirements

a.

As explained in BSP Memorandum No. M-2012-032, transactions concerning
deposit operations are excluded from the reporting requirement on related
party transactions under BSP Circular No. 895.

Also, lease and other similar contracts with recurring payment transactions
shall only be reported once, upon approval of said transaction by the board of
directors.

In case the related parties involved in the transactions are both supervised
by the BSP, only the lessor, in case of lease contract, or the party
engaging/requesting for the services of the other financial institution, in case
of other contracts, shall submit the report.

Necessary disclosures shall be made also in the Notes to the Financial
Statements of the Annual Report. At a minimum, the disclosures shall
include:

(i) the amount of the transactions;

(i)  the amount of outstanding balances and their terms and conditions,
including whether they are secured, and the nature of the
consideration to be provided in settlement, and details of any
guarantees given or received,;

(i) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding
balances;

(iv) the expense recognized during the period in respect of bad or doubtful
debts due from related parties.

6. The following transactions shall not be deemed related party transactions for
purposes of this policy/guidelines:

a.
b.
c.

Executive Officer and Director compensation arrangements;

Transaction concerning deposit operations

Transaction where the rates or charges involved in the transaction are
determined by competitive bids or fixed by law or regulated by a
governmental authority

Transactions available to all employees in general, such as: deposit
transactions and borrowings covered under the bank’s financial assistance
program approved by BSP.

B. Procedures

1. All Directors and Officers shall submit to the Compliance Officer a filled up
Related Party Transaction Information Statement Questionnaire on the following
instances:

e At the beginning of term of the newly appointed/elected Director or Officer.
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e At the beginning of the calendar year for all incumbents.
e Upon discovery of the unreported related party transactions.

The Questionnaire shall be accomplished as part of the responsibility of
Directors and Officers to disclose related party transactions. It shall include
commitment to disclose proposed transactions that the director/officer or their
related party will undertake with Pangasinan Bank, Inc.
Based on the Information Statement Questionnaire, the Compliance Officer shall
submit/ elevate to the Board of Directors for ratification/approval.
A related party transaction shall be approved by the vote of the majority of the
directors who are not related parties to the transaction. All credit and non-credit
Related Party Transactions go through the normal approval processes of the
bank after due consideration to existing DOSRI regulations and SB limits of the
MORB.
The Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) shall prepare a quarterly report of all related
party transactions to the Audit Committee for the latter's information. Said
committee shall be provided with all pertinent documents and material facts that
support the transaction.
On a quarterly basis, the CCO shall also submit the required report to BSP using
the existing report format.
If a related party transaction would be ongoing, the Board of Directors shall
periodically review and assess ongoing relationships with related parties to
determine and ensure compliance with the all the regulatory requirements.
No director may engage in any Board or Committee discussion or approval of
any related party transaction in which he or she is a related party. However, such
director must provide to the Board or Committee all material information
reasonably requested concerning the transaction.

Consistent with corporate values and code of conduct observed by Pangasinan
Bank, Inc., it shall encourage all personnel to report confidentially and without
risk of reprisal, legitimate concerns about illegal, unethical or questionable
Related Party Transaction’s.

In the event of a Related Party Transaction turning sour or becoming a problem
transaction, the Bank shall collect the difference between the interest rate
granted and the normal/regular rate of the transaction and also all the other
waived charges extended to the related party/ies, who abuse the exceptional
dealing given.

C. Roles of Senior Management and Assessment Function

The senior management shall implement appropriate controls to effectively
manage and monitor Related Party Transactions on a per transaction and
aggregate basis.

They shall also monitor exposures to related parties on an ongoing basis to
ensure compliance with the bank’s policy and Bangko Sentral regulations.

The Internal Audit Committee shall conduct a periodic formal review of the
effectiveness of bank’s system and internal control governing related party
transactions to assess consistency with the board-approved policies and
procedures.
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4. The Compliance Dept. shall ensure that the bank complies with relevant rules
and regulations and is informed of regulatory developments in area affecting
related parties.

5. The Compliance Dept. shall aid in the review of the bank’s transactions and
identify any potential related party transaction that would require review by the
Board.

6. The Compliance Dept. shall ensure that the related party transaction policy is
kept updated and is properly implemented throughout the bank.

D. Loans, Advances, and other Credit Accommodations to Officers

AMENDMENTS TO THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Financial Assistance Program is hereby formulated to detail the guidelines of the fringe benefits
program of the officers and employees of Pangasinan Bank (A Rural Bank), Inc. to meet their
housing, household and personal needs.

The Plan/Program has the following features:
1. Applicants to the loan benefits under the program shall be limited to the full-time and
permanent officers and employees of the bank.
2. Financial assistance shall be for the following purposes:
(A) Real Estate Loan —
1. To purchase a residential house and lot;
2. To construct, renovate or repair residential house on a lot owned and to be
occupied by the officer or employee;
(B) Multi-Purpose Loan —
e Livelihood/Additional Capital for Business

e Educational Expenses

e Health and Wellness

e Travel and Leisure

e Special Events

e Car Repair

e Purchase of Appliances/Electronic Gadgets and Furniture

e Purchase of Memorial Lot or Columbary Niche and/or Funeral Expenses

e Payment of Utilities/Credit Card Bills

e Purchase of Motor Vehicle (2 wheels)

e Purchase of Car

e Minor Repair of Residential House

e Improvement of Lot Acquired (but not limited to: fencing, filling materials )

e Related Expenses to transfer of ownership (House/House and Lot purchase)
(C) Salary Loan —for personal needs
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(D) Calamity Loan — in cases of calamities such as: earthquakes, tsunamis, floods,
drought, storms, diseases epidemics, pandemics.

3. Existing bank employees’ real estate loans which are being currently charged the regular
loan interest rates together with the normal service charges, are qualified to crossover
to the program.

4. To protect itself from losses, the bank will require participants of the financing plan for
co-makers, co-signors, coverage under a mortgage redemption insurance: for those
employee who are not yet included in the Bank’s retirement plan, real estate or chattel
mortgage, assignment of retirement benefits, to include a provision for the
restructuring of the loan under the bank’s regular lending operations, in case of
termination or separation of the officer or employee from the bank, for whatever cause.

5. Monthly compensation of an officer or employee which is the basis shall mean the basic
salary and all fixed and regular monthly allowances of the officers or employee, while
payments for sickness benefits and other special emoluments which are not fixed or
regular in nature, or the commutation into cash of unused leave credits shall not be
included in the determination of the loanable amount under this Program.

6. Bank employees who are spouses/are married to one another, cannot avail of the
benefit loans individually. That is, the husband and the wife are considered as one, in
applying for a real estate loan, consumption loan and salary loan. Calamity loan will be
exempted from this provision.

7. The monthly amortization payments shall be inclusive of the amounts that are needed
to cover mortgage redemption and fire insurance premiums, real estate taxes, other
assessments and similar related fees and charges being collected during the existence of
the loans.

8. Terms & conditions of the benefit loans will be as follows:

A.) REAL ESTATE LOAN

1. Housing loan will be extended to officers and employees who have
completed at least five (5) years of continuous service, from date of
permanency.

2. An officer or employee (or spouse) who already own a residential house
and lot shall no longer be qualified to avail himself of the financial
assistance for the purpose of acquiring a residential house and/or lot.

3. Availment of the financing plan to construct or acquire a residential house
and/or lot shall be availed only once, during the officer’'s or employee’s
tenure with the bank. Correspondingly, REM must be executed with the
bank indicated therein as the mortgage.

3.1 Re-availments may be allowed where the right over the real estate
previously acquired or constructed under the financing plan is
absolutely transferred or assigned to another officer or employee of
the bank or to a third party. Provided further, that the bank must be
fully paid or reimbursed for the outstanding availment of the financing
plan before the officer/employee is allowed to re-avail himself of the
same financing plan.
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4. Re-availments for major repairs or renovations of house shall be allowed,
provided the previous loan for similar purpose shall have been already paid
in full.

5. Loan amount shall not exceed thirty six (36) months of total monthly
compensation and shall be within the paying capacity of the borrowing
officer or employee. The other basis of the loan shall be the Deed of
Conditional Sale/Deed of Sale/Bill of Materials or Cost Estimate.
Additionally, the Inspection and Appraisal Report of the bank’s appraiser
shall also be included in the determination of the loan amount to be
granted, and likewise, by taking into account the maximum allowed 50%
loanable value given to the regular loan borrowers.

6. Interest rates chargeable shall be at 12% twelve percent over the term of
the loan based on the outstanding balance, which is lower than the
prevailing interest rates on the regular loans of the bank; without the
service charge.

7. Term of the loan shall be up to 5 years, depending on the maximum
monthly amortization capacity of the officer’'s/employee’s total regular
monthly compensation, after considering the amount needed by the
borrower to meet his/her daily needs.

8. The number of allowable renewals for the remaining loan balance after the
expiry of the initial/original loan term, shall be two (2) times but not to
exceed 10 years, counted from the maturity date of the original loan.

9. Fire insurance coverage as needed under the present BSP regulations shall
be secured by the officer/employee for the duration of the loan. Real estate
taxes shall likewise be updated annually by the borrower.

B.) MULTI-PURPOSE LOAN

a. Can be availed by officers/employees who have rendered three (3)
years of continuous service from date of permanency.

b. Loan amount shall be equal to ten (10) months of total monthly
compensation and shall be within the paying capacity of the
borrowing officer or employee for all purposes, except for the
purpose of motor and auto vehicle loan.

c. Motor and Auto Vehicle Loan

c.1 Motor Vehicle Loan

Covered Officers and Employees are allowed to avail of motor vehicle
loan in the maximum threshold amount of One Hundred Fifty
Thousand Pesos (P150, 000.00) of which 75% thereof shall be the
loanable value with the first 25% representing the personal equity of
the employee, covered by a collateral, which is automatically the
Official Receipts and Certificate of Registration (O.R. / C.R.) of the
vehicle, the value of which shall be double the amount of loan
application, as the case maybe. The loan shall be payable in five (5)
years via semi-monthly installment to be deducted from the salary of
the borrowers at 10% ten percent over the term of the loan based on
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the outstanding balance, without service charge. Provided, that for
whatever reason, the entire obligation shall become due and
demandable upon termination of employment.

.2 Auto Vehicle Loan
Covered Officers and Employees who have rendered three (3) years
of continuous service from date of permanency, may avail of the
Auto Vehicle Loan in the maximum threshold amount of Five Hundred
Thousand Pesos (P500, 000.00) of which 75% thereof shall be the
loanable value with the first 25% representing the personal equity of
the employee, covered by a collateral which is automatically the
Official Receipt and Certificate of Registration (O.R./C.R.) of the
vehicle duly registered with the Registry of Deeds (ROD) and Land
Transportation Office (LTO), the value of which shall be double the
amount of loan application, as the case maybe. The loan shall be
payable for a maximum term of five (5) years via semi-monthly
installment to be deducted from the salary of the borrower at ten
percent (10%) over the term of the loan based on the outstanding
balance, and without service charge. Provided, that for whatever
reason, the entire obligation shall become due and demandable upon
termination of employment. Vehicle must not be more than 10 years
old

d. Availment of the financing plan for the acquisition of a specific type of
equipment, or appliance shall be allowed once every three (3) years.
Provided, that re-availment shall be allowed only after previous
obligations in connection with the acquisition of the same type of
equipment, or appliances have been fully liquidated.

d.1 In highly meritorious cases, availment of educational, medical or
emergency needs of the officer or employee and their immediate
families may be allowed provided that at least 50% of the original
balance have been fully paid and observing properly the set limit
for this particular loan type. In renewing/re-availing, the officer or
employee has the following options:

a. Fully pay the outstanding balance and re-avail an amount
within the paying capacity of the borrowing officer or
employee, for up to 3-year term; or

b. Renew up to the extent of the paid portion of the loan, for up
to the extent of the remaining term

e. Interest rates chargeable shall be 10% ten percent over the term of
the loan based on the outstanding balance and without service
charge. (see above sample computation). Term of the loan shall be
up to three (3) years except for motor and auto vehicle loan which is
five years, depending on the salary amortization capacity of the
officer/employee.
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C.) SALARY LOAN

a. Can be availed by officers/employees who have rendered continuous

service as follows:

1. 1 year from date of permanency — one month salary and shall be
within the paying capacity of the borrowing officer or employee;

2. 2 yrs. To 4 yrs. — equivalent to two (2) months salary and shall be
within the paying capacity of the borrowing officer or employee;

3. 5 years or more from date of permanency - equivalent of three (3)
months salary and shall be within the paying capacity of the
borrowing officer or employee.

b. Loan re-availments shall be allowed, provided the previous obligation
have been fully liquidated.

b.1. In highly meritorious cases, renewal of loan is allowed provided
that at least 50% of the original balance have been paid and
observing properly the set limit for this particular loan type. In
renewing/re-availing, the officer or employee has the following
options:

a. Fully pay the outstanding balance and re-avail an amount
within the paying capacity of the borrowing officer of
employee, for up to 2-year term; or

b. Renew up to the extent of the paid portion of the loan, for up
to the extent of the remaining term

c. Interest rate shall be ten (10%) percent per annum, without service
charge.

d. Term of the loan shall range from one (1) to two (2) years, depending
on the salary amortization capacity of the officer/employee.

D.) CALAMITY LOAN

o

Can be availed by officers/employees after the date of permanency.

b. To provide financial assistance to the officers and employees who are
affected by calamity, particularly brought about by strong typhoons and
floods.

¢. Loan amount shall be P5,000.00

i. Interest rate shall be fixed eight (8%) percent per
annum, without service charge.

ii. Term of the loan shall be up to one (1) year only.
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9.

Mode and Procedure of Amortization Payment:

A. Mode of Payment
1. To ensure the capacity to pay of an officer or employee, all availments under
the financial assistance program of the Bank shall be covered by an
amortization schedule duly conformed by the employee.

1.1 In determining the “paying capacity”, twenty five (25%) percent of
his/her “Net Take Home Pay” must be first set aside, before the
preparation of amortization schedule for the “newly availed” financial
assistance plus the “existing availment” under the FAP, must always be
considered.

2. The amortization schedule must be based on the term of the availment
(minimum of 1 year to a maximum of 5 years) divided by the number of bi-
monthly payments to coincide with payroll dates.

B. Procedures/Guidelines on the Application of Amortization Payment:

1. Five days before every payroll date, the HO Loan Bookkeeper shall prepare
and submit to the Accounting Head for checking, the list of FAP
amortizations to be applied as payroll deductions of concerned employees.
In preparing the list, the loan bookkeeper must see to it that all due
amortizations are included, without exceptions;

2. The list is then submitted to the HR Head who prepares the payroll, for
approval and application as deduction in the subject payroll;

3. For newly-released or re-availed loan under the FAP, the first amortization
shall be applied on the next payroll date immediately after such release or
re-availment.

C. Rationale of Interest Computation for All Types of Loans under the Financial
Assistance Program:

e To give it a distinct/separate treatment and be differentiated from the
regular bank loans;

e To make them precisely as benefit loans for the Bank’s rank and file;
Thus,

Interest (1) = Rate (%) x Term (T) x P*

e where P or Principal = outstanding/remaining balance

Loan accounts of Employees availed under Financial Assistance Program starting
December, 2021 and onwards, are covered by this amendments retroactively.
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Self-Assessment Function:

A. The structure of the internal audit and compliance functions including its role,
mandate/authority, and reporting process.

Authority:

Internal Audit Department (IAD) aims to promote effective controls at a reasonable
cost. To achieve this, IAD is authorized, in the course of its activities:

e To enter all areas of the auditable units and have full, free, and unrestricted access
to all levels of management, Bank’s internal records, including Board of Director
(BOD) meetings, bank’s functions, systems, the documents and ledgers, property,
and personnel of the Bank, considered necessary for the performance of its
functions;

e To require all members of staff and management to supply such information and
explanations as may be needed within a reasonable period of time;

¢ To have access to the Audit Committee and the President;

To obtain the necessary assistance of personnel in units of the Bank where they
perform audits, as well as other specialized services from within or outside of the
Bank;

The |IAD and its staff are not authorized to:

o Perform any operational duties for the Bank;
¢ Initiate or approve accounting transactions external to IAD.

Responsibilities:

The scope of work of IAD is to determine whether the Bank’s risk management,
internal control systems, information systems and governance processes are adequate and
functioning in a manner to ensure that:

e Risks are appropriately identified and managed;

e Significant financial, managerial, and operating information is accurate, reliable and
timely;

e Review the adequacy of controls established to ensure compliance with policies,

plans, procedures and business objectives;

Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently, and adequately protected,;

Assess the means of safeguarding assets;

Review established procedures and systems and propose improvements;

Monitor recommendations forwarded to make sure that effective remedial action is

taken;

e Carry out ad hoc appraisals, investigations, or reviews requested by the Audit
Committee or the President;

o Develop a flexible annual audit plan using an appropriate risk-based methodology,
including any risks or control concerns identified by the President;

e Implement the annual audit plan, including, as appropriate, any special tasks or
projects requested by the Audit Committee or the President;
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e Evaluate and assess significant merging/consolidating functions and new or
changing activities, processes, operations, and control processes coincident with
their development, implementation, and/or expansion;

o Keep the Audit Committee and the President informed of emerging trends,
successful practices, and significant measurement criteria in internal auditing;

e |dentify and report to the Audit Committee and the President actual and potential
weakness in the systems or internal control where it exists, and recommend feasible
ways to remedy it;

e |ssue periodic reports on a timely basis to the Audit Committee and to the President
of the Bank summarizing the result of the Audit activities;

¢ Maintain a team that collectively possesses the necessary knowledge, skills, and
disciplines for the achievement of the IAD activities. In cases of special need, IAD
resources may be implemented by:

- Assistance of other suitable staff within the Bank;
- Engagement of consulting services;

The internal audit process, however, does not relieve departmental heads and staff
of their responsibility for the maintenance and improvement of internal controls in their
respective area.

Independence and Objectivity:

To ensure its independence, Internal Audit Department (IAD) is directly and
functionally responsible to the Audit Committee, and administratively to the President.

In this context, functional accountability means that the Audit Committee would:

1. Approve the internal audit risk assessment and related audit plan;

2. Receive communications from the Head of IAD on the results of the internal audit
activities or other matters that he/she determines to be necessary, including private
meetings with him/her without management present;

3. Approve the charter of the internal audit function;

4. Determine whether there are scopes or budgetary limitations that impede the ability
of the internal audit activity to execute its responsibilities;

Administrative accountability is the relationship of the IAD within the organization’s
management structure that facilitates day-to-day operations of the internal audit activity and
provides appropriate interface and support for effectiveness. Administrative reporting
typically includes:

1. Budgeting and management accounting;

2. Internal communications and information flows;

3. Administration of the organization’s internal policies and procedures;

To maintain objectivity, the Internal Audit Department (IAD) is not involved in day-to-
day control procedures. Instead, each business unit is responsible for its internal control.
Accountability:

The Head of IAD, in the discharge of his/her duties, shall be accountable functionally
to the Audit Committee, and administratively to the President. IAD Head shall send copies
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of his/her reports that are sent to the Audit Committee to the President. The main functions
of the IAD include, but are not limited to:

e Provide annually an assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s
processes for controlling its activities and managing its risks in the areas set forth
under “Purpose and Objectives”;

o Report significant issues related to the processes for controlling the activities of the
Bank, including potential improvements to these processes, and provide information
concerning such issues;

e Furnish the annual audit plan and periodically provide information on the status and
results of the annual audit plan and the sufficiency of IAD’s resources;

e Coordinate with and monitor the results of work performed by, other control and
monitoring functions (e.g., risk management, security, ethics, evaluations, and
external audit);

e Perform financial, accounting, administrative, information technology, and
operational audits in a systematic and selective manner to provide adequate audit
coverage over an appropriate period,;

o Review the systems of internal controls maintained by the Bank to safeguard its
financial and physical assets, verifying the existence of related assets, ascertaining
high-risk areas, and recommending alternative approaches to correct any
weaknesses;

e Maintain a continuing program for reviewing the effectiveness of lending and
technical assistance activities in order to ascertain whether results are consistent
with established Bank policies, objectives, and goals;

o Review the reliability, accuracy, and integrity of financial and operating information
systems and related policies, plans, procedures, and records in order to appraise
their adequacy regarding the intended objectives;

e Appraise the adequacy of the action taken by the President on recommendations to
correct reported internal control weaknesses and/or deficient conditions and advise
the Audit Committee and the President of the risk(s) assumed by not taking
corrective action on reported findings;

e Continue direct communications with appropriate management staff members on
corrective actions considered inadequate until the matter has been satisfactorily
resolved.

Continuity and Impartiality:

e Internal Audit within the Bank shall be a permanent function.

e |AD shall be objective and impartial in performing its assignment.

¢ Objectivity and impatrtiality entail that the internal audit department will seek
to avoid any conflict of interest.

For the purpose of the impartiality and independence of the IAD, the appointment,
and removal of IAD Head shall be executed in accordance with the Bank’s internal
regulations, but in consultation with the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Furthermore,
personnel evaluation (performance appraisal) of the IAD Head shall be conducted by the
Audit Committee.
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Standards:

Internal Audit Department adheres to the standards of best professional practice,

such as International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and the
Code of Ethics of The Institute of Internal Auditors.

ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

AUDIT SCOPE AND OBJECTIVES

The scope and objectives of the internal audit of the Bank consist but not limited to
following:

To determine whether controls over financial and operating data provide Bank
management with reasonable assurance that the financial and operating data is
accurate and reliable (i.e., that information gathering and reporting has been
properly planned, organized and directed);

To determine whether controls over compliance with BSP and Bank’s internal
policies, procedures, plans, laws and regulations provide Bank Management and the
Board of Directors with reasonable assurance that proper compliance actually
occurs (i.e., that compliance activities have been properly planned, organized and
directed);

To determine whether internal control system over assets provide Bank
Management and the Board of Directors with reasonable assurance that assets exist
and are protected against loss that could result from theft, fire, improper or illegal
activities, or exposure to the elements (i.e., that activities associated with asset
acquisition, recording, storage, insurance cover, use and disposal have been
properly planned, organized and directed);

To determine whether internal control system over operations provide Bank
Management and Board of Directors with reasonable assurance that resources are
used efficiently and economically (i.e., that the Bank is doing things the best way).
The objective then, is to determine whether operating standards have been
established for measuring economy and efficiency (i.e., that activities have been
properly planned); and whether operating standards are understood and are being
met; whether deviations from operating standards or budgets are identified,
analyzed and communicated to those responsible for corrective action and whether
effective, corrective action has been taken (in summary, whether activities have
been properly directed); and

To determine whether controls over operations and programs provide
Management and Board of Directors with reasonable assurance that the operations
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and programs are being carried out as planned, and that the results of operations
are consistent with established goals and objectives (i.e.,, whether activities have
been planned, organized and directed so that the organization does the right things),
i.e, that the audit objectives and goals established by Bank Management are
adequate and have been effectively articulated and communicated; whether the
desired level of results is being achieved; whether factors that inhibit satisfactory
performance and results are identified, evaluated, and controlled; whether
management has considered alternative courses of action to achieve desired
results; whether an operation or program complements, duplicates, overlaps or
conflicts with other operations or programs; whether controls for measuring and
reporting the accomplishment of objectives and goals are adequate; and whether an
operation or program is in compliance with applicable policies, procedures, plans,

laws and regulations.

IDENTIFICATION OF AUDIT AREAS

Check and review of the different bank-related risks depending whether the risks are
applicable to the branch/unit such as:

The Financial Risk Audit - This type of audit verifies that controls over acquisition and
use of resources are adequate. It also verifies that sufficient control exist over assets,
liabilities, revenues, and expenditures. They address the accounting and reporting of
financial transactions, including commitments, authorizations, and receipt and
disbursement of funds. The aim of which is to assess the reliability of the accounting
system and information of resulting financial report. Financial risk audit is composed of

the following:

Types of Risk Definition Assertions and Activities

Credit Risk -Risks arising from the borrower’s | Compliance to management policies
failure to honor to pay his |and procedures, BSP and other
obligations (interest and/or loan | regulatory agencies’ issuances and
principal) on due date. directives, proper documentation

and classification and compliance
with internal control standards and
risk management system.

Liquidity Risk -Refers to the risk of failure of the | Compliance to submitted business
bank to execute business plans, | plan,  strategic  implementation,
objectives and medium to long- | reporting, monitoring and review.
term goals. Assessment and evaluation of the

marketing plan, its policies and
procedures and its effectiveness in
risk management.

Market/Interest Risk -Is the probability of a decline in | Assessment and evaluation of the
the value of an asset resulting | marketing plan, its policies and
from unexpected fluctuations in | procedures and its effectiveness in
interest rates. risk management.
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-The risk to earnings or capital
arising from adverse movements
in factors that affect the market
value of instruments, products,
and transactions in an institution’s
over-all portfolio. Market risk
arises from market-making,
dealings and position-taking in an
interest rate, foreign exchange,
and equity and commodities
market.

Non-Financial Risks - events or actions, other than financial transactions, that can
operations or assets of a company. These include the following

negatively impact the
risks:

Types of Risk Definition Assertions and Activities

Operational Risk -The risk that may arise as a result | Assessment of the quality and
of weakness in organizational | appropriateness of policies and
structure, poor oversight function | procedures, to analyze the
of the board of directors and | organizational structures such as
senior management, defective | people, equipment, process and
personnel recruitment/ selection | information technology systems,
criteria, weak internal control | and to evaluate the adequacy of
system, inadequate internal and | the methods and resources, in
external audit coverage and | relation to the assignment.
deficient management
information system.

Information -Risk  about the hardware, | Reviewing the governance

Technology Risk software, system interfaces, data | (control) of information and
system users, system and data | communications technologies
criticality and sensitivity which | (computer). To examine the
will affect management | effectiveness of their technical
information, reporting and | and procedural controls to
monitoring. minimize risks.

Anti-Money -Risks which lead to the layering | Review and assess the bank’s

Laundering or integration into the banking | policies on customer
system any funds obtain from | identification, storage, and
illegal sources. It is also the failure | reporting systems.
to detect or prevent the funding of
terrorist plan and activities.

Corporate -The risk that the board will not | Review and assessment on the

Governance perform their mandated functions | performance of the board and
and responsibilities, violates | senior officers of the Bank.
regulations, laws and internal
policies and regulations.
-The risk that may arise as a result
of weakness in organizational
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structure, poor oversight function
of the board of directors and
senior management, defective
personnel recruitment/ selection
criteria, weak internal control
system, inadequate internal and
external audit coverage and
deficient management
information system. Such risk
may affect the capital and
earnings of the bank.

Compliance Risk

-Risk to earnings or capital arising
from violations of or non-
compliance with laws, rules and
regulations, prescribed practices,
or ethical standards. This risk

To assess the quality of
appropriateness of the
established systems, policies and
procedures to ensure compliance
with laws, regulations, policies

exposes the bank to fines, | and procedures.
monetary penalties, payment of
damages, and suspension of
authorities or violating of
contracts.
Environment and | -Potential negative consequences | To assess the risks of harm to
Social Risk | to the Bank that results from its | human health or the environment
Management impact (or perceived impacts) on | and identify areas for
the natural environment (i.e., air, | improvement to reduce their
water, soil) or communities of | environmental and social impact.
people (i.e, employees, clients, | To assess the Bank’s compliance
local residents). with environmental and social
regulations, reducing the risk of
fines and penalties.
AUDIT APPROACH

The Internal Audit will consist of interviews with key employees, review of documents,
inspections, data analysis, review of accounting entries and the usage of applicable audit
tools. A random as well as statistical sampling approach shall be employed in the conduct
of examination. Direct confirmation of deposit and/or loan balances from sample-sized
clients, thru mailed Auditor’s inquiry letters will also be applied. The audit will consist of
the components described below. The phases are listed in sequential order and should
provide an overview of the sequencing of the proposed engagement.

MOBILIZATION PHASE

The Internal Auditor will:

» Require all units a list of schedules and relevant documents and materials that will support
the fieldwork prior to the audit visit.
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» Develop and have the audited branches and units undergo an initial interview with some
officers and staff that are expected to assist during the performance of the audit.

» Develop an audit program to guide activities during the course of the audit. The audit
program guide shall include a list of the controls that would be reviewed along with a
defined approach for understanding the design of the control and how it would be tested to
determine if it is operating effectively.

IDENTIFICATION AND PRIORITIZATION OF AUDITING RISK UNIVERSE/AREAS

Determine and categorize the audit universe. Prioritize the branches/units to be
audited based on risk level of the most recent audit results.

High Risk - First Priority
Medium Risk - Second in priority, for audit after high risk business units
Low Risk - Last priority, semester or at later dates

The Bank has six (6) branches and six (6) admin departments/sections located at the
Head Office. In the last audit review, the Malasiqui Branch had a moderate risk level,
while the five other branches and admin departments and units had a low risk level.
Thus, the order of priority of review and prioritization per risk areas of auditable
branches, departments and admin units shall be as follows:

MALASIQUI BRANCH
Type of Risk Result of Audit (Risk Type) Prioritization of Risk Area
Operational Risk Medium Risk (increasing) 1
Credit Risk Medium Risk (stable) 2
Compliance Risk Medium Risk (stable) 2
AMLA Low Risk (stable) 3
MANGALDAN BRANCH
Type of Risk Result of Audit (Risk Type) Prioritization of Risk Area
Operational Risk Low Risk (increasing) 1
Credit Risk Low Risk (decreasing) 2
Compliance Risk Low Risk (decreasing) 2
AMLA Low Risk (Stable) 3
BINMALEY BRANCH
Type of Risk Result of Audit (Risk Type) Prioritization of Risk Area
Operational Risk Low Risk (stable) 1
Credit Risk Low Risk (decreasing) 2
Compliance Risk Low Risk (stable) 1
AMLA Low Risk (stable) 3
SAN FABIAN BRANCH
Type of Risk Result of Audit (Risk Type) Prioritization of Risk Area
Operational Risk Low Risk (stable) 1
Credit Risk Low Risk (stable) 1

Page 139 of 250




@ PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 140

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

Compliance Risk Low Risk (stable) 2
AMLA Low Risk (stable) 2
ALAMINOS BRANCH
Type of Risk Result of Audit (Risk Type) Prioritization of Risk Area
Operational Risk Low Risk (stable) 2
Credit Risk Low Risk (increasing) 1
Compliance Risk Low Risk (stable) 2
AMLA Low Risk (stable) 2
ROSARIO BRANCH
Type of Risk Result of Audit (Risk Type) Prioritization of Risk Area
Operational Risk Low Risk (stable) 1
Credit Risk Low Risk (decreasing) 2
Compliance Risk Low Risk (stable) 1
AMLA Low Risk (stable) 3
MANGALDAN - ADMIN and UNITS
Type of Risk Result of Audit (Risk Type) Prioritization of Risk Area
IT Risk Low Risk (increasing) 1
Liquidity, Investment & Marke Low Risk (increasing) 1
Interest Rate Risk
Credit Risk Low Risk (increasing) 1
ROPA and SCR Risk Low Risk (stable) 2
Compliance Risk Low Risk (decreasing) 3
AMLA Low Risk (stable) 3
ESRM Low Risk (stable) 3
LIST OF REQUIREMENTS

The Internal Auditor/Audit Department shall require the audit requirements in the conduct of
its audit activities.

It shall be the responsibility of the Bank Management to provide its records to the Internal
Auditor to accomplish its scope or coverage of the audit. Such requirements shall not be limited
to schedules, reports, minutes of meetings, documents, among others subject to the limitations
set on this Plan.

MAN DAYS ALLOCATION

Man-day allocation is an important part of planning and scheduling purposes. It
involves the process of assigning tasks, responsibilities, and resources to staff within
the department. By allocating man-days, the IAD can set realistic schedules and
determine the resources needed for the successful completion of tasks.

Internal Audit Man Days Computation

For the year 2024

Total number of days in a year 366

LESS:
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Saturdays and Sundays 104
Non-working holidays 16
Allowed vacation leave 15
Allowed sick leave 15
Allowed birthday leave a
TOTAL AVAILABLE MANDAYS 215
AUDIT TASKS and ACTIVITIES MANDAYS NEEDED PER TOTAL
TASKS MANDAYS
NEEDED
General Audit Examination 2023 Please see man days 35
Spot Audit Examination 2023 allocation  for  audit 28
General Audit Examination 2024 engagement 102
Audit Findings Monitoring 1 day per month 12
Preparation of Report for Audit Committee Meeting 1 day per quarter 4
Audit Committee Meeting and Reporting .5 day per quarter 2
Preparation of AC Meeting Minutes and Resolutions 1 day per quarter 4
Preparation of Annual Audit Plan 3 days (annually) 3
Preparation of Report for External Audit 2 days (annually) 2
ManCom Meeting estimate 4
0.5 day per month (only
as needed)
Preparation of Reports for BSP Audit 2024 BSP Audit (Feb. 13-27, 12
(including BSP Examination period where IA 2024)
presence is needed)
Preparation of Replies and Revised Policies for estimate 5
BSP Audit 2024
Trainings and Seminars estimate 2
TOTAL MANDAYS NEEDED 215
AVAILABLE MANDAYS 215
VARIANCE -
AUDIT ENGAGEMENT

PLANNING TESTING/ REPORT AUDIT REPLYMAN DAYS
FIELDWORK WRITING CHECKING NEEDED

AND

ASSESSMENT
GENERAL AUDIT EXAMINATION 2023
Low risk units (carry over from 2023 audit plan
Alaminos Branch-Cash and Acctg./Loans 1 12 2 2 17
San Fabian Branch-Cash and Acctg./Loans 1 12 2 3 18
TOTAL 2 24 4 5 35
SPOT AUDIT EXAMINATION 2023
High Risk Units/Departments
Malasiqui Branch-Cash and Acctg/Loans 1 5 2 - 8

Low Risk Units/Departments
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Mangaldan- Loans 1 3 1 - 5
Binmaley-Cash and Acctg. 1 3 1 - 5
San Fabian Branch-Loans 1 3 1 - 5
Alaminos Branch-Loans 1 3 1 - 5
TOTAL 5 17 6 - 28
GENERAL AUDIT EXAMINATION 2024

High Risk Units/Departments

Malasiqui Branch-Cash and Acctg./Loans 2 15 3 4 24
Low Risk Units/Departments

Mangaldan Branch-Cash and Acctg./Loans 1 15 2 3 21
Binmaley Branch- Loans 1 8 2 2 13
San Fabian Branch-Cash and Acctg./Loans 1 15 2 3 21
Alaminos Branch-Loans 1 8 2 2 13
Additional Audit Universe for 2024

Corporate Governance 1 5 2 2 10
TOTAL 7 66 13 16 102

DEVELOPING AUDIT PROGRAM AND SCHEDULE

Develop an audit program to guide activities during the course of this audit. The audit program
guide shall include a list of the controls that would be reviewed along with a defined approach
for understanding the design of the control and how it would be tested to determine if it was

operating effectively. (SEE ANNEX A)
PLANNED SCHEDULE

The internal audit examinations for the year 2024 shall start on the 3rd week of January
and will end on the 1st week of December, except for those periods where the Internal
Auditor/Staff will be needed during the regular BSP and External examinations where
assistance is needed. This does not include the allowed vacation, sick and emergency
leaves of internal auditor and staff, thus audit schedule will be adjusted accordingly. The
remaining weeks of December 2024 shall be devoted for the preparation of the next
year’s audit plan and program. (SEE ANNEX B)

Note: The audit schedule is based on the new normal. If COVID-19 persists, the schedule
will be adjusted accordingly.

The following are the estimated time of departure and arrival from branch and vice
versa due to heavy traffic and availability of means of transportation considering that
the audit team are travelling thru public utility vehicle:

ARRIVAL DEPARTURE

ALAMINOS *Up t010:30 am Not later than 3:00 pm
*depending on the influx of passengers of the UV Express going to Alaminos.

BINMALEY *Up to 9:30 am Not later than 4:00 pm
*depending on the traffic in Dagupan City and/or Binmaley.

Page 142 of 250



% PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 143

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

MALASIQUI *Up to 10:00 am Not later than 3:45 pm
*depending on the traffic in Dagupan City and waiting time in bus terminal.

ROSARIO *Up to 9:30 am Not later than 4:00 pm
*depending on the availability of public utility bus going to Carmen from San Fernando.

SAN FABIAN Same as Head Office time.
*except in cases wherein the audit team is requested to report to Head Office for some other transactions.

PROJECTED BUDGET COST AND EXPENSES

Aside from the regular salaries of the Internal Auditor and Audit Assistant, the Internal
Audit Plan for this year is expected to incur cost and expenses, breakdown of which is
hereby attached as ANNEX C.

For audit of branches, the IAD shall request thru the Audit Committee the use of the
service car, if available, otherwise the audit team shall commute from/to head office
and branches. For units confined in the Head Office, no expected costs, expenses or
utilization of other assets are needed.

EXECUTION PHASE

Once the audit program has been finalized, and the appropriate resources have been
identified, fieldwork will proceed in accordance with the audit plan. The IAD will
expect results from the execution of the detailed Audit Program and utilization of
working papers that will support the results from the detailed Audit Program.

REPORTING PHASE

e General Audit Examination - is the review of all areas of operations of the
branch/department.

1. Audit Draft/Initial Audit Report - As the audit progresses, the Internal Auditor/Staff shall
provide a draft report containing the initial findings and observations in one or more risk
areas. The branch/unit will be expected to respond quickly as possible. The IA team will
compile all draft reports of the audited branch/unit management within the specified days to
come up with preliminary audit report. Complied and regularized deficiencies need not to be
replied in the preliminary audit report.

No. of Accounts No. of Accounts (Data as of Nov. 30, 2023)
Deposits Loans Total No. of days to reply
Admin & Units - - - 3 days
Alaminos 382 38 420 3 days
Binmaley 746 37 783 3 days
Malasiqui 956 100 1,056 5 days
Mangaldan 1,330 104 1,434 5 days
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Rosario 307 32 339 3 days

San Fabian 1,601 88 1,689 5 days
5,322 399 5,721

Note:  Branches with below 999 accounts (deposits and loans) 3 days

Branches with 1, 000 or more accounts (deposits and loans) 5 days

2. Preliminary Audit Report - This include the audit recommendation on how to effectively
address the findings/violations among others. A period of minimum of 15 days and a
maximum of 30 days depending on the total number of accounts on loans and deposits will
be provided to the branch/unit, within which to reply and make some corrections, if needed.
A timeline to address the deficiencies, findings and observation must be included in the reply.

No. of Accounts No. of Accounts (Data as of Nov. 30, 2023)
Deposits Loans Total No. of days to reply
Admin & Units - - - 15 days
Alaminos 382 38 420 15 days
Binmaley 746 37 783 20 days
Malasiqui 956 100 1,056 25 days
Mangaldan 1,330 104 1,434 25 days
Rosario 307 32 339 15 days
San Fabian 1,601 88 1,689 30 days
5,322 399 5,721

Note: Branches with below 500 accounts (deposits and loans) 15 days

Branches with 501 to 1, 000 accounts (deposits and loans) 20 days

Branches with 1,001 to 1,500 accounts (deposits and loans) 25 days

Branches with 1, 501 or more accounts (deposits and loans) 30 days

Any request for extension for submission of audit replies will be subject for approval by the
audit committee.

3. Final Audit Report - After receiving the response(s) to the Preliminary Audit Report, the
Internal Auditor shall prepare a Final Audit Report (FAR). From the FAR matrix, the Internal
Auditor shall objectively assess each response as to whether each audit
deficiency/violation/observation has been addressed properly by indicating the word
“Accepted or Complied” or “Not Acceptable or Not Complied.”

The Internal Auditor will then prepare a Memorandum Report addressed to the Audit
Committee highlighting the material finding, violations and observations particularly items
which are marked “Not Acceptable or Not Complied” in an annex supporting the Memo

Report.
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4. Spot Audit Report - The follow up audit of at least two (2) sections of the
branch/department that provided the major exceptions and/or that caused the highest
number of internal control and procedure deficiencies. The Internal Auditor/Staff shall
prepare the audit report based on the remaining findings/exceptions not
complied/regularized by the branch/department for the spot audit done and would be the
basis for the imposition of penalty for the repetitious/recurring violations.

e Special Audit Examination - review of area/s in the branch/department with
allegations/reported incidence of fraud, irregularities, illegal acts and other similar events.

1. Special Audit Report - The internal auditor will prepare an appropriate report upon
conclusion of the investigation on the area/s of allegations, which will be submitted to the
Audit Committee and Senior Management for proper action to be taken. Results of special
audit will be taken separately from the general audit examination; files shall be kept/
maintained to the conclusion of the matter or per Record Retention Policy.

MANNER OF RISK ASSESSMENT, RISK LEVELS AND AUDIT RATING

The Internal Auditor will conduct annually risk assessment and determine the risk level of each
risk area/category on a per risk universe manner after the end of audit year. Such assessment
shall be part of the final audit report to be submitted to the Audit Committee.

Based on the information provided by each branch/unit during the initial conversation,
combined with the understanding about the branch/unit operation, the IA will formulate risk
considerations that are relevant to the Bank’s operation. The goal is to incorporate these risk
considerations in the audit program being developed in the Mobilization Phase of the internal
audit.

The risks shall be evaluated as to their efficiency and Bank Management is expected to follow
the process below:

1. Identifying the risk

Develop strategies and procedures to prioritize risk
Design policies to mitigate risk

Implement policies and assign responsibilities

Test effectiveness and monitor results

o U W

Revise ineffective policies

The results of the assessment shall be the basis of the prioritization in the next audit
engagement. The Internal Audit Rating shall also be issued to each business unit and the
bank as a whole. The audit rating of each branch/unit shall be in accordance with the
Bank’s adopted rating system. This is an improvement from previous audits whereby
the levels of risk assessment is issued on the bank as a whole.

Based on the risk points and risk level identified through the result of the risk
assessment conducted, branch operations, admin departments, and units with a strong
and above acceptable risk rating and acceptable risk rating based on the initial audit
report and has an over-all low risk level will be exempted from a one-year general audit
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examination and spot audit examination. The general audit examination will be
conducted a year thereafter.

Meanwhile, the branch operations, admin departments, and units that will incur a high
percentage of compliance and have a strong and above acceptable risk rating and a low
risk level based on the final audit report of the general audit examination will be
exempted from the spot audit examination during the audit year.

Initial Risk Points | Final Risk Points and | Risk Frequency of Audit
and Equivalent |Equivalent Risk Rating | Level
Rating
BRANCHES/DEPARTMENTS
(Based from 2023 Gen. Audit Examination)
PRIORITY NO. 1
Malasiqui-Cash and Acctg | 249-Deficent/ 173-Weak/Below Medium | For 2024 Spot and General
Unsatisfactory Acceptable Audit Examination
Malasiqui-Loans 245-Deficent/ 104-Acceptable Level Medium | For 2024 Spot and General
Unsatisfactory Audit Examination
PRIORITY NO. 2
Mangaldan-Cash and Acctg| 226-Deficent/ 76-Strong/Above Low Exempted from Spot Audit
Unsatisfactory Acceptable but not from general audit
examination
Mangaldan-Loans 142-Weak/Below 115-Acceptable Level Low For 2024 Spot and General
Acceptable Audit Examination
PRIORITY NO. 3
Binmaley-Cash and Acctg | 140-Weak/Below 99-Acceptable Level Low For 2024 Spot and General
Acceptable Audit Examination
Binmaley-Loans 135-Acceptable Level 113-Acceptable Level Low Exempted from 2024 audit
examinations
PRIORITY NO. 4
(Based from 2022 Gen. Audit Examination)
San Fabian-Cash and Acctg| 90-Acceptable Level 76-Strong/Above Low Exempted from Spot Audit
Acceptable but not from general audit
examination
San Fabian - Loans 215-Deficient/ 134-Acceptable Level Low | For 2023 and 2024 Spot and
Unsatisfactory General Audit Examination
PRIORITY NO. 5
Alaminos-Cash and Acctg | 69-Strong/Above Low Exempted from 2024 audit
Aceptable examinations
Alaminos-Loans 164-Weak/Below Low
Acceptable
PRIORITY NO. 6
Rosario-Cash and Acctg 124-Acceptable Level 76-Strong/Above Low Exempted from 2024 audit
Acceptable examinations
Rosario-Loans 97-Acceptable Level 56-Strong/Above Low Exempted from 2024 audit
Acceptable examinations
PRIORITY NO. 7
ADMIN DEPTS/UNITS
(Based from 2023 Gen.Audit Examination)
MIS/IT Unit 115-Acceptable 56-Strong/Above Low Exempted from 2024 audit
Acceptable examinations
Human Resource Dept. 98-Acceptable 47-Strong/Above Accepty Low Exempted from 2024 audit
examinations
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Credit Risk Review Unit 72-Strong/Above 32-Strong/Above Low Exempted from 2024 audit
Acceptable Acceptable examinations

Treasury/Acctg. Unit 54-Strong/Above 38-Strong/Above Low Exempted from 2024 audit
Acceptable Acceptable examinations

Asset Mgt. Dept. 38-Strong/Above 23-Strong/Above Low Exempted from 2024 audit
Acceptable Acceptable examinations

Compliance Unit 0-Strong/Above 0-Strong/Above Low Exempted from 2024 audit
Acceptable Acceptable examinations

Determining the frequency of internal audit activities will depend on the perceived need
for the audit and the size and complexity of the department. The frequency of internal
audit activities will depend on the criticality of each transactions and the perceived
need to audit it, but all processes should be formally audited at least once during a 2-
year audit cycle.

Risk criteria considered in determining the risk level and frequency of testing of each
audit activities includes impact on banking operations, likelihood of event to happen
and the actions to be undertaken by the Audit Committee/Senior Management. Audit
scope activities which are identified as high risk will be audited semi-annually, medium
risk activities will be conducted annually, while low risk audit activities will be audited
at least once in every two years. (SEE ANEX D)

1. DIRECT CONFIRMATION
During the audit period, the Internal Auditor shall conduct direct confirmation of
the outstanding balance of the borrowers by sending letters of confirmation.
Negative results of the direct confirmation shall be known to the Audit
Committee, if there is any.

2. MONITORING PROCESS AND ADMINISTRATION

Follow-up and feedback of compliance and regularization of the audit findings
shall be monitored by the Internal Auditor. The Internal Auditor shall confer
with the auditee (business unit/branch) and conduct monitoring activities of the
audit status during the start of the new audit period or engagement contract
whichever comes first for any unresolved audit issues and concerns. It is
expected that the operation management to respond immediately to all
outstanding audit findings.

A monitoring report on the status of the audit finding/exception/observation
shall be forwarded to the Audit Committee, which in turn, shall report to the

Board of Directors.

Any unresponded or audit findings with unsatisfactory audit responses in the
previous audit period shall be given higher demerit ratings.
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MANNER OF COMMUNICATIONS

Branch/unit responses are important elements of the internal audit. Through regular
meetings and ongoing communication with each branch/unit management, we will
establish a relationship of openness through which we can discuss significant audit
findings, recommendations for improving internal controls or operations, ultimately
develop solutions to the issues.

It is our policy to discuss our findings and recommendations with the concerned
branch/unit prior to issuance of each audit report so that we can verify factual accuracy.
The final audit report will only include findings and recommendations considered
significant. Other matters will be communicated throughout the engagement and during
the regular meetings and fieldwork.

In case of fraud discovery, the same process will be done only that the Audit Committee
and Senior Management shall be given advance information from time-to-time.

START AND END OF AUDIT PERIOD

The start and projected end of the Internal Audit shall be determined upon approval of the
Audit Plan by the Board of Directors. This shall be manifested in the submitted Audit Program.

COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

Rationale

A bank compliance program is the method that the Bank uses to abide by all
applicable regulations, rules and laws. Pangasinan Bank (A Rural Bank), Inc. is
responsible for developing a sound and safe compliance program that takes into account the
risks involved for the protection of the bank's clients, reputation, employees and overall
business efforts. The Bank appoints Compliance Officer in order to develop compliance
policies and procedures, monitor and test programs, train employees, render advice, report
results and handle the general management of the compliance department.

Introduction

Bank’s Compliance System is designed to specifically identify and mitigate business
risks which may erode the franchise value of the bank. Business risks refers to conditions
which may be detrimental to a bank’s business model and its ability to generate returns from
operations, which in turn erodes its franchise value. Combining business risk with the
financial risks arising from the use of borrowed funds generates total corporate risk of the
bank. Business risks shall include, but not limited to, the following:

a. Risks to reputation that arise from internal decisions that may damage a bank’s
market standing;
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b.

C.

Risks to reputation that arise from business actions, decisions and practices that
ultimately will influence on the public’s trust of a bank;

Risks from the actions of a bank that are contrary to existing regulations and
identified best practices and reflect weaknesses in the implementation of codes of
conduct and standards of good practice;

Legal risks to the extent that changes in the interpretation or provisions of regulations
directly affect a bank’s business model.

Obijectives of the Compliance Program

A.

1.

Address the Bank’s business activities and consequent risks —

Emphasize that bank personnel has an important role in complying with regulations.
E. g. Bank’s Code of Conduct

Banking laws, rules and regulations should serve as established compliance standards
(benchmark) to be followed by personnel.

Specific individual(s) belonging to Senior Management who shall be in-charge of the
overall responsibility to oversee compliance

. Give emphasis to education and training

Personnel whose jobs could have a material impact on compliance risks should be
adequately educated and trained.

The Bank, through its training office, should take steps to communicate effectively its
standards and procedures on AML, corporate governance and the code of conduct by
requiring participation in training programs or issuing publications that explain in a
practical manner what is required of them.

Periodic testing and self-assessment exercises should go hand-in-hand with training to
determine the level of knowledge & understanding on banking laws, rules and
regulations.

A culture of knowledge-sharing among bank personnel by freely communicating
compliance concerns in regular meetings should be encouraged.

Corporate Policy

Following are the corporate policy framework relative to the installation and adoption

of the Compliance System:

1.

Compliance is not merely the function of the Compliance Officer but is a matter of
concern of all directors, officers and personnel. It is the direct responsibility of each
manager and a personal responsibility of each staff.

It is essential that each director, officer and staff comply with the spirit as well as set
policies and procedures.

Page 149 of 250



PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 150

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

3. Compliance is to be regarded as a means of enhancing profitability within the
limitation of regulatory requirements and good business practice.

Training

The compliance department must provide all employees of the bank with adequate
and effective training concerning all policies and procedures of the bank. Each employee
must be tested for comprehensive understanding. Some policy and procedures testing, such
as concerning the "Bank Secrecy Act", "Money Laundering Act." and the “Know-Your-
Client Policy” must occur on an annual basis.

Providing Advice

During the course of any business day, many compliance questions arise from the
employees of other departments within the bank. The compliance department is in-charge
with the responsibility of giving advice concerning all questions of compliance control and
application.

Reporting

The compliance officer must provide reports to other areas of the bank concerning the
results of compliance reviews and training. They must also report changes in laws that result
in policy amendments and new policies developed in accordance with new legislation. All
changes to the compliance program of the bank must be cleared through and approved by the
board of directors.

Management

The compliance officer should manage the compliance staff under his control in order
to provide for adequate coverage of all compliance program functions including the goal of
safety and soundness

| - STATUS OF COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

The compliance function has a formal status within the Bank. It is established by a
Compliance Charter duly approved by the Board of Directors on Aug. 31, 2021 through
Board Resolution No. 090-2021. It defines the compliance functions’ standing, authority and
independence, and addresses the following issues:

a. measures to ensure the independence of the compliance function from the business
activities of the bank;

b. the organizational structure and responsibilities of the unit or department
administering the compliance program;

c. the relationship of the compliance unit/department with other functions or units of the
organization, including the delineation of responsibilities and lines of cooperation;

d. its right to obtain/have full access to information necessary to carry out its
responsibilities;
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e. itsright to conduct investigations of possible breaches of the compliance policy;

f. its formal reporting relationships to senior management, the Board of Directors, and
the appropriate board-level Committee.

g. itsright of direct access to the Board of Directors and to the appropriate Board-Level-
Committee.

Il - BASIC ELEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE SYSTEM

A. The Compliance Program was duly approved by the Board of Directors and noted
through its Board Resolution No. 091-2021, dated Aug. 31, 2021, embodied therein are the
following:

1. Risks program covers financial risks that arise from the balance sheet
exposures of the bank. The Internal audit program, on the other hand, shall
review on ex-post basis whether prescribed guidelines of the bank were
followed in administering transactions, handling procedures, making
decisions, and undertaking related activities.

2. The Bank ensures that compliance and internal audit department is provided
with necessary staff to carry out its function, taking into consideration the size
and complexity of the operations of the Bank.

Banking by its nature entails taking a wide array of risks. Risks are
exposure to possible loss or inquiry that may affect capital and earnings. Nearly
all transactions entered into by a rural bank involves risks. However, risk may
also arise from bank’s inaction or failure to comply with relevant laws, rules, and
regulations issued by regulatory/supervisory bodies. The success of a rural bank is
largely dependent on the ability of its directors and officers to prudently manage
these risks. Risk management involves identification, measuring, controlling and
reporting risks and disclosing possible consequences. The normal risks in daily
operations which may result in loss to earnings and capital are the following:

Credit risks — arising from the borrower’s failure to pay interest and/or loan
principal at maturity date.

Liquidity risks — arising from the failure to meet maturing obligations due to
mismatch in cash flows and incidence of high past due loans which may put
pressure on the bank’s liquidity position.

Market and Investment risks — arising from the possible decline in the value of
acquired assets and investments in equities and debt instruments.

Interest rate risk — risk arising from mismatches of the timing which interest rates
on assets and liabilities can be changed.
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Operations risks — arising as a result of weakness in organizational structure, poor
oversight functions of the Board of Directors and Senior Management, faulty
hiring policies, weak internal control system, inadequate internal and external
audit coverage and deficient/inadequate management information system.

Legal risks — arising as a result of unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgment.

Reputation risks — arising from negative/adverse public opinion.

Compliance risks — this type of risk has not been given much attention, perhaps
because they are difficult to estimate, quantify and provide for in advance.
Compliance risk arises from failure to comply with relevant rules and regulations
issued by regulatory and/or supervisory bodies and due to unsound banking
practices. The risk exposes the bank and its directors and officers to fines,
monetary penalties and administrative sanctions.

3. An appropriate organizational structure was put in place to manage the
compliance function and execute the approved compliance program. The
compliance function is manned by full-time officer/staff either embedded in
operating departments, or in a department of its own.

4. In addition to the organizational structure, the duties and responsibilities of the
Compliance Officer and other personnel involved in the compliance function
must be defined explicitly.

COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

> it is the bank’s discipline to stay compliant with regulations on a going-concern
basis that is essential to what makes it a bank.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

» an essential counter-checking is provided by the internal audit function. Its
importance is highlighted by the fact that governance principles require it to be a
board-level responsibility. As the bank’s conscience and counter-check, this
function must be internalized and institutionalized within the workflow of any
bank.

B. A constructive working relationship between the bank and BSP

The Bank through its Compliance Officer, may consult with the BSP for clarifications
on specific provisions of related laws and regulations. Similarly, BSP may initiate a dialogue
with the bank to discuss the compliance program of the bank and its records of
implementation of the same.
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The Bank is enjoined to discuss clarifications of pertinent laws and regulations with
other appropriate agencies that issue market regulations and/or tax guidelines.

C. Clear and open communication lines within the bank to educate and address compliance
matters

Officers and staff shall be trained in the normal course of bank operations with
respect to the compliance program of the bank and the identified business risks. The
processes for imparting to bank personnel for the necessary appreciation of the bank’s
compliance culture shall form part of the Compliance Manual.

111 — COMPLIANCE OFFICER

a. The Compliance Officer should have the necessary qualifications, experience, and
professional background and should have a sound understanding of relevant laws and
regulations and their potential impact on the bank’s operations.

b. The Compliance Officer should be up-to-date with the development in laws, rules and
standards, maintained through continuous training.

c. The Bank has appointed a full-time Compliance Officer to manage the compliance
program. Given the importance of the compliance function, the Compliance Officer is a
senior officer functionally reporting to the bank’s board-level Audit Committee. Such
appointment/designation shall require prior approval of the Monetary Board. The
Compliance Officer’s qualifications shall be subject to the provisions of the MORB
enumerating the qualifications of bank officers, particularly putting consideration to “fit
and proper criteria” such as integrity/probity, competence, education, diligence and
experience/training.

d. The Compliance Officer shall oversee the identification and management of the bank’s
compliance risk and shall supervise the compliance function staff.

IV — DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Aside from the duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors mentioned under
Sec. 132, the Board of Directors shall ensure that a compliance program is defined for the
bank and that compliance issues are resolved expeditiously. For this purpose, the board-level
Audit Committee, shall oversee the compliance program.

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the bank personnel adhere to the pre-defined
compliance standard of the bank. Implementation of the compliance program rests
collectively with senior management, of which the Compliance Officer is the lead operating
officer on compliance. Senior management, through the Compliance Officer, should
periodically report to the board-level Audit Committee matters that affect the design and
implementation of the compliance program. Any changes, updates and amendments to the
compliance program must be approved by the board-level Audit Committee. However, any
material breaches of the compliance program shall be reported to and promptly addressed by
the Compliance Officer within the mechanisms defined by the compliance manual.
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V — COMPLIANCE ISSUES

In order to ensure compliance with laws and regulatory issuance in the daily
operations of the bank, the following shall be observed:

A

Each department/branch shall be furnished a list of laws, rules and regulations
applicable to all their transactions which shall be observed by its officers and
staff. A summary of the provisions of laws, rules and regulations relevant to
banking is shown in ANNEX A — (Regqulatory Compliance Matrix Monitoring-
to be performed quarterly).

Banking Laws

BSP Circulars

Corporation Code

Bureau of Internal Revenue
Securities and Exchange Commission
Local Government Code

Philippine Deposit Insurance Corp.
Department of Labor and Employment
. Social Security System

10. Department of Justice

11. Officer Orders/Memoranda

CoNOR~wWNE

A list of reports required to be submitted to the BSP and other regulatory agencies
shall be furnished each department/branch. Each department/branch responsible
for the preparations/submission of such reports shall be identified. Each
department/branch shall maintain a logbook containing information when each
report is due and when such report was actually submitted to the regulatory body.
Evidence of receipt of reports by the appropriate regulatory office shall be kept on
file at all times. A list of required reports to be submitted to BSP is shown in
ANNEX B - (BSP Reportorial Requirements Monitoring-to be performed

quarterly).

. To determine compliance of banks with prescribed internal control standards, a

suggested set of Internal Control Questionnaires is attached as ANNEX C-to
be performed annually.

. A set of Questionnaire on_Deposit Practices is also suggested to determine

compliance of banks with deposit practices attached ANNEX D-to be performed
annually.

In order to ascertain compliance with policies and procedures on Related Party
Transactions, a questionnaire as ANNEX E-to be performed annually, is also
attached.
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F. Assessment Checklist as ANNEX F- to be performed annually in every
Department/Branch Unit to find out if manual of operations policies and
procedures are performed as such.

G. To monitor compliance with the Record Keeping of Bank Deposits on Regular
Savings Deposit (RSD), attached as ANNEX G the Assessment Monitoring to be
perform annually.

H. To monitor compliance with the Record Keeping of Bank Deposits on Special
Savings Deposit (SSD), attached as ANNEX H the Assessment Monitoring to be
perform annually.

I. To monitor compliance with AMLA, Covered and Suspicious Transactions
Monitoring, attached as ANNEX 1 to be performed quarterly

The reports of the Compliance Officer on the results of the compliance testing
shall be submitted to the President together with his recommendations. The
compliance rating of each department/branch shall be based among others, on the
number of violations, amount involved and persistence in committing the
violations. The level of risks are as follows:

Negligible No effect on the Bank

Low - Possibility of losses is minimal

Moderate Risk of losses is manageable

High Exposure to losses are very definite and imminent.

The Compliance rating shall be considered as one of the basis for promotions,
awards and other incentives that may be granted by the bank as well as for
disciplinary actions.

The compliance risk rating of each department/branch be considered in
determining the frequency and scope of the succeeding compliance review to be
performed. Initially, the compliance audit shall be conducted quarterly.
Thereafter, the audit of a department rated “low” may be reduced to once a year,
those rated “moderate” shall continue to be audited quarterly, while those rated
“high” shall be audited at least monthly.

J. The president shall inform in writing, the Heads of each department/branch
subject of the report of the details of the violations noted and shall require the
department head/branch manager to correct the violations immediately and to
submit written reports on the action taken on the violations noted and the status of
the corrective actions taken. Whenever necessary, meetings/discussion between
the Compliance Officer, the Department Head/Branch Manager shall be held.
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Such meetings shall be supported by minutes of the discussion and commitments
made by the department head/branch manager to correct the exceptions noted.

K. The President shall submit periodic reports, at least quarterly to the Board of
Directors on violations noted by the compliance officer, the actions taken by the
officer concerned to correct said violations and appropriate recommendations to

prevent repetition thereof.

VI - RISK ASSESSMENT AND TESTING

1. The Compliance Officer in coordination with the Internal Auditor or the
Bank President shall establish a monitoring and assessment process, a
checklist of regulations, to ensure that all directors, officers and staff of
the bank are familiar with the compliance program.

2. Once the Compliance program is in place, a periodic compliance
review/monitoring and assessment of each department/branch on a regular

basis shall be enforced.

3. The internal and external auditors of the bank shall be required to inform
the Compliance Officer of any violation of laws, rules and regulations
noted in their audit work.

Reports on the monitoring and assessment shall be prepared and submitted to
the President/Chief Operating Officer to documents findings, issues, concerns and
remedial/corrective measures taken. The reports must be thoroughly reviewed and
approved by the department/unit head/branch managers concerned before their
submission to the President and the Board of Directors.

EVALUATION CRITERIA TO BE USED IN COMPLIANCE RISK

ASSESSMENT

e Impact on the Business (Significant Rating Guide):

ASSESSMENT

RATING

IMPACT ON BANK’S BUSINESS

High

1

Consequences will threaten the bank’s
survival or material impact on
operations or could result in PCA or
closure of the bank.

Medium

Consequences will result in monetary
penalties or suspension of directors to
be imposed by the regulatory agency.

Low

Consequences will result in minimal
monetary penalties or failure to attain
current objectives of the bank.

Negligible

No effect on the bank’s operations.
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e Likelihood Rating Guide:

ASSESSMENT | RATING LIKELIHOOD OF EVENT TO
HAPPEN
High or strong possibility that the risk of
Almost Certain 1 non-compliance or sanction will occur if
not given attention.
Likely or 2 At some point, the risk of non-
Possible compliance or sanction will occur.
Unlikely 3 Slight or unexpected that risk of non-
compliance or sanction will occur.
Rare 4 Risk of non-compliance or sanction is
almost unlikely or almost no chance at
all.

e Required Action (Priority Rating Guide):

ASSESSMENT | RATING ACTION TO BE UNDERTAKEN
1 Immediate action is required and needs
High-Severe close monitoring in addition to inclusion
in training and education.
Moderate- 2 Needs proactive monitoring and
Significant mitigating through inclusion in training
and education.
Low 3 Risk needs monitoring but no serious
threat to the bank.
Trivial 4 Risk may not at all occur; but possibility
is still possible, hence contingency plan
is only needed.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

The PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC., is headed
by a Chairman with members of the board. It consists of the following committees:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

» shall be composed of members of the board of directors, at least one (1) of whom
shall be an independent director, being the Chairman, preferably with accounting,
auditing or related financial management expertise. It shall address the company’s
internal control, financial reporting and the risk management processes. It shall
also provide an oversight to both the external and internal auditors.
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COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

» it is the bank’s discipline to stay compliant with regulations on a going-concern
basis that is essential to what makes it a bank.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

An essential counter-checking is provided by the internal audit function. Its
importance is highlighted by the fact that governance principles require it to be a
board-level responsibility. As the bank’s conscience and counter-check, this
function must be internalized and institutionalized within the workflow of any
bank. The IAD personnel should be directly reporting to the Audit Committee.

CREDIT COMMITTEE

» shall be composed of three (3) members:
- the Bank President
- the Corporate Secretary
- the Credit Head

they shall meet at least once a week, to take up loan items within the approval
authority of the Credit Committee scaled authority of P100,001.00 to
P1,500,000.00M.

» shall formulate loan policies, principles and procedures to be recommended to the
Board of Directors, prior to their implementation.

» shall adopt types of loan products; loan interest pricings and loan documentation
standards that are in compliance with the various regulatory bodies;

» shall revise, upgrade the company’s credit/loan manual, as the need arises.

The bank operations consists of the following departments headed by the President:

I. ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

> 1s hereby created to undertake the periodic review and assessment of Bank’s
operation.

REAL & OTHER PROPERTIES ACQUIRED (ROPA) DEPARTMENT

» responsible for the administration of bank assets, performing the following
functions:

1. Maintaining proper accounting for all income and all expenses for each asset
held.
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2.) Making periodic reports to the board of directors regarding new acquisitions,
sale and status of outstanding balance; properties covered by rental leases, as
well as those under litigation or with court cases.

3.) Preparing periodic appraisal of asset values to update records with current
market prices.

4.) Maintaining adequate insurance coverage.

5.) Updating Real Estate Tax Receipts annually

ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT

» it shall ensure the timely submission or reports to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas,
Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation, Bureau of Internal Revenue, Securities
and Exchange Commission and other supervising agencies (SSS, PHIC, HDMF,
NSO, etc.).

1l. OPERATION DEPARTMENT*

» performs the following functions:

1.) Market loans, deposits and other bank products and services;

2.) Accept loan application and conduct preliminary credit evaluation;

3.) Perform customer care services

4.) Perform customer identification process, receive account opening documents
and facilitate account activation. Provided, that account opening approval and
actual opening of deposit accounts shall be done only at the office.

* The bank operations consists of the following departments headed by the
Branch Manager or Department Head:

CASH DEPARTMENT

» shall monitor the cash flow of the bank, derived from accepting deposits, loan
transactions and capital investments, and other transactions such as expenditures.

ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT

» shall ensure the timely accounting and proper recording of all financial
transactions of its offices and observe adequate internal control procedures to
ensure the safety of funds and reliability of financial records and reports
emanating from all transactions

CREDIT INVESTIGATION AND APPRAISAL UNIT (CIAU)

> shall be the unit responsible for the centralized processing, maintenance and
monitoring of the bank’s lending operation being the bank’s primary source of
income. Although booking of loans remains in the book of the branches, all other
transactions pertaining to loan documentations and supervision shall be the
primary responsibility of the originating branch/operations.
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Dividend Policy

Declaration of Dividends. Dividends may be declared annually or oftener as the
Board of Directors may determine. The Board may declare dividends only from the surplus
profits of the Corporation after making proper provisions for the necessary reserves in
accordance with law and regulations of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, and the deductions
provided in Article X and XI.

Stock Dividends. With the approval of the Stockholders representing two-thirds (2/3)

of all stock then outstanding and entitled to vote given at a general meeting or at a special
meeting duly called for the purpose, the Board may declare that dividends be paid in stock.

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives

The Board of Directors of Pangasinan Bank (A Rural Bank), Inc. is ultimately
responsible in ensuring that consumer protection practices are embedded in the Bank’s
business operations. The bank must adhere to the highest service standards and embrace
a culture of fair and responsible dealings in the conduct of its business through the adoption
of a Financial Consumer Protection Framework embodies in the board-approved Financial
Consumer Protection Manual.

Role and Responsibility of the Board of Directors. The Board is responsible for

developing the Bank’s consumer protection strategy and establishing an effective oversight
over the Bank’s consumer protection program.

Consumer Protection Practices

PART Il - ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF
OVERSIGHT BODIES

SECTION 2. CONSUMER PROTECTION OVERSIGHT

FUNCTION

The Board of Directors of Pangasinan Bank (A Rural Bank), Inc. is ultimately
responsible in ensuring that consumer protection practices are embedded in the Bank’s
business operations. The Bank must adhere to the highest service standards and embrace a
culture of fair and responsible dealings in the conduct of its business through the adoption of
a Financial Consumer Protection Framework embodied in this board-approved Financial
Consumer Protection Manual.

Section 2.1  Role and Responsibility of the Board of Directors
1. Approve the Consumer Protection Risk Management System (CPRMS) and Financial
Consumer Protection Assistance Mechanism (FCPAM) that take into consideration
the Bank’s business model, market, product lines, and relationships with third parties
that may give rise to risks to Financial Consumer;
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2. Promote a culture of ethical behavior and ensure adherence to the Standards and all
relevant laws and regulations;

3. Provide adequate resources and adopt policies to effectively implement training and
competency requirements for officers and personnel, authorized representatives or
any other party acting on behalf of the Bank;

4. Approve a policy on remuneration and compensation packages structured to
encourage responsible business conduct, fair treatment and avoidance/mitigation of
conflicts of interest; and performance review which includes provisions for incentives
on positive reviews/assessment that could also serve as basis for renewal of contract
of third-party service providers;

5. Approve product oversight and governance mechanisms designed to ensure that
financial products or services meet the needs of Financial Consumers in target
markets or market segments, as well as universal products which are simple to access
so as not to exclude vulnerable groups;

6. Adopt a policy on the imposition of any fees and/or charges of the Bank’s financial
product or service which shall include among others, the basis and quantitative
support for the setting of the fees/charges and rationalization of the fee structure or
amount.

7. Approve and periodically review a Code of Conduct applicable to all Bank Directors,
Officers, and Staff and Third-Party agents. The Board shall define the Bank’s
corporate culture and values. It shall establish standards of conduct and ethics and
shall institutionalize a system that will allow reporting of concerns or violations to an
appropriate body; and

8. Review periodically the implementation and effectiveness of the CPRMS, including
how findings are reported and whether the audit mechanisms are in place to enable
adequate

oversight; and put in place a regular mechanism to review the relevance of the
CPRMS in case of changes in the Bank’s business model and/or operating
environment.

Section 2.2  Role and Responsibility of the Senior Management

1. Ensure that approved CPRMS and FCPAM policies and procedures are clearly
documented and appropriately implemented across all levels and business units. This
includes the responsibility of identifying the officer which will head the internal
complaints handling unit or handle the implementation and regular reporting of
consumer-related issues to the Board,;

2. Establish an effective monitoring and management information system to promptly
identify, regularly measure, aggregate, and analyze FCP related issues to determine
the level of Financial Consumer risks. An appropriate and clear reporting and
escalation mechanism should also be integrated in the risk governance framework
from any area of the Bank to Senior Management and/or from Senior Management to
the Board.

3. Ascertain that weaknesses in the FCP practices or emerging risks are addressed and
corrective actions are taken in a timely manner.
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4. Ensure observance of expectations and requirements prescribed under relevant
regulations on compliance and internal audit; and

5. Ensure that adequate information and actions taken are reported to the Board on a
regular basis in terms of the measurement of FCP related risks, reports from FCPAM,
compliance with the Standards and requirements, as well as other material FCP
related developments that will impact the Bank’s Financial Consumers. This includes
the responsibility to put in place an effective system where reporting lines are
established to promptly detect, analyze, and respond to Financial Consumer concerns
and serious infractions.

Section 2.3 Role and Responsibility of Administrative Officer/Head Consumer
Assistance Officer (HCAO)

1. Monitor consumer assistance process;

2. Keep track, identify, and analyze the nature of complaints and recommend solutions
to avoid recurrence;

3. Report to senior management the complaints received on a monthly basis including
reasons for such complaints, recommend solutions to avoid recurrence, and the
suggestions for process or personnel competency needing improvement; and

4. Ensure immediate escalation of any significant complaint to the President.

Section 2.4  Role and Responsibility of Consumer Assistance Officer (CAO)

Receive and acknowledge consumer concerns;

Record concerns in a Register/Database;

Make an initial review and investigation of concerns;

Process concerns;

Provide official reply to consumer;

Request client feedback; and

Prepare and submit report to the Administrative Officer who shall be the Head
Consumer Assistance Officer.

NookrwnpE

PART 111 - CONSUMER PROTECTION RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CPRMS)

Section 3. RISK MANAGEMENT COMPONENTS

The CPRMS is a means by which the Bank identify, measure, monitor, and control
consumer protection risks inherent in its operations. It provides the foundation for ensuring
the Bank’s adherence to Consumer Protection standards of conduct and compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations in order to prevent risk to the Bank and any harm or
financial loss to the consumer. Failure to establish a consumer protection risk-management
structure that adequately identifies, measures, monitors, and controls the risks inherent in the
Bank's various products and lines of business is considered unsafe and unsound conduct.
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Section 3.1  ldentifying Risks

Principles of sound consumer protection risk management apply to the entire
spectrum of compliance-related risks facing the Bank, including, but not limited to,
compliance, legal, reputational, financial fraud, and operational risk. These risks can be
described as follows:

1. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial loss, or damage
to reputation and franchise value for failure to comply with laws, regulations, or
standards or the Bank’s own policies, procedures, codes of conduct, and ethical
standards, or an actual or perceived failure to adhere to principles of integrity and fair
dealing in relation to consumer protection and other inherent operation of the Bank in
general. Non-compliance may expose the Bank to fines, civil money penalties, legal
damages, voided or unenforceable contracts, and reduce patronage value.

2. Legal risk arises from the potential that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits, or adverse
judgments can disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or condition of
the Bank.

3. Reputational risk is the potential that negative publicity regarding the Bank’s
consumer protection practices, whether true or not, will cause costly litigation, a
decline in the customer base, or a reduction in revenue.

4. Financial fraud risk takes many different shapes, and fraudsters wear different
masks. Fraudsters consider banks as being “where the money is,” and banks have
always been vulnerable to fraud, particularly in a rapid growth environment in which
internal controls may be compromised, and in economic downturn periods.

5. Operational risk arises from the potential that inadequate information systems,
operational problems, breaches in internal controls, fraud, or unforeseen catastrophes
will result in unexpected losses.

Section 3.2  Consumer Protection Risk Monitoring

Effective risk monitoring requires the Bank to identify and measure all material
consumer protection risk exposures. Consequently, risk-monitoring activities must be
supported by management information systems (MIS) that provide senior managers and
directors with timely report on consumer complaints, operating performance, compliance
assessment and other consumer protection risk exposure of the Bank.

In line with this, the Bank shall implement an effective consumer risk monitoring
embedded in its Consumer Protection Compliance Program (CPCP) and Consumer
Assistance Management System (CAMS) which will reflect the overall consumer protection
risk monitoring performance of the Bank.

Section 3.3  Internal Controls

The Bank internal control structure is critical to the effectiveness of its consumer
protection risk-management system. It promotes effective operations and reliable consumer
protection regulatory reporting, safeguard assets, and helps to ensure compliance with
relevant consumer protection laws, regulations, and the Bank’s own policies. Internal
controls should be regularly reviewed by the Internal Auditor.
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Given the importance of appropriate internal controls, the Bank shall adequately
document the results of audits or reviews, as should management’s complex and sensitive
consumer complaints to be reported directly to the Board of Directors. For this purpose, the
CP Audit Program, CAMS and Code of Conduct in relation to consumer protection, has been
established by the Bank as guidelines in setting this consumer protection standards.

Section 3.4  Board and Senior Management Oversight

The Board of Directors and Senior Management shall periodically review the
effectiveness of the CPRMS including how findings are reported and whether the audit
mechanism in place enable adequate oversight. They must be certain the CP weaknesses are
properly addressed and corrective actions are taken in a timely manner. They also ensure
that sufficient resources are devoted to the program.

1. Board Oversight Function to CPRMS:

e Has the ultimate responsibility for the level of consumer protection risk taken
by the bank;

e Approve the overall business strategies and significant policies, in relation to
managing consumer protection risk appetite of the Bank;

e Responsible for developing and maintaining a sound CPRMS that is
integrated into the over-all framework for the entire product and service life-
cycle; and

e Ensure that Senior Management is fully capable of managing CPRMS
activities that the Bank conduct and is taking the steps necessary to identify,
measure, monitor, and control the risks associated with consumer protection.

2. Senior Management Oversight Function to CPRMS:

e Is responsible for implementing strategies in a manner that limits the
consumer protection risk associated with each strategy and ensures
compliance with laws, rules and regulations; and

e Shall be involved in the CPRMS activities of the Bank and possess sufficient
knowledge of all major business lines to ensure that appropriate policies,
controls, and risk monitoring systems are in place and that accountability and
lines of authority are clearly delineated.

Section 3.5  Consumer Protection Compliance Program (CPCP)

A consumer Protection Compliance Program is an essential component of CPRMS.
If carefully devised, fully implemented, and regularly monitored, a compliance risk-
management program will provide the foundation for ensuring compliance with consumer
banking laws and regulations and protect consumers from non-compliance and associated
harms or loss. This Consumer Protection Compliance Program shall form part of the over-all
Compliance System of the Bank in accordance with the Revised Compliance Framework
under BSP Circular 747 dated 6 February 2012.

Page 164 of 250



PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 165

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

1.

Objective of Consumer Protection Compliance Program. For the Bank to have
an effective consumer protection risk management, the Bank’s CPCP shall have the
following objectives:

e To inculcate in the minds of the implementers, from the Board down to the
Staff, a corporate culture that emphasizes standard of honesty and integrity in
dealing with financial consumers;

o Identify and mitigate risks associated with consumer protection which may
erode the franchise value of the Bank;

e Provide a framework that allows regulators to evaluate whether the Bank is
effectively implementing the board-approved Consumer Protection Program;

e Ensure that all proponents of an effective consumer protection risk
management system is in place, from Board oversight function to
implementation and evaluation of the process; and

e Ensures that all pertinent laws, rules and regulations pertaining to Financial
Consumer Protection and their subsequent updates/amendments are compiled
thereto.

2. Compliance Reporting. The procedure on internal and external reporting as

3.

embodied in the Bank’s Consumer Assistance Management System (CAMS)
approved by the Board per Resolution No. 049-2015 dated March 31, 2015, copy of
which is hereto attached and mark as Appendix A, shall prevail. For clarity, a
summary of the reporting process is hereby provided:

Internal Reporting:

e Branch Managers, also designated as Consumer Assistance Officer (CAO) in
their respective branches, shall submit Complaints Report (CR) to the Head
Consumer Assistance Officer (HCAQ) on a monthly basis;

e CR submitted to the HCAO shall then be submitted on a monthly basis to the
President. Should there be a need for escalation, the President shall report to
the Board,;

External Reporting:

e The Bank shall submit a consolidated Complaints Report to the Supervisory
Data Center (SDC) of the Supervision and Examination Sector on a quarterly
basis. Such report to the SDC shall not be later than one (1) month later after
the end of every quarter. A Complaints Report is a Category B Report for
purposes of applying the appropriate monetary penalty.

Compliance Monitoring and Assessment. The following procedures shall be
applied in conducting Consumer Protection Risk Assessment and Testing, in
accordance with the overall Compliance System of the Bank:

e The Compliance Officer in coordination with the Internal Auditor shall
establish a monitoring and assessment process, a checklist of regulations, to
ensure that all directors, officers and staff of the Bank are familiar with the
Consumer Protection Compliance Program;
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e Once the CPCP is in place, a periodic compliance review/monitoring and
assessment on consumer protection of each branch shall be enforced on a
regular basis;

e The Internal Auditors shall be required to inform the Compliance Officer of
any violation of laws, rules and regulations pertaining to consumer protection
noted in their audit work; and

e Report on monitoring and assessment shall be prepared and submitted to the
President/COO to  documents findings, issues, concerns and
remedial/corrective measures taken before their submission to the Board for
resolution.

Section 3.6  Policies and Procedures

Policies and procedures pertaining to Consumer Protection shall be embodied in the
Bank’s Consumer Assistance Management System (CAMS) prepared as a separate manual,
copy of which is hereto attached and marked as Appendix A. All other policies and
procedures already existing in the Bank’s Manual of Operations which directly or indirectly
affects consumer protection laws, rules and regulation and those provided in this Consumer
Protection Manual are enjoined to form part of the policies and procedures of Pangasinan
Bank, Inc. consumer protection.

Section 3.7  Consumer Protection Audit Program

Independent of the compliance function, the Bank’s audit program shall review its
consumer protection practices, adherence to internal policies and procedures, and compliance
with existing laws, rules and regulations. The Bank internal audit of the different business
units/functions shall include the Consumer Protection Audit Program. A well-designed and
implemented Consumer Protection Audit Program ensures that the Board shall be able to
make an assessment of the effectiveness of the implementation as well as adequacy of
approved policies and standards in meeting the established consumer protection objectives.

1. Objectives of CP Audit Program. This Consumer Protection Audit Program
(CPAP) shall:

e Serve as a guide for the Internal Audit Department in evaluating and ensuring
effectiveness in the implementation of the bank’s Consumer Protection
Program,;

e Ensure the Board’s Credit Committee that approved policies and standards in
meeting the established consumer protection objectives are adequate;

e Review and appraise the soundness, application and control of policies,
processes and procedures in the implementation of the bank’s Consumer
Protection Program in accordance with BSP Circular No. 857; and

e Assist the Board and the Management in developing operational
improvements in the implementation of the Program.

2. Authority of the Internal Audit Department. The Internal Audit Department has
the full authority vested upon it to perform examinations, audits, and investigations of
all records, operations, activities and affairs of the bank in dealing with and providing
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services with the customers. It shall have full access to all bank’s records, properties
and personnel relevant to the subject under review.

3. Responsibility of the Internal Auditor. Consistent with the internal audit program,
the following are the Internal Auditor’s responsibilities:

e To inform and advise management and to discharge this responsibility in such
manner that is consistent with and in compliance to BSP Circular No. 857 or
the regulation on Financial Consumer Protection;

e To coordinate consumer protection audit activities with the Board, Senior
Management, employees and the customers themselves to best achieve the
objective of the audit and the bank in general; and

e To submit its reports to the Audit Committee in such manner as the Board of
Directors may prescribe.

4. Frequency of Audit. As a matter of policy, audit engagement for consumer
protection activities shall be integrated in the annual regular audit of branches/units in
its fullest extent covering all operational and procedural aspects of the Consumer
Protection Program of the bank. In addition, periodic assessment of a branch’s
implementation of the program may be conducted, or as the need arises, such as, but
not limited to, increased volume of complaints received by the branch.

5. Key Areas of Audit Activities. Generally, the internal audit activities shall focus on
the following key areas:

e Disclosure and Transparency — ensure that the customers have a reasonable
holistic understanding of the products and services which they may be acquiring
or availing;

e Protection of Customer’s Information — financial transactions, as well as
relevant personal information disclosed in the course of a transaction, are kept
confidential;

e Fair Treatment — ensure that the financial consumers are treated fairly, honestly,
professionally, ad are not sold inappropriate and harmful financial products and
services;

e Effective Recourse — financial consumers should be provided with accessible,
affordable, independent, fair, accountable timely and efficient means for resolving
complaints with their financial transactions; and

e Financial Education and Awareness — initiatives that give consumers the
knowledge, skills, and confidence to understand and evaluate the information they
receive and empower them to make informed financial decisions.

6. General Audit Procedures per Area of Activity
e Disclosure and Transparency
a. The Internal Audit Department (IAD) verifies if customers are provided with
documents containing information about the products or services for the latter
to make informed decision.
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b.

C.

Check if a written copy of the Terms and Condition (T&C) that apply to a
product or service is readily and consistently available to the customer.

IAD verifies if such copy of the T&C are signed before the actual delivery of
the products or consummation of the service being procured.

e Protection of Clients Information

a.

IAD periodically re-validates procedures in handling the personal information
of the customers. Evaluates how these information’s are gathered, stored,
processed, used and distributed, and how are they eventually disposed.

Check if a written agreement is signed by the customer authorizing the bank
to disclose specific information of the former when the account is past due,
under litigation or already foreclosed before such information are shared or
reported to a third party such as the NFIS or CMAP.

Check the reliability or vulnerability of the bank’s Management Information
System (MIS) in securing sensitive customer’s information to ensure that no
breach of confidentiality is committed.

Check if appropriate policies and practices for employment management and
training to assess and address the risk to customer information.

e Fair Treatment

a.

d.

Conduct random interview from customers, taking into account their
satisfaction level with the products or services availed with the bank. The
interview should focus on ethical staff behavior and affordability or suitability
of the product or service offered to them.

Coordinate with the designated Consumer Assistant Officer (CAO) to
evaluate the effectiveness of the bank’s consumer assistance mechanism in
handling complaint from the customers. Recommend improvement to
strengthen the Consumer Assistance Management System (CAMS).

Evaluate to ensure that all complaints have been attended to and resolved
timely and efficiently in accordance with the guidelines and procedures
governing the CAMS of the bank.

Check that none of the prohibitions embodied in the Consumer Protection
Code of Conduct of the Bank is committed.

e [Effective Recourse

a.

Check if a written policy for an effective consumer assistance management
system is in place which will ensure the accessible, affordable, independent,
fair, accountable, timely and efficient means of resolving complaints.

Check if internal policies and practices, including timeframe for processing,
complaint response and customer access are in place and operational.

Check if an up-to-date log and records of all complaints from customers
subject to the complaints procedure is being maintained.

Check if information on how to make a complaint is clearly visible in the bank
premises, and/or if a complaint/suggestion box is available and working in
each branch where such complaint/suggestion can be lodged.

Page 168 of 250



PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 169

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

e Financial Education and Awareness

a. Verify if a clear and defined financial education and awareness program as
part of a wider financial consumer protection and education strategy, is
present within the system of the bank, such as, but not limited to distribution
to customer, from initial stage of transaction, a pamphlet on questions, which
consumers need to ask before accepting financial product or service.

b. Make an assessment on campaigns and programs and use the result of the
evaluation for continuous improvement.

7. Continuing Audit Files (CAF) — Unless otherwise specified, all reports, records,
documents, files, complaints, requests, suggestions and information including
supporting and other relevant documents thereto, gathered as a result of the
implementation of the Consumer Protection Program of the bank, shall be retained for
a minimum period of 2 years from date of resolution, in accordance with the CAMS
of the bank approved by the Board. As a matter of option, digital copies of original
documents may be maintained from permanent keeping.

Section 3.8 Consumer Protection Training

The Bank shall allow personnel to have a continuing education on CP laws, rules and
regulations as well as internal policies and procedures to maintain a sound CP
Compliance Program. It shall ensure that relevant Bank personnel with whose roles and
responsibilities have customer interface, received specific and comprehensive training
that reinforces and helps implement written policies and procedures, and provided in a
timely manner.

1. Training Programs. The Human Resource Head, who is also designated as
Head of Consumer Assistance Officer (CAQ), shall be responsible in developing
a training program for personnel assigned to handle customer interface, product
marketing and promotion and Consumer Protection laws, rules and regulations, as
part of it continuing education on consumer protection.

2. Training Module, Schedule and Cost. An annual training schedule relative to
consumer protection shall be prepared by the HR Head/Head CAO in a manner
consistent with the

General Compliance Program of the Bank, indicating therein, among other things,
the module, projected date and cost. Such training shall include, but need not be
limited to, relevant laws, rules and regulation on Consumer Protection, Customer
Care and Communication Skills.
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PART IV — CONSUMER PROTECTION STANDARDS OF

CONDUCT

Section4. CONSUMER PROTECTION STANDARDS

As reflection of core principles, the bank is expected to observe at all times in its
dealings with financial consumer utmost consumer protection standards which shall be
embedded in its corporate cultures, enhancing further its defined governance framework
while addressing conflicts that are inimical to the interest of the financial consumer.

Section 4.1  Disclosure and Transparency

The Bank shall ensure that its customers have a reasonable holistic understanding of
the products and services they are acquiring or availing in order to empower them to make
informed financial decisions. These assurance shall include the following:

Provide up to date information about the products and services to consumers;
Provide clear, simple to understand, easily accessible, accurate, not misleading
information on the products and services, including the potential risk that may be
associated with them;

Information that spell the rights and responsibility of each party;

Information on the mechanism for either party to end the banking relationship;
and

Information on the details of fees, pricing and any potential penalties that the
consumer may incur.

1. Salient Features of Disclosure and Transparency — To adhere with the objective of
an efficient disclosure and transparency mechanism, the Bank shall observe the
following:

Offer documents (terms and conditions) that contains the information necessary
for customer to be able to make an informed judgment;

Advise customers to read and understand the applicable T&C when considering a
loan or deposit in the Bank;

Provide customers adequate time to review the T&C of the product or services,
ask questions and received additional information prior to signing contracts or
executing the transaction;

Ensures that staff assigned to deal directly with customers are fully
knowledgeable about the product or service being offered;

Effective communication channel responsive to address the literacy limitations of
the customer;

Notifies customers in writing of any change in the T&C of the product or service
availed by them. If the customer does not agree, he or she has the right to exit the
contract without penalty within a reasonable period,;

Provides customers with a proof of the transaction immediately after the
transaction has been completed. Hard copies of the following documents shall be
provided: (a.) Disclosure Statement; (b.) Official Receipt/s; (c.) Promissory Note;
(d.) Real Estate Mortgage; (e.) Terms and Conditions;
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Inform the customers of their rights and responsibilities including their right to
complain and the manner of its submission

2. Terms and Conditions — The Bank shall readily and consistently provide to the
customer a written copy of the Terms and Conditions (T&C) that apply to a product
or service presented in a manner that facilitates the consumer’s comprehension.

3. Minimum Information on Terms and Conditions. The T&C shall include all or a
combination of the following:

Full price or cost to the customer including all interest, fees, charges, and

penalties and the method for computing said interest, fees and charges;

General information about the operation of the products or services including the

customer’s obligations and liabilities;

Cooling-off period,;

Cancellation of transactions policies and any related cost; and

Actions and remedies by the Bank in the event of a default by the customer.

Section 4.2

As trusted custodian of our customer’s financial transactions, as well as relevant
personal information, the Bank is committed to protecting these financial and personal
information disclosed during the course of transaction through appropriate control and
protection mechanism. The Bank shall also actively and continuously works to protect our
customer’s information.

Protection of Client Information.

1. Policies and procedures. In line with the responsibility of the Bank to protect the
privacy of its customer’s information, the following policies and procedures shall be
observed:

The MIS/IT is designated as accountable employee to coordinate its
Information Security. She is in charge of assigning, resetting or deleting
password required to access the Bank’s Management Information System
(MIS);

The Byte per Byte Software Center is selected as the Bank’s service provider
that will maintain appropriate safeguards in relation to securing customer’s
information;

The HR Head shall make reference and background check before hiring an
employee who will access the customer information system.

New employee shall be made to sign the Consumer Protection Code of
Conduct of the Bank to follow confidentiality and security standards for
handling customer information. The CPCC of the Bank is provided in
succeeding section of this manual;

Access to customer information shall be limited only to authorized personnel
having business to access the same. Any breach of confidentiality shall be
meted with the penalty as provided in the Bank’s personnel policies;
Authorized user of customer information shall be required to use “strong”
password and shall be changed on a regular basis;
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e Require mandatory automatic time-out or log-off controls to lock employee
computers after a period of inactivity;

e Train employees to take basic steps to maintain the security, confidentiality,
and integrity of customer information;

e Regularly remind all employees of company policy to keep customer
information secure and confidential,

e Barring terminated employees from accessing customer information system
by immediately deactivating their passwords and usernames.

2. Sharing of Customer Information. As a matter of policy, the Bank prohibits the
sharing of customer information by any means or medium, except when a written
consent, unless in situations allowed as an exception by law or BSP-issued
regulations or confidentiality of customer’s information, is obtained before sharing
customer’s personal information to third party such as credit bureaus and collection
agencies. In this regard, the Bank requires an Addendum to the Terms of Condition
to be signed by the applicant/borrowers at the initial stage of the loan process.

3. Fair Treatment. The Bank is committed to treat its customers fairly, honestly,
professionally and are not sold inappropriate and harmful financial products and
services. In treating its customers fairly, the following principle of fairness shall be
exercised by the Bank’s personnel:

e Ensure affordability and suitability of the product or service;

e Counsel the customer not to engage in over-indebtedness;

e Provide customer enough time (cool-off period) to think whether to pursue the
transaction within 48 hours without penalty. The Bank may however collect
or recover reasonable amount of processing fees;

e Objectivity, that is, presenting the product or services of the Bank in a fair,
honestly and balance perspective.

Section 4.3  Consumer Protection Code of Conduct.

To uphold the Bank’s values and standards of professional conduct, the Board has
approved its Consumer Protection Code of Conduct on July 14, 2015 per Resolution No.
098-2015, signed and acknowledged by the staff that they will abide by the Code and not
engage in the behaviors prohibited as provided in the Code. The Code is embodied in a

separate file, copy of which is hereto attached and marked as Appendix B.
Section 4.4  Remuneration Structure/Accountability and Rewards
1. Remuneration and Rewards. The Bank will include remuneration and rewards for
Officers and Staff who have conducted fair treatment and avoidance/mitigation of

conflict of interest in its annual gathering for excellent behavior.

2. Disclosure. Disclose to the customers the remuneration structure where appropriate,
such as when potential conflicts of interest cannot be manage or avoided.
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3. Procedures and Controls. The Bank shall include in its HR Manual adequate
procedures and controls to that sales staff are not remunerated based solely on sales
performance but that other factors, including customers satisfaction (in terms of
number of customer complaints served/settled) and compliance with regulatory
requirements, best practices, guidelines, and Code of Conduct in which certain
principles are related to best interest of customers, satisfactory audit/compliance
review results and complaint investigation results, are taken into account.

Section 4.5  Effective Recourse.

The Bank shall provide consumers, accessible, affordable, independent, fair,
accountable timely and efficient means for resolving complaints with their financial
transactions. It is for this reason that a mechanisms for complaint handling and redness has
been in place and embodied in the Bank’s Consumer Assistance Management System
(CAMS) approved by the Board on March 31, 2015 per Resolution No. 049-2015, a copy of

which is hereto attached as Appendix A and made as integral part hereof.
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F. CORPORATE INFORMATION

. Bank’s Organization Structure
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Il. List of Major Stockholders’ of the Bank

PANGASINAN BANK (A Rural Bank), INC.
List of Major Directors
Major Stockholders (5% Up)

As of December 31, 2023

Amount | Percent

Name Nationality | Common | Preferred | Total _(I_n o Total

Million | Shares

P) Paid-In

Siapno Family Filipino 148,460 | 11,550 | 160,010 | 16.001 | 32.00
E:rﬁl‘;zma” Filipino | 108,416 | 10,139 |118,555| 11.855 | 23.72
Quinto Family Filipino 73,584 19,165 92,749 9.275 18.55
Aquino Family Filipino 57,268 2,235 59,503 5.950 11.90
Gubatan Family Filipino 46,076 3,510 49,586 | 4.959 9.92
Others (47 Filipino | 16,196 | 3,401 | 19,597 | 1.960 | 3.91

Individual)
TOTAL 450,000 | 50,000 |500,000| 50.000 | 100.00

I1l. Products and Services Offered

To help achieve its mission of encouraging the people to practice the habit of saving
and the judicious use of credit in the communities that it serves, help eradicate usurious
practices and provide quality services whether they are depositors or borrowers so that they
can improve their economic standing, the bank hereby offers financial products which will
help in nation-building in terms of giving economic benefits to the people.

withdrawn on demand
upon presentation of
duly accomplished
withdrawal slip and
corresponding
passbook

DEPOSIT
PRODUCT DESCRIPTION TERMS AND CONDITION
Regular Interest-bearing Term. On demand
Savings deposit which can be

Interest Rate. 0.25% p.a.

Maintaining Bal. For an account to earn an
interest, a balance of P500 must be maintained,
otherwise, a maintaining fee of P10 per month is
imposed as service charge.

Dormancy Period. An account is considered
dormant if no transaction (deposit or withdrawal)
has taken place within the period of 2 years.
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Dormancy Fee
1. Imposition of dormancy fee, aside from
the required 60 days prior notification,
shall be done consistent with the
provision of Section X263 of the MORB.

2. Only dormant account falling under the
minimum daily balance of PhP500.00
shall be charged with dormancy fee of
P30.00 per month.

withdrawn or renewed
upon maturity, or on
demand by depositor
upon presentation of
duly accomplished
withdrawal slip and
corresponding
passbook

Basic Interest-bearing Term. On demand
Deposit deposit which can be
Savings withdrawn on demand | Interest Rate. 0.25% p.a.
Account upon presentation of
duly accomplished | Opening Amount. Not more than P100.00
withdrawal slip and
corresponding Maintaining Bal. None
passbook.
Dormancy Charges. None
Maximum Balance. Not more than P50, 000.00;
should the depositor exceed the P50, 000.00
maximum balance, the bank should convert the
basic deposit account to a regular deposit account.
Special Interest-bearing Term. — Minimum of 30 days and maximum of one
Savings deposit which can be | (1) year but can be withdrawn/pre-terminated on

demand upon presentation of duly accomplished
withdrawal slip and corresponding passbook. In
which case, the contracted interest rate is reduced
to the rate given to RSD

Interest Rate — The Board shall determine the
interest rate based on prevailing market prices
without prior notice. It is understood that the
bigger the amount and the longer the term, the
higher the interest rate.

P 10,000.00 — P 49,999.00 0.50%
Amount 30 61 91 181 365 5 yrs

days days days days days + 1

day

50,000-

99,999 1.60% | 1.60% | 1.90% | 2.00% | 2.00% | 2.50%

100,000-

149,999 1.70% | 1.70% | 2.00% | 2.00% | 2.10% | 2.60%

150,000-
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199,999 1.70% | 1.70% | 2.00% | 2.00% | 2.10%
200,000-

299,999 1.90% | 1.90% | 2.20% | 2.30% | 2.30%
300,000-

399,999 1.90% | 1.90% | 2.20% | 2.30% | 2.30%
400,000-

499,999 1.90% | 1.90% | 2.20% | 2.30% | 2.30%
500,000-

599,999 2.00% | 2.00% | 2.30% | 2.40% | 2.40%
600,000-

999,999 2.00% | 2.00% | 2.30% | 2.40% | 2.40%
1,000,000-

2,999,999 2.30% | 2.30% | 2.60% | 2.70% | 2.70%
3,000,000-

3,999,999 2.60% | 2.60% | 2.80% | 2.90% | 3.00%
4,000,000-

4,999,999 2.70% | 2.70% | 3.00% | 3.00% | 3.20%
5,000,000

- above 2.80% | 2.80% | 3.00% | 3.20% | 4.00%

2.60%

2.80%

2.80%

2.80%

2.90%

2.90%

3.40%

3.70%

3.80%

4.00%

Minimum placement of P 10,000.00
Dormancy Period. Same as regular savings

Manner of interest computation — inter
computed as follows:
If the term is completed
Interest=Principal X Rate X (Term/3
If pre-terminated

est is

65)

Interest=Principal X RSD rate X (no. of

days/365)

Depositor’'s Option — The depositor has the

following options under the circumstances:
Upon placement:

Make additional placement before

maturity

Full or partial pre-termination
Upon maturity:

Withdraw the interest in
earned, principal being rolled-over

come

Partial termination, the balance

being rolled-over

Roll-over and additional

placement

Full termination/closed account
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For proper recognition of interest
expense, the system computes the accrued
interest at the end of each month to be
recorded in the books of the Bank
Documentary Stamp — The Depositor is bound
to pay the documentary stamp due in
accordance to the applicable revenue
regulation. There shall be three (3) instances
when the DST will be collected from a SSD
account:

1st — All new account openings

2nd — Any additional placements

3 — Any partial or full pre-termination

made

LOANS
PRODUCT DESCRIPTION TERMS AND CONDITION
Agrarian A credit extended to production | Term. Minimum of 30 days and

Reform Loan

and other loans
granted
to beneficiaries of

reform for purposes of:

types of

agrarian

maximum of five (5) years, with
possible extension of another 5
years, payable  thru monthly
amortization.

a. Acquisition of  work
animals, farm | Interest Rate.
equipment, seeds, | Loans 3 Million and below:
fertilizer and  other lyr. 16% (over the term)
similar items 2yrs. 24% (over the term)
b. Acquisition of lands 3yrs. 32% (over the term)
authorized under 4yrs. 40% (over the term)
existing laws 5yrs. 48% (over the term)
c. Construction/acquisition | Service Charge (one time) 3%
of facilities for
production, processing, | Loans more than 3 Million:
storage and marketing lyr. 12% (over the term)
2 yrs. 18% (over the term)
3yrs. 24% (over the term)
4 yrs. 30% (over the term)
5yrs. 36% (over the term)

Service Charge (one time) 3%
Other Charges. Penalty charge of
5% p.a. of past due account; other
charges incidental to the extension of
the loan.
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Mode of Interest Payment.

Via an amortization schedule spread
over the term of the loan using either
the straight or diminishing balance
method.

Agricultural
Loan

Loans granted to borrowers,
whether beneficiaries of
agrarian reform or not, to
finance activities relating to
agriculture, and for processing,
marketing, storage, and
distribution of products resulting
from the activities of tillers,
tenant-farmers, settlers,
agricultural lessees, amortizing
owners, owner-cultivators,
farmers’  cooperatives and
compact farms.

Same terms and conditions as with
other loans, except for Auto Loan.

Real Estate

Loan

A credit to finance the
acquisition of lot, or
improvement of residential units
and down-payment to acquire a
residential lot.

Same terms and conditions as with
other loans, except for Auto Loan

Consumption
Loan

A credit to purchase household
or equipment for personal use,
or meet  expenses  for
educational, medical or
emergency needs of the
clients/borrowers and their
immediate family and
processing/placement fee for
application of OFWs.

Same terms and conditions as with
other loans, except for Auto Loan

Commercial
Loan

A credit extended to small and
medium enterprises engaged in
any business activity in the
industry, agri-business and/or
services, whether single
proprietorship, cooperative,
partnership or corporation.

Same terms and conditions as with
other loans, except for Auto Loan

Motor
Vehicle Loan

Loans granted to individuals as
well as businessman to acquire
their motor vehicle and
additional working capital in
which the said motor vehicle
unit (as evident of their original
OR/CR) will serve as their
collateral.

Term. Minimum of 1 year and
maximum of 5 years, via monthly
amortization schedule

Interest Rate. 10% to 58% add-on
rate, depending on the term and
status of collateral.
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Mode of Payment. Based on
amortization schedule Note: a
separate Motor Vehicle Loan Manual
is available for detailed policies and

procedures
Employee Loans granted to officers and | Term. Minimum of 1 year and
Loan employees of the Bank under | maximum of 5 years. Other terms

the Financial Assistance | and condition in accordance with
Program approved by the BSP | Sec. 135 of the MORB.
Interest Rate.
Real Estate Loan 12%
Multi-Purpose Loan:
Motor Vehicle Loan 10%
Auto Vehicle Loan  10%
Other Multi-Purpose 10%
Salary Loan 10%
Calamity Loan 8%
Mode of Payment. Amortization
schedule applied as deduction to
payroll every 10" and 25" day of the
month.

*In addition to the preceding products, the bank is also an agent of ECPay for bills
payment and other related services.

Page 181 of 250



PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. 182

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, 2432 Pangasinan

2023 Annual Report

1VV. Bank’s Website

WWwWw.pangasinanbank.com

Al PAncGASINAN BANK (%) Hotline: (075) 6531570

PANGASINAN BAN K

(A RURAL BANK), INC.

Agrarian Loan - Agricultural Loan - Consumption Loan - Commercial Loan

Real Estate Loan ~ Auto Loan » OFW Loan

Rizal Ave., Poblacion, Mangaldan, Pangasinan
O906-556-5712 / O933-030-0109 / S13-5013 / 653-1570
phro@pangasinanbank.com / pbmar lqal(Jan “coyvahoo.com
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ABROUT US PRODUCTS AND PROPERTIES

CONTACT US
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\I'b PANGASINAN BANK () Hotline: (075) 653-1570
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m PA!:IEASINAN BaNK @ Hotline: (075) 653-1570

PRODUCTS AND SERV] ¥ ol & = CONTALCT U5

Contact Us Branch Info I

Main Branch

Mangaldan Branch [Main)
Address: Rizal Street, Poblacion, Mangaldan, Pangasinan Address: Rizal Ave., Poblacion

Contact Ferson Ms. Anne Q. De Guzman

Contack Per: soila B Quidem
Landline: (O75) 513-5013
CF Mo 09330371313 / 09085565712
Emall: pporn@yahon.com Email pbmangaldanayahoo.com
Contact Mumbers: {075} 653-1570 / (075) 513-5013 /0933-037-1313 / 08065

Email: enna_726 @yahoo.com
Contact Person: Ms. Sebastina F. Nepacing

Alamines Branch
Address: 30 Quezon Ave, Pablaicion,
Alaminos City, Pangasinan

Contact Person Lyn E. Rabanal
Landline: {075) 523-5972

CP MO (098506856493/08513519858
Emall cityataminos@yaho

am

Feedback or Suggestions

We are glad to serve

Binmaley Branch
Address: Public Market, Poblacion
Binmaley, Pangasinan
son Rachelie:) Sumoray
Landline: {0T5) 6339312
CP Moo 09330371331/09327269320
Email: Email
pangbank binmaley@Eyation com ph

oo you have questions or comiment? Use our online

MName:

Malasiqul Branch

Subjecc Address: Don Vicents Quintans St
Poblacion, Malasiqul, Pangasinan
Contact Person Cris John Dela Cruz
Message:

Landline: (0T5) 632-2407
CP No.: 0932597 1300/093 10614606
Emzil phmalasiquicd 2 1@yahos. com

Rosarlo Branch

Address: Aguitania 5t Poblacion East
Rosarto, La Union

Contatt Person Gina O, Valdez
Landline: (072) 6196524

CPNo. 0%330371415/09062702864
Email

¥m not a robot
pangasinanbankrosarks@yahoocom

San Fablan Branch
m Address: Rizal St Poblacion San

Fabian, Pangasinan

Contact Person: Lily B. Quejado

Landline: (075) 653-1446

CP No_ 0333037 1376/09063021745

Email: pbsanfablan@yahoo.com

Latest News and Events

22nd Depositor Protection and PANGASINAN BANK ANNUAL PDIC & PBI 2151 Deposilor._.
Awareness... REPORT 2022 7 £

P ANGASINAN BANK

CONTACT U

1 2024 PANCASIMAN BANK (4 FURAL BANK), INC - Site by PYHELHUB Des

Crgital Agancy
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V. Banking Units

MANGALDAN-HEAD OFFICE
Rizal Avenue, Poblacion
Mangaldan, Pangasinan

Administration:

Tel. No. 653-1570 (Admin)
0930-771-8741 (Compliance)
0923-991-4091 (ROPA Dept.)
0922-478-0330 (CIAU Dept.)

Email Addresses:
pbrb@pangasinanbank.com
ppbrb@yahoo.com

enna_726@yahoo.com
marie.aquino67@gmail.com
ropapb@yahoo.com
pbiauditdepartment@yahoo.com

pbhrd@yahoo.com
pbi_mis_it@yahoo.com
pbriskdept@yahoo.com
pbi.remedial@yahoo.com
pbi_ciau@yahoo.com

Operations

Bank’s Official Email
Compliance Officer/
Chief Accounting Head
President

Credit Head

ROPA Dept.

Audit Dept.

HR Dept.

IT Dept.

Credit Risk Review Dept.
Remedial Dept.
Appraisal Dept.

Tel. No. (075)-513-5013
0906-556-5712
0933-037-1313

Email Addresses:

pbmangaldan.bom@yahoo.com

pbmangaldan@yahoo.com
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PBI ADMINISTRATION
OFFICERS AND STAFF
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PBI MANGALDAN OPERATIONS
OFFICERS AND STAFF

|
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ALAMINOS BRANCH

30 Quezon Avenue, Poblacion
Alaminos City, Pangasinan

Tel. No. (075) 529-5972
0985-955-6493
0951-351-9858

Email Addresses:
pbalaminos.om@yahoo.com
cityalaminos@yahoo.com

PNGASINAN BANK

A RURAL BANK (EST 1976)
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PBI ALAMINOS BRANCH
OFFICERS AND STAFF
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BINMALEY BRANCH

Public Market, Poblacion
Binmaley, Pangasinan

Tel. No. (075) 633-9312
0933-037-1331
0932-726-9320

Email Addresses:
pbbinmaley.bm@yahoo.com
pangbank.binmaley@yahoo.com.ph

< (EST. 1976)

BINMALEY BRANCH

Tol. No 6510564
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PBI BINMALEY BRANCH
OFFICERS AND STAFF
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MALASIQUI BRANCH

Don Vicente Quintans Street
Poblacion, Malasiqui, Pangasinan

Tel. No. (075) 632-2407
0932-597-1300
0931-061-4606

Email Addresses:
pbmalasiqui.bom@yahoo.com
pbmalasiqui0421@yahoo.com.

PANGASINAN BANK

A RURAL BANK (EST 1976) &

NALASIOUIBRANCH_

e — A —— e i - -

-
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PBI MALASIQUI BRANCH
OFFICERS AND STAFF
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ROSARIO BRANCH

Aquitania, Poblacion
Rosario, La Union

Tel. No. (072) 619-6524
0933-037-1415
0906-270-2864

Email Addresses:
pbrosario.bm@yahoo.com
pangasinanbankrosario@yahoo.com.

PANGASINAN
A RURAL BANKNESTNS
\ — i

WEGnion WU
UPER
ADALA

e 1
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PBI ROSARIO BRANCH
OFFICERS AND STAFF
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SAN FABIAN BRANCH

Rizal Street, Poblacion
San Fabian, Pangasinan

Tel. No. (075) 653-1446
0906-302-1745
0933-037-1376

Email Addresses:
pbsanfabian.bom@yahoo.com
pbsanfabian@yahoo.com.

A RURAL BANK (EST 1976)

SINFLGNBRANCA

[@PANGASINAN BANK
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PBI SAN FABIAN BRANCH
OFFICERS AND STAFF
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AUDITED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(AFS)

WITH
AUDITOR’S
OPINION
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G. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AFS) WITH AUDITOR’S
OPINION

PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC.

Rizal Avenue, Mangaldan Pangasinan

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2023

DAROYA & (MO,
Certified Public Accountants
4" Floor Benming Square Building, Arcllano St., Dagupan City, Pangasinan
Tel. Nos.: 522-7098 /522-4333

(% CamScanner
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00 AFS Panglank-2 pdf

file ///C:/Usere/Pangasinan?%20Bank%20Inc/Downloads/00_AFS

STATEMENT OF MANAGIEMENT'S RESIPONSIBILITY
FOR
ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

‘The Management of PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. Is responsible for all inf
representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Rctum !or thc ynr cndcd 2023. Mana gement is Iikcwbc

resporuible for all information and rep ons state ’ ,J ng the
Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting period. Furth the Manag is resp for
all information and representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period, includi

but not limited, to the value added tax and/or percentage tax retums, withholding tax returns, documenhry
stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax retums,

In this regard, the Management affirms that the hed audited financial for the year ended 2023
and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with the books and records of
PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. complete and correct in all material respects. Management
likewise affirms that:

a) meAnnualImochaxRemmlmbeen pared in d; with the provisions of the
R Code, as ded, and pcnincnl tax regulaﬁom and other
issuances of the Department of Finance and the B of Int

b) any disparity of llgum in the mbmlmd reports arising from the prcparauan of financial

dards and the prep of the i tax
mmpmmlom-mmﬂngnﬂuh:hmmpmednmﬂnsﬂmuuﬂmﬁmhud
in the company’s books and id | with the requi of R

Regulations No. 8-2007 and other mlw-m lusu:nms,
¢) the PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. has filed all applicable tax returns,
and quired to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period,
and all taxes and other impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for
the reporting period, except those contested in good faith.

-

ROMU, PATRICK F. ANNE Q. DE GUZMAN CHIQUI T. UNGSON
SIAPNO
Chairman President Treasurer
(Signature over printed name) (Signature over printed name) (Signature over printed name)
April 8, 2024

4/15/2024. 8:37 AM
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMMJMWOIPANGAS!NAN!ANK(AKURALIANKL[NC.I: ponsible for the preparation and fair

includii lhc*“ “whmeyundddm
31 msmdmm d; with the p cribed fi 1 dicated therein, and for
-whhmﬂmudummmhmwm&hmmdwnm
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial BE is responsible for ing the Company’s ability to continue
as & going disclosing, as applicabl related to going concem and using the going concern basis
of ing unless e~ cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Di s responsible for ing the Company's financial reporting p

The Board of Di iews and app the financial stat including the schedul ched therein,
and sut the same to the khold:

DAROYA & CO,, the independent auditors, sppointed by the stockholders has audited the financial statements
ofﬁwmpanyhmdmwhhﬁiﬂpphe&mdmhmhudﬂh&mdhmnpmbﬂnund:boldas.lns

pressed its opinion on the faimess of p i pletion of such audit.

R PATRICK F. ANNE Q. DBG:()—AN C!IIQU]T.&’(‘?SON
SIAPNO
Chairman Treasurer

(Signature over printed name) (Signature over printed name) (Signature over printed name)

April 8, 2024

file JHC /Users/Pangasinan®20Bank%s20Inc/Downloads/00_AFS _
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Certified Publle Accountants Dagupan City, Pangasinan
Phillppines 2400
Tel. Nos, (075) 522.7098 / (075) 5224333
Emall address: b y»@daroys.com.oh

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Boand of Direvtors and Stockholders
PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC,
Rizal Avenue, Mangaldan Pangasinan

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC., which comprise the
statements of financiol position as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the statements of vomprehensive income,
stalements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the finamial
statements, including a summary of material accounting, polivy informati

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and of its finandial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in
avvordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Philippines, the Code of Etirics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines, and we have (ulfilled
our other ethival responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide u basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
The previously issued financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 dated March 2, 2023 (Date of
Auditor's report) have been withdrawn and are replaced by these issued comparative financial dated 08 April

2024 (Date of Auditor's report). The revision of 2022 financial statements were nevessary as a result of the impact of
correction of error pertaining to SI/DI classified as Prepaid expenses where it should have been part of Louns and

Receivables.

Other Information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information vomprises the submitted
‘Comparison of Audiled Financial Stal L and C lidated St of Financial Position and Income’, ‘Adjusling

Journal Entries’, ‘Revonciliation between FRP and PFRS', ‘Reconciliation of Retuined Egrnings Available for Dividend
Declaration’ and ‘Certificate Authorizing Registration (if any)’. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be muterially misstated, I, based on the work we have performed, we
vonclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that foct. We have

nothing to report in this regand.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with G ¢ for the Fi ial St
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair jon of the financial statements in accordance with PFRSs,

and for such internal conlrol as management delermines is necessary o enuble the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, Qs it is responsible for ssing the Company’s ability to continue os o
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going corvern and using the golng concern hasis of accounting
unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0,

ible for overseeing the G y's financial reporting process.

't .

Those charged with governance are

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are (0 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial hole,arefroe from

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repart muﬁ.ge;ﬁ:\g W“ for
APR 17 L0

COLLEJ;ON SECTION
8IR-RDO4. Calasiao, Pangasinan
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4" Floor, Benning Square Bullding
DAROYA & CO. Anluolsunt,lnmnyhmcl
Certified Publlc Accountants Dagupan City, Pangasinan
Philippines 2400

rol. Nos. (075) m-m/ms) 5224333
com.oh

assurance is a high lovel of assurance but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducled in accordance with PSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it vxists, Misstatemoents can arise from fraud or error and are consldered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordunce with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skeplicism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement msuldng lrom
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

= Conclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether o material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncortainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s roport to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to conlinue as a going, concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
und whether the financial statements represent the underlying transuctions and events in a manner thut achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any sigaificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit,

Report on the §
omudll was mndum-d ror the purpose of forming an opinion on the hasic financlal statements taken as a whole. The
supplementary information on taxes and alike in the Notes to Finuncial Statements and the ‘Other Information”
mentioned above are presented for purposes of additional analysis and filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue, SEC
and BSP und are no\ required to be part of the basic financial sta ats. Such i tion is the responsibility of
t. The it tion has been subjected to the auditing prou\lun-s applied in our audit of the basic financial
guwmmls In our opinhn, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole,

DAROYA & CO.
BOA AN 221, valld

SEC/BSP Acc rodlh\tlon No. 90169 (Gmup Q)
(Audit Period Covered 2020-2024)
BIR AN. 010081190022023, vaiid until February 16, 2026
TIN 161-520-408
PTR No. 1501877 (2024) Dagupan City i R

E":: """"“"’*“W

»

Dagupan City, Pangasinan
April 8, 2024

APR 17 2020

COLLECTAON SECTION
BIR-RDO4, falasiao, Pangasinan
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DAROYA & CO.

Ceoertifled Publlec Accountants

SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Bound of Dirextors and Stockholders
PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC,
Rizal Avenue, Mangaldan Pangasinan

&

4" Floor, Benning Square Buliding
Arallano Street, Barangay Pantal
Dagupan Clty, Pangasinan

Phifipplnes 2400

Tel. Nos. (075) 522.7098 / (075) 5224333
Emall address: ben|ledaroya@d com.ph

Wo have audited the financlal stolement of PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. for the year ended
December 31, 2023, on which we have rendered the attached report dated April 8, 2024,

Tn compliance with SRC Rule 68, we are stating that the Company has 38 Stackholders awning 100 or more shares each as

of December 31, 2023,

DAROYA & CO,
BOA AN 221, valid yail September 03, 2024

0221 (Group C)

dle No. 0090369, vulid until April 10, 2026
SEC/BSP Acvreditation No, 90369 (Group C)

(Audit Period Covered 2020-2024)
BIR AN. 010081190022023, valid until February 16, 2026
TIN 161-520-408
PTR No, 1501877 (2024) Dagupan City

Dagupan City, Pangasinan
April 8, 2024

' rea A‘,)‘ WER WMWY e o
e e N L N ‘-
Rtz

APR 17 WD)

cot.LEtﬁON SECTION
BIR-RDOL Calasiao, Pangasinan
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D A R 0 Y A & C O . A" floor, Bonning Square Bullding

Certifled Public Accountants Aecllana Steeet, Barangay Patal
Oagupan City, Pargasinan

Philippines 2400
Tol. Nos. (075) 5227098 / (U75) 522-4313
Ernil adddeess. banyiedasoysatalaruya o gh

To the Otficer-in-Charge
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinay
Manila, Philippines

SUBJECT: CERTIFICATION

Dear Sir/Madam:

[n connection with our examination of the financial statements of PANGASINAN BANK (A
RURAL BANK), INC.,, which is to be submitted to the Bangko Sentral Ng Pillpinas (BSP) we
hereby represent the following certifications:

1. That we have evaluated the client’s internal accounting control and risk management
systems during our examination of the client’s financial statements for year 2023;

2. That we have started the audit on January 27, 2024 and ended March 27, 2024;

3. That there are matters to report on items specified under information required In
number 4 Appendix 55 of BSP Circular 1074 (Please see Letter of Comment);

4. That there are no matters to report on items specified under information required in
number 7 Appendix 55 of BSP Circular 1074;

5. That all required disclosures under Section 174 (Financial Audit) are complied with;

6. That the bank allowed us as external auditors to read-only access to the BSP Reports
of Examination (ROR). We, as external auditors, on the other hand, have treated the
contents of the ROE appropriately and with utmost confidentiality; and

7. We have submitted a certification to the Board of Directors on April 8, 2024.

As a CPA engaged in public practice, we make these representations in my individual
capacity and as a er gf DAROYA & COMPANY,

CPA Certificate No. 0090369, valid unti! April 10, 2026
SEC/BSP Accreditation No. 90369 (Group C)

(Audit Period Covered 2020-2024)
BIR AN. 01-008119-002-2023, valid untl February 16, 2026
TIN 161-520-408
PTR No. 1429886 (2023) Dagupan City

April 8, 2024 APR 16 2024

Dox No,
Page No.
Book Neo. g
Series of 2024 54416 o
Roll No. 54416 l
MCLE Compliance No.VlI~0023673-10-03-2022
S (ard - oLl
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DAROYA & CO. A% Hoor, Benning Square Bulding

Certifled Public Accountants Arollano Street, Batangay Pantal
Dagupan City, Pangasinan
Philippines 2400

Tel Mos. (075) 522-7008 / (075) 5224333

Email adidress; benyiedary & o dsioya vua ¢

To the Board of Directors
PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC,
Rizal Avenue, Mangaldan

SUBJECT: CERTIFICATION
Dear Sir/Madam:

In connection with our examination of the financial statements of PANGASINAN BANK (A
RURAL BANK), INC., we hereby represent the following certifications:

1. That we have evaluated the internal accounting control and risk management

systems during our examination of the financial statements for year 2023;

That we have started the audit on January 27, 2024 and ended March 27, 2024;

That there are matters to report on items specified under information required in

number 4 Appendix 55 of BSP Circular 1074 (Please see Letter of Comment);

4, That there are no matters to report on items specified under information required in
number 7 Appendix 55 of BSP Circular 1074;

5. That all required disclosures under Section 174 (Financial Audit) are complied with;
and

6. That the bank allowed us as external auditors to read-only access to the BSP Reports
of Examination (ROF), We, as external auditars, on the other hand, have treated the
contents of the ROE appropriately and with utmost confidentiality.

©

As a CPA engaged in public practice, we make these representations in my individual
capacity and as of DAROYA & COMPANY.

CPA Certificate No. 0090369, valid until April 10, 2026
SEC/BSP Accreditation No. 90369 (Group C)

(Audit Period Covered 2020-2024)
BIR AN. 01-008119-002-2023, valid until February 16, 2026
TIN 161-520-408
PTR No. 1429886 (2023) Dagupan City

April 8, 2024
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DAROYA & CO. 4™ Hloar, Banning Squere Buiding

Certifled Public Accountants Atellato Street, Barangay Pantal
Dagupan City, Pangasinan
Philippinss 2400

Tal. Noa (075) 522-7098 [ (07%) 522-4333
Favaed wdddiens. benproshansryo o dbavorye oy oy

‘The Board of Directors
PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC.
Rizal Avenue, Mangaldan

Thru: The Audit Committee Chairman
RE: * EXTERNAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT - LETTER OF COMMENTS - 2023
Ladies/Gentlemen:

In connection with the subject professional engagement with your Rural Bank, we
are pleased to submit our Final Letter of Comments (LOC) containing our Audit
Observations and Findings together with our Recommendations, as part of our Year-
End Management Letter for the PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Hereunder Observations and Findings were noted during the course of our audit
and examination of books of accounts and financial statements of the
PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC. which commenced last January 27
, 2024 and ended March 27, 2024,

In compliance with the requirement of Circular 1074, your Bank should submit the
required Board Resolution containing the actions taken or actions to be taken on our
findings and recommendations stated in this Letter of Comments, together with the
Audited Financial Statements, not later than the prescribed period after the close of
the calendar year.

Should you have any questions regarding this Letter of Comments, please don't
hesitate to call us. Thank you and - God Bless!

Fie-Loc- sl
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DAROYA & CO. A" Moor, Benning Square Budding

Certifled Publlec Accountants Aeellana Streel, Barangay Pontal
Dagupan City, Pangasinan
Philippines 2400

Tel. Nos, (07%) 5227098 / (075) 522-4303
Vol adlelee o benpredariyas daroya som ph

PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC,
Rizal Avenue, Mangaldan

LETTER OF COMMENTS
December 31, 2023

(Summary of AUDIT COMMENTS and RECOMMENDATIONS)

1. LOAN CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT

Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly except
those that are under 'Motor Loans', This is a significant credit exposure since it is around
65% of the total loan exposure.

Recommendation: The Bank should maintain strict procedures in monitoring threshold
for significant credit exposures, Loan concentration of credit exists when the total loan
exposure to a particular industry or economic sector exceeds 30,00% of total loan
portfolio.

2. MINIMUM CAPITALIZATION OF RURAL BANKS

The Monetary Board, in its resolution No. 1145 dated 4 August 2022, approved the
amendments to the relevant provisions of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB)
aimed at increasing the minimum capital requirements for rural banks. The minimum
capitalization for rural banks is P50 million up to 5 branches and P120 million for 6 to 10
branches. The bank maintains 6 operating locations, including head office.

Recommendation: Rural banks are given five (5) years to comply with the new minimum
capital requirements. They may refer to available options such as merger, consolidation,
acquisition, third party investment, voluntary surrender of banking license, conversion to
branch lite unit and capital build-up program (CBUP).

3. REAL AND OTHER PROVERIIES ACQUIRED (ROPA)
The bank has ROPA being held for more than 5 years.
The bank should prepare an effective disposal plan specifically for each ROPA to reduce
its risks assets and convert it to liquid assets.

4., COMPLIANCE TO BSP FINDINGS/OBSERVATIONS

The bank is encouraged to comply with the directives/instruction;
as enumerated under the report on examination,

AROYA, JR., CPA
Partner
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PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC.
Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, Pangasinan

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022
{(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2023 2022
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 25 3,172,617 2,713,809
Duc from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 2, 5,418,764 10,522,781
Due from Other Banks 2,7 142,200,416 159,909,729
Loans and Receivables 28 208,717,467 198,778,553
Held:to-Maturity Financial Assets 29 26,829,841 25,972,932
Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 2,10 8,957,618 9,553,055
Investment Properties 2,11 11,079,711 10,428,404
Other Assets 2,12 3,858,105 4,432,561
TOTAL ASSETS 410,234,540 422,311,823
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposit Liabilities 2,13 330,257,122 342,521,876
Unearned Income 214 3,142,034 4,291,661
Other Liabilities 2,15 2,117,176 2,493,082
Income Tax Payable 2,16 27,488 46,035
Total Liabilities 335,543,820 349,352,654
EQUITY
Paid-in Capital 217 50,000,000 50,000,000
Retained Earnings Reserve 217 11,280,803 11,102,506
Retained Earnings Free 217 12,710,980 11,856,664
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 2 698,937 -
Total Equity 74,690,719 72,939,170
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 410,234,540 422311823

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

fPr.’t"la_"h T WM e Iam
T e T LA TE LR
g (L R v
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PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC.

Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, Pangasinan

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2023 2022

INTEREST INCOME 18

Loans and receivables 24,324,393 27,504,145

Held-to-maturity Investments 1,064,951 502,972

Deposits with banks 2,725,533 995,635

28,114,877 29,002,752

INTEREST EXPENSE 19

Deposit | iabilities 1,910,826 1,436,506

1,910,826 1,436,506

OTHER INCOME 20

Miscellancous 6,292,087 7,670,688
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 32,496,138 35,236,934
OPERATING EXPENSES 21

Employees compensation and other benefits 16,251,245 15,452,222

Director’s Fees 290,800 300,900

Taxes and Licenses 2,956,474 2,643,864

Other Administrative Expenses 7,520,081 10,823,758

Depreciation/ Amortization 2,033,956 2,109,062

Losses/Recoveries of Financial Assets (826,803) -
p——— WIS SR
INCOME BEFORE TAX 4,270,385 3,907,128
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 16 & 22 (435,453) (725,765)
PROFII/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 3,834,931 3,181,363

R COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unrealized market gain on plan assets 2

m{F.ENSNE INCOME 3,834,931 3,181,363

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying rotes,

BN DEVE SA TEEN N T Y e

b psa g Vi )
L

o 4

APR 17 2003
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PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC.
Kral Avene. Fobba ton Mangaldan, Vangasinan

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Foe the years coudind Dvovanber 51, 2029 aml 2022

(Amounts In Philippine Pesos)
Accu ted Other|
Paid-in Capita) Retalned Farn et & Total
l Income
Preferred Common Reserve Free Ivided Profits

Balance at 31 December, 2021 5.000.000 45,000,000 11,069,562.54 1287913 3888931 1133349 70379736
Diwvidonds (3,450,000 (3,630,000
Basarve L Contgencnvs anud seil-

AN e 207,011 (174.210) 05,74
Adustrwnts - Corporute tncome tax 2021 (359743 (5074
Adjustments (see AJE) A5, 59740
Delickency tax 2019 H45,639) (#H3.659)
Transters ABss9u (ss8.91) -
Unnsalized market galn/ loss on

retfrement fund [IREUCL R R U]
Remewsurement of detiowd bene(it

assols and Habilities 495304 469334
Adjustuwnls - SIDI(PASE) (1M.000) (13.000)
Undividd Proits ening

12/31/2022 2181363 MIALAY
Balance at 31 December, 2022 5,000,000 45,000,000 11,102,506 8,849,511 3,007,153 . 72.959,170
Dividends a7s000m 2750.000)
Teserve for contmgencies and sell-

Invarance 178,297 128,625 306,921
Deficlency tax 2022 4521235 (A52125)
Transfers 007,138 (A7 153)

Tank ontries in 2020 QOA730) 957858 393,730)
Adjustnent oo amoctized HTM 106,516 18918
Reversal of adjustment ¥ (957,6%8) w0
Remonureamt of defined bonetit

assets and Babilities 98,97 698,917
Adpustioent of Prowision for inceme lax H60%) “803)
Undividid Profits ending

128/ 2020 R RAT) Asu03t
Balance at31 December, 2023 3.000000 45,000,000 11,250,503 8,876,088 3834931 58307 74.690,719
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PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC.
Rizal Avenue. Poblavion. Mangaldan, Pangasinan

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Ameunts in Philippine Pesos)

—

Notes 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACIIVITIES
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 4,270,385 3,907,128
Adjustments to reconcile net incomefretained camings
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation - BI'TTL 10 1,298,770 2,109,062
Depreciation - ROPA 735,186
Acc. Depr - ROPA Disposal (26,919)
Adjustments (see SCE) 646,618 3,182,081
Changes in operating assets and linkilitics
Decrease (Increase) in:
Loans and Receivables 8 (9,938,915) (7,861,307)
Uneamned Interest and Discounts 7 - -
Other Asset 12 574,456 (4,162,026)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Deposit Liabilities 13 (12,264,755) (3,406,791)
Other Liabilities 15 (375,906) (2,202,886)
Uneamned Income 14 (1,149,6! (388,141)
Cash generated trom operations (16,@17% (8,822,880)
Income Taxes 16 (454,000) (1,039,473)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (16.684,706) (9,862WZ
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACIIVITIES
(Increase) Decrease in:
Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets 9 (856,909) 2,265,339
Investment Properties 11 (1,359,574) 1,614,209
Disposal, Acc. Depreciation, Adjustments 10 (165,049) (253,476)
Bank Premises, Furniture and Equipment 10 (538,284) (216,269)
T NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,919,817) 3,409,803
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Dividends (2.750,000) (3,650,000)
Capital Infusion
—nﬁmmm (2.750,000) ___ (3,650,000)
NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,354,522) (10,102,551)
SH BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 2,713,809 3,082,880
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 6 10,522,781 10,581,544
Due from Other Banks 7 159,909,729 169,584,446
173,146,319 183,248,870
CASH BALANCE AT END OF YEAR
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 3,172,617 2,713,809
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 6 5,418,764 10,522,781
Due from Other Banks 7 142,200,416 159,909,729
150,791, 173, 1
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
r".“r"ﬁ £ TN N "-’—-,.}
P B TV NT )
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PANGASINAN BANK (A RURAL BANK), INC.
Rizal Avenue, Poblacion, Mangaldan, Pangasinan

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 1 - Company Information

Pangasinan Bank (A Rural Bank), Inc. was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) under registration number 69494. The Bank's main purpose is to carry and engage in the
business of extending rural credit to small farmers and tenants and to deserving rural industries and enterprises and
to have and exercise all authority and powers and to do and perform all acts and transacts all business which may
legally be had and done by rural bank organized under and in accordance with the Rural Bank's Act and transacts all
business which may legally exist or be amended and to have all other things thereto and necessary and proper in
connection with said purposes within such authority as may be determined by the Monetary Board of Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas.

The bank's principal place of business is located at Rizal Avenue, Mangaldan, Pangasinan with branches in
Pangasinan in the towns of Binmaley, San Fabian, Alaminos, Malasiqui and in Rosario, La Union.

The Board of Directors (BOD) of the bank has reviewed and approved the release of the accompanying financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 (including comparative figures for December 31, 2022) on April 5,
2024.

Note 2 - Material Accounting Policy Information

A summary of more significant policies and practices of the bank are set forth below to facilitate the understanding
of data presented in the financial statements.

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting

Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and approved by the Philippine Board of Accountancy.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplate the
realization of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.

Restatement of Financial Statements
The previously issued financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 dated March 2, 2023

(Date of Auditor's report) have been withdrawn and are replaced by these issued comparative financial statements
dated 08 April 2024 (Date of Auditor's report). The revision of 2022 financial statements was necessary as a result of
the impact of correction of error pertaining to SI/DI classified as Prepaid expenses where it should have been part of
Loans and Receivables and made adjustments to ECL thereafter.

Curxency of Presenfation
Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are expressed in Philippine Pesos (Php), the domestic currency. All financial
information presented in Philippine Peso has been rounded-off to the nearest peso.

1of 31
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Ihe statements of financlal position of the Bank are presented in order of lquiity, An analysis regarding recovery of
assets or settlement of Habilities within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after
the reporting date (non-current) s presented in Note 4.3,

ncame and expenses are not offsel In the statement of (ncome unless required or permitted hy any accounting
standard or Interpretation, and as specliically disclosed In the accounting polictes of the Bank.

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items, due from BSP and
other banks that are highly liquid, readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from dates of placements and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, Due from BSP
includes statutory reserves required by the Bank which the Bank considers as cash and cash equivalents as
withdrawals can be made to meet the Bank’s cash requirements as allowed by the BSP.

1]
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the adoption of the
following amended standards, which became effective in year 2023, Except as otherwise indicated, these changes in
the accounting policies did not have any significant impact on (he financial position or performance of the Bank:

i. Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities from a Single Transaction
(effective January 1, 2023)
The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the
amendments, an entity does not apply the Initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary differences may arise on
initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit, For example, this may arise upon recognition of a lease liability and
the corresponding right-of-use asset applying PFRS 16 at the commencement date of a lease.

Following the amendments to PAS 12, an entity is required to recognize the related deferred tax asset and
liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability criteria in PAS
12,

The amendments apply to transactions that accur on or after the heginning of the earliest comparative
period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an entity recognizes:

a. A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with:

a. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

b. Decommissioning, restoration and similar Kabilities and the corresponding amounts

recognized as part of the cost of the related asset

b. The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date

20131
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Earlier application is permitted.

il. Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements—Disclosure of Accounting Policies
The amendments change the requirements in PAS 1 with regard to the disclosure of accounting policies.
The amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘material
accounting policy information’. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial slatements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in PAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information that
relates that immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed.
Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other
evenls or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.

Early application is permitted in applying amendments to PAS 1. The amendments are applied
prospectively. The amendments to PFRS Practice Statement 2 do not contain an effective date or

transition requirements.

iii. Amendments to PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emrors — Definition
of Accounting Estimates
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of
accounting eslimates, Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, the Board retained the concept
of changes in accounling eslimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:
a. A change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new
developments is not the correction of an error; and
b. The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an
accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the
correction of prior period errors,

Earlier application is permitted.

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Bank has not applied the following new and revised
PFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

i. Amendment to PFRS 17, Initial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS9 - Comparative Information (effective
January 1, 2025)

ii. Amendments to PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts (effective January 1, 2025)

iii. Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (effective January 1, 2024)

iv. Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Deferred effectivity)
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v, Deterral of Certain Provisions of PIC Q&A 2018-12, PFRS 15 Implementation Issues Affecting the Real
Estate Industry (as amended by PIC Q&As 2020-02 and 2020-04)

Fair Value Measurement

For measurement and disclosure purposes, the Bank determines the fair value of an asset or liability at initial
maasurement or at each reporting date. Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transter a lability inan orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either: a.) in the principal market for the asset or lability, or b.) in the absence of a principal market, in the
mast advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the maest advantageous market must be
acvessible to the Bank,

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. If the asset or
liability measured at fair value has a bid and ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative
of fair value in the circumstances shall be used to measure fair value, regardless of where the input is categorized
within the fair value hierarchy.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it o another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and tor which sutticient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value luerarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole;

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Bank
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities as at December 31 for both years approximate their fair
values based on the bank's fair value hierarchy.
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Classification and meastrement of financial nssets

For purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is an ‘equity instrument’ if it is a nonderivative and meets
the definition of ‘equity’ for the issuer (under PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation). All other non-derivative
financial instruments are ‘debt instruments’. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortized cost, FVTOCI, and FVTPL. The classification depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Bank’s business model for managing them. In order for a financial asset to be classified
and measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows hat are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. The Bank’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Business model test

The Bank determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages Banks of financial assets to
achieve its business objective. The Bank’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at
a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

a, How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated
and reported to the Bank's key management personnel

b. The risks that affect the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model
and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

c. How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

d. The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Bank's assessment The business
model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case” or stress case’ scenarios into
account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is different from the Bank’s original
expectations, the Bank does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model,
but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going
forward.

SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process, the Bank assesses the contractual terms of financial instruments to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test. ‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are
repayments of principal or amortization of the premium/discount). The most significant elements of interest within a
lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI
assessment, the Bank applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial
asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set. In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a
more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPI on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the
financial asset is required to be measured at F'VTPL.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
1. The asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and
2, The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the

principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets meeting these criterla are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs, These are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less allowance for credit
losses, with (he interest caleulated recognized as ‘Interest income’ In the statement of income. Gains and losses are
recognized in the statement of income when the financial assets are derecognized and Impaired, as well as through
the amortization process, The losses arising, from impairment of such assets are recognized in the statement of income
under ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses - net’, The effects of restatement on foreign currency-denominated
financial assets at amortized cost are recognized in the statement of Income.

The Bank classified ‘Cash and other cash items’, ‘Duc from BSP, ‘Duc from other banks’, ‘Loans and receivables’,
‘Investment securities at amortized cost’, if any, and certain financial assets, if any, under ‘Other assets’ as financial
assets at amortized cost. This will also include, as prescribed by BSP Circular 1011 Appendix 33 Annex A, Held-to-
Maturity Financial Assels,

Financinl Assels at FVTOCI
Financial assets at FVTOCI include Available for Sale (AFS) Financial Assets,

Financial Asscls at FVTPL,

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost or FVTOCI criterta, or that meet the criteria but the Bank has
chosen (o designate as at FVTPL at initial recognltion, are measured at fair value through profit or loss, Investments
in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Bank designates an equity instrument that is not held for
trading as at FVTQOCI at initial recognition. The Banks's financial assets at FVTPL include government securities and
private bonds held for trading purposes, or Financial Assets Held for Trading,

Derivative Instrunenis

Derivative instruments are initially recorded at tair value and carried as financial assets when their fair value is
positive and as financial liabilities when their fair value is negative, Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to the statement of income.
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of PFRS 9 (for
example, financial liabilities and non-financial host contracts) are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
economic characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at FVTPL, The Bank assesses the existence of an embedded derivative on the date it first becomes a party to the
contract, and performs re-assessment only when there is a change to the contract that significantly modifies the
contractual cash flows.

Reclassification of financial assets
The Bank can reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business model for managing those financial assets
changes. The Bank is required to reclassify as follows:

1. From amortized cost or FVTOCI to FVTPL, if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria are no longer met;

2, From FVTPL to amortized cost or FVTOCI, if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost or FVTOC! criteria start to be met and the characteristics of the instrument’s contractual
cash flows are SPPL; and

3. From amortized cost to FVTOCI if the business model changes so that the objective becomes both to
collect contractual cash flows and to sell or from FVTOCI to amortized cost if the business model

becomes solely for the collection of contractual cash flows.
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Reclassitication of financlal assets designated as at BVTPL or equity financlal assets at FVTOCIH at initial recognition is
ot permitted, A change in the objective of the Bank’s business model must be effected before the reclassification date,
The reclasaltication date is the beginning of the next reporting perlod following the change in the business model,

Financlal Habllitles are classified, at initial recognition, either as financial linbilities at FVTPL or other financial
Habilities at amortized cont.

Financial Uabilitles at amortized cost

These labilities are elassified as such when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Bank having
an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financlal asset for a fixed number of own equily shares, The
components of issued financlal instraments that contain both lability and equity elements are accounted for
separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a
whole the amount separately determined ag the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

These financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
measurement, these liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Amarlized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an
integral part of the EIR.

This accounting policy relates to the statement of financial position captions ‘Deposit liabilities’, ‘Bills payable’,
‘Outstanding acceptances’, ‘Manager’s checks’, and certain financial liabilities under ‘Accrued interest, taxes and
other expenses’ and ‘Other liabilities” which are not designated at FVTPL.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in vault and checks and other cash items. Cash equivalents include highly liquid
invostments, if any, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
This account represents deposit of the bank to the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas as part of its legal reserve
requirement to secure its deposit liabilities.

Due from Other Banks
This account represents deposits with other banking institutions earning variable interest rates prevailing at market.

Financial Assets Held for Tra

This refers to the debt and equity securities that are:

(1) acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing them in the near term; or

(2) part of a portfolio of identified securities that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
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HFT securities shall be measured upon initial recognition at their fair value, Transaction costs incurred at the
acquisition of HFT securities shall be recognized directly in profit or loss. After initial recognition, a bank shall
measure HFT securities at their fair values without any deduction for transaction costs that it may incur on sale or
other disposal. A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of HFT securities shall be recognized in profit or
loss under the account “Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets and Liabilities Held for Trading”.

The Bank has no Financial Assets Held for Trading for the two years ended 31 December,

Available-for-Sale (AFS) Financial Assets

This refers to securities that are designated as available-for-sale, which shall be measured upon initial recognition at
their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of securities, After initial
recognition, a bank shall measure AFS at their fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs it may incur on
sale or other disposal. A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of an AFS security shall be recognized
directly in equity under the account “Net Unrealized Gains/(Losses) on AFS Financial Assets” and reflected in the
statement of changes in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial
asset is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity shall be recognized
in profit or loss. However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in profit or loss.
Dividends on an AFS equity security are recognized in profit or loss when the financial institution”s right to receive
payment is established,

The Bank has no AFS Financial Assets for the two years ended 31 December.
Held-to-Maturity (HTM) Financial Assets

This refers to debt securities, quoted in an active market with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that
a bank has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than:

(a) those that meet the definition of Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss; or

(b) those that the financial institution designates as Available for Sale Securities (AFS).

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative tinancial assets with tixed or determinable payments that are not qouted in
an active market and with no intention of trading.

Loans and receivables shall be measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Loans and receivables
are stated at the outstanding balance reduced by allowance for credit losses and impairment losses.

Interest on non-supervised loans collected in advance (Unearned Income) is amortized to income over the term of
the loans, Interest income on past due loans arising from discount amortization (and not from the contractual interest
of the accounts) shall be accrued as provided in PAS 39. Interest on charges on supervised credits are recognized as
income upon collection. Such assets are carried at cost or amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains
and losses are recognized in the statement of income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as
well as through the amortization process.

Specific and general loan loss provision were determined and set-up after conducting a loans and other assets review
classification, through aging, analysis and other criteria and after considering the guidelines in the classification
of loans and the provisioning requirements for classified and unclassified loan accounts. After classifying loans as
either current, past cdue or items in litigation the same are qualitively appraised and categorized. Loans and other
credit accommodations shall be grouped into the following classification:
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1) Pass. These are loans and other credit accommodations that do not have a greater-than normal credit risk. The
borrower has the apparent ability and willingness to satisfy obligations in full and therefore no loss in ultimate
collection is anticipated.

2) Especially Mentioned (EM). These are loans and other credit accommodations that have potential weaknesses that
de<erve management’s close attention. If left uncorrected, these weaknesses may affect the repayment of the loan

3) Subslandard. These are loans and other credit accommodations that have well-defined weaknesses that may
jeopardize repayment/liquidation in full, either in respect of the business, cash flow or financial position, which may
include adverse trends or developments that affect willingness or repayment ability of the borrower,

4) Doubiful. These are loans and other credit accommodations that exhibit more severe weaknesses than those
classified as “Substandard”, whose characteristics on the basis of currently known facts, conditions and values make
collection or liquidation highly improbable, however the exact amount remains undeterminable as yet. Classification
as “Loss" is deferred because of specific pending factors which strengthen the assets.

5) Loss, These are loans and other credit accommodations which are considered uncollectible or worthless and of
such little value that their continuance as bankable assets is not warranted although the loans may have some
recovery or salvage value. This shall be viewed as a transitional category for loans and other credit accommodations
which have been identified as requiring write-off during the current reporting period even though partial recovery
may be obtained in the future,

Credit exposures shall be classified into three stages using the following time horizons in measuring ECL:

Stage of
credit Time horizon in
impairment Characteristics measuring ECL
Stage 1 Credit exposures that are considered Twelve (12) months
“performing” and with no significant
increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or with low credit risk
Stage 2 Credit exposures that are considered Lifetime
"under-performing" or not yet
non-performing but with significant
increase in credit nisk since initial
nition
Stage 3 Credit exposures with objective Lifetime
evidence of impairment, thus,
considered as "non-performing,,

Following the "Basic Guidelines in Setting Up of Allowance for Credit Loss", as a general rule, Especially Mentioned
and Substandard - Underperforming [e.g., substandard accounts that are unpaid or with missed payment of less than
ninety (90) days) shall be considered as Stage 2 accounts, while Substandard Non-performing, Doubtful, and Loss
accounts shall be considered as Stage 3 accounts.

The loan loss estimation of the bank be subject to the following guidelines:
1. Individually Assessed Credit Exposure:(include investmends in debt securitics measured at fair value through other

comprchensive income and amortized cost, loan commitments, salcs contract reccivables, accounts receivables, accrued interest
receivables, and advances).
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A. Loans and other credit exposures with unpaid principal and/or interest shall be classified and
provided with allowance for credit losses (ACL) based on the number of days of missed payments as

follows:
For unsecured loans and other credit exposures:
No. of Days
Unpaid/with Missed Minimum
Payment Classification ACL Stage
Substandard
31- %
90 days (underperforming) 10% 2
; Substandard
91 - o ;
120 days (non-per 2 25% 3
121 - 180 days Doubtful 50% 3
181 days and over Loss 100% 3
For secured loans and other credit exposures:
No. of Days
Unpaid/with Missed Minimum
Payment Classification ACL Stage
Substandard
31-90 days x (underpestormind) 10% 2
% Substandard as
91 - 180 days x (nor-performing) 10% 3
1 Substandard o
181 - 365 days ilstrimioehiigs 25% 3
Over ayear-Syears Doubtful 50% 3
Over 5 years Loss 100% 3
x When there is imminent possibility of foreclosure and expectation of loss, ACL shall be increased to
25%.

Provided, that where the quality of physical collaterals or financial guarantees securing
the loans and advances are determined to be insufficient, weak or without recoverable
values, such loans and advances shall be treated as if these are unsecured.

B. Loans and other credit exposures that exhibit the characteristics for classified accounts described
under Subsection x178.17/4178Q.17/4191N.16 shall be provided with ACL as follows:

Classification Minimum ACL Stage
Especiallv Mentioned 5% 2

Substandard = Secured 10% 2 or 3x

Substandard - Unsecured 25% 2 or 3x
Doubtful 50% 3
Loss 100% 3

x The stage depends on whether the accounts are classified as non-performing
(Sta&e 3) or underperforming (Stage 2).

2. Collectively Assessed Loans and Other Credit Exposures. (ficlude microfinance loans, wmicra cnterprises and
smallbusiness loans and consumer loans such as salary loans, credit card receivables, auto loans, housing loans and other
consutption loans, und other loantypes which full below the FI's materiality threshold for individual t)

For unsecured loans and other credit exposures:
No. of Days | | -

10031
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Unpaid/with Missed Minimum
Pavment * Classitication ACL Stage
Especially
1 - 30 davs M:';\‘lionni 2% 2
31 = 60 davs /1st restructuring Substandard 25% 2or’x
61 - 90 davs Doubtiul 50% An
91 davs and over / Loss 100% 3
2nd restructuring

* Par for microfinonce loans

x The stage depends on whether the accounts are classified as non-performing (Stage 3) or
underperforming (Stage 2).

# Subsection X306.2/4306Q.2/4306N.2 provides that doubtful accounts are considered as non-
performing hence, shall be classified under Stage 3 notwithstanding the number of missed amortizations

For secured loans and other credit exposures:

No. of Days ACL %
Unpaid/with Other Types of Secured by
Missed
Payment Classification Collateral Real Estate Stage
FoS0AE | sabstandard 10% 10% 2
(underperforming)
91 - 120 days Substandard 5
(non-performi 2% e 3
121- 360 davs Doubtful 50% % 3
351 days - )
Euiars Loss 192« 50% 3
Over 5 years Loss 100% 100% 3

General and Specific Provisions for Loan Accounts
1. The Bank shall treat Stage 1 provisions for loan accounts as General Provision (GP), while Stages 2 and 3 provisions

shall be treated as Specific provisions (Sp).

2 The Bank shall set up general loan loss provision (GLLP) equivalent to one percent (1%) of all outstanding Stage 1
on-balance sheet loans, except for accounts considered as credit risk-free under existing regulations. The Banks is not
required to provide a one percent (1%) GP on other credit exposures covered by PFRS 9 such as off-balance sheet

accounts and investments.

3. Allowance for credit losses for Stages 1, 2, and 3 accounts shall be recognized in profit or loss statement. In cases
when the computed allowance for credit losses on Stage 1 accounts is less than the 1 percent GP required, the
deficiency shall be recognized by appropriating the Retained Earnings account (Bank shall use Retained Earnings
Reserve - others as temporary account of Retained Earnings- General Provision).. GP recognized in profit or loss as
allowance for credit losses for Stage 1 accounts and the amount appropriated in RE shall be considered as Tier 2
capital subject to the limit provided under the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) framework.

(As a temporury preseutution in CAR reports, the Retained Earnings (RE) included in Common Equity Tier (CET)/Core Tier 1

<hall be net of RE-GP. Inn computing Tier 2 Capital, the General Loan Loss provision (GLLP) slall include the RE-GP. Howcver,
the GLLP addcd back to on-balance shect asscts subject to risk-ecight shall not include the RE-GP since when appropriating the

RE, 1olal nssels is nol affected.)
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Bank Credit Analysis

Bank credit analysis involves venfying and determining the creditworthiness of a potential client by looking at their
financial state, credit reports, and business cash flows. The goal of credit analysis is to determine the level of default
risk that a client presents to the company and the losses that the bank will suffer if the client defaults. The risk level
that a client presents determines whether the bank will approve or reject the loan application, and if approved, the
amount to be awarded.

The Bank's system of credit analysis and methodology 1s in accordance with section 143 of the MORB. See 'Credit
Risk' for additional information.

Sales Contract Receivables

This refers to the amortized cost of assets acquired in settlement of loans through foreclosure or dation in payment
and subsequently sold on installment basis whereby the title to the said property is transferred to the buyers only
upon full payment of the agreed selling price. This shall be recorded initially at the present value of the installment
receivable discounted at the imputed rate of interest, Discount shall be accreled over the life of the SCR by crediting
interest income using the effective interest method. Any difference between the present value of the SCR and the
derecognized assets shall be recognized in profit or loss at the date of sale in accordance with the provisions of PAS
18.

Investment in Associates

This refers to the cost of the bank"s investments in the equity instruments of associates, which shall be accounted for
using the equity method. As provided under PAS 28, an associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is presumed to exist if
an investor holds, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee,
unless it can be clearly demonstrated that that is not the case. Conversely, if the investor holds, directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, less than 20 percent of the voting power of the investee, it is presumed that the investor does
not have significant influence, unless such influence can be clearly demonstrated. Under the equity method, profit
and loss from the investee increase the investment account by an amount proportionate to the bank’s shares in the
investee. This is known as the "equity pick-up.” Dividends paid out by the investee are deducted from this account.

The Bank has no Investment in Associates for the two years ended 31 December.

Unearned Income
Interest on non-supervised loans collected in advance is amortized to income over the term of the loans.

Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment

Properties and equipment are initially measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation, The cost of an
asset consists of its purchase price and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use.

Subsequent expenditures relating to an jtem of properties and equipment that have already been recognized are
added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the bank. All other subsequent expenditures are
recognized as expenses in the period in which those are incurred.

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as properties and equipment when the bank expects to use them
during more than one period. Similarly, if the spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection
with an item of properties and equipment, they are accounted for as properties and equipment.

120f31
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Psu:mated future dismantlement costs of items of properties and equipment arising from legal or constructive
obligations are recognized as part of properties and equipment and are measured at present value at the time when
the obligation was incurred.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method with estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-20 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Transportation equipments 3-5 years
Information and technology 1-3 years
Leasehold improvement 3-5 years

Stand-by equipment is depreciated from the date it is made available for use over the shorter of the life of the stand-
by equipment or the life of the asset the stand-by equipment is part of while major spare parts are depreciated over
the period starting when it is brought into service, continuing over the lesser of its useful life and the remaining
expected useful life of the asset to which it relates.Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in the income statement,

Investment Properties

Real and other properties acquired (ROPA) in settlement of loans through foreclosure or dation in payment shall be
booked initially al Lhe carrying amount of the loan plus booked accrued interest less allowance for probable losses
plus transaction costs incurred upon acquisition (such as non-refundable capital gains tax and documentary stamp
tax paid in connection with the foreclosure/purchase of the acquired real estate property): Provided, That where the
booked amount of ROPA exceeds the appraised value of the acquired property, an allowance for probable losses
equivalent to the excess of the amount booked over the appraised value shall be set up: Provided, further, That if the
carrying amount of ROPA exceeds P5 million, the appraisal of the foreclosed/ purchased asset shall be conducted by
an independent appraiser acceptable to the BSP.

The carrying amount of ROPA shall be allocated to land, building, other non-financial assets and financial assets (e.g.,
receivables from third party or equity interest in an entity) based on their fair values, which allocated carrying
amounts shall become their initial costs.

The non-financial assets portion of ROPA shall remain in ROPA and shall be accounted for as follows:
1. Land and buildings shall be accounted for using the cost model under PAS 40 “Investment Property”
2. Other non-financial assets shall be accounted for using the cost model under PAS 16 “Property Plant and

uipment”

:I;q Bul:ldh\gs and other non-financial assets shall be depreciated over the remaining useful life of the assets, which
shall not exceed ten years and three years from the date of acquisition, respectively: and
4. Land, buildings and other non-financial assets shall be subject to the impairment provisions of PAS 36
“Impairment”.

ROPAs that comply with the provisions of PFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale” shall be reclassified and
accounted for as such.

Other Assets
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Other assets are recognized at cost, The account includes prepaid expenses, deferred income taxes, accrued interest
veceivables and other resources, Unused supplies, if any, are measured initlally at cost. Subsequent measurement of
unused supplies is al cost less impairment loss, if any, Intangible assets, at cost less amorlization and impairment
loss, also included,

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities include Deposit Liabilities, other non-interest bearing borrowings and advances from affiliates if

any. Financial liabilitles are recognized when the bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Deposit Liabilities
Depasits are measured at cost, which is a refloction of their fair valucs,

Bills payable
This refers to the amortized cost of obligations to the BSP or the amortized cost of borrowings from other banks and
non-bank financial institutions with quasi-banking authority, other than those payable on call/demand,

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities ate recognized upon incurrence of transaction/s wherein the Bank has an obligation to settle the
same in the future. The account includes accrued interest expense, acrrued taxes and other expenses and other
payables.

Paid-in Capital / Share Capital

Share capital is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued and fully paid. The costs of
acquiring bank’s own shares are shown as a deduction from equity attributable to the bank’s equity holders until the
shares are cancelled or reissued. When such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net
of directly attributable Incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the bank’s equity holders,

Deposits for Stock Subscription

Deposits for stock subscription refer to payments made by existing stockholders or new subscribers of the bank on
subscription to the increase in the authorized capital, which may be recognized either as a liability or equity. Deposits
for stock subscription shall be recognized as part of equity for prudential reporting purposes when all of the
conditions set forth in the 2020 MORB section 123,

Retained Eamings

Retained earnings include all current and prior period results as disclosed in the statement of income. Retained
earning free pertains to unappropriated portion of the retained earnings. Retained earnings reserve pertains to
appropriated portion of the retained earnings. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income pertains to unrealized
gains and losses in the fair market value of retirement and other investment items.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received. The Bank assesses its
revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Bank has
concluded that it is acting as principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

PFRS 15 cstablishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. The five-step
model is as follows:
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A ldentty the contract(s) with a customer

b ldentity the performance obligations in the contrat

v Determine the transaction prive

L Allocate the transaction prive to the pertormance obligation in the contract
e Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under PERS 15, revenue s rvognized at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which an entity expects to be
eatitled in exchange tor transterring goods or services to a customer.

The standand requires the Bank to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
clroumstances when applving each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies
the accounting tor the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the coats directly related to fulfilling a contract

The tollowing spevific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized;

Serviee charges and penaltics
Service charges and penalties are recognized only upon collection or accrued when there is reasonable degree of
certainty as to its collectibility.

Fees and commussions

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as
underwriting fees, corporate finance fees, and brokerage fees for the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other
securities or the purchase or sale of businesses, are recognized on completion of the underlying transaction. Fees or
components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after fulfilling the corresponding criteria,

Miscellancons fncome

Income from the sale of services is recognized upon completion of service. Income from sale of properties is
recogmized upon completion of earnings process and the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured under
*Gain from sale of non-financial asset (ROPAY’ in the statement of income.

Interest mcome

Interest on interest-bearing financial assets at FVTPL and Held-for-Trading (HFT) investments are recognized based
on the contractual rate. Interest on financial instruments measured at amortized cost and FVTOCI are recognized
based on the effective interest method of accounting.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial lability
and allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial lability. When calculating the EIR, the Bank estimates cash flows from the financial instrument (e.g.,
prepavment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognized thereafter using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Revenue is recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the bank and revenue can
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods or services provided in the normal course of business. The following specific criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized:
* Interest Income is recognized as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the
asset).
* Service charges and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis, when the service has been
provided, unless collectibility is in doubt,
* Gain on sale of acquired assets is recognized if transactions indicate that the full ownership is
transferred to the acquiree
* Miscellaneous income comprise of processing fees, banking fees and insurance. These are recognized
on an accrual basis when the service has been provided, unless collectibility is in doubt,

Relirement Benefits
The year-end status of the Bank's retirement plan is as follows:
The assets recognized for retirement/pensions consists of the following amounts:

2022
Fair Value of Plan Assets 10,783,687 10,573,481
Less: Benefit Obligations (8,588,689) (9,077,421)
Net Detined Benefit Asset/(Liability) 2,194,998 1,496,060

A reconciliation of the Bank's benefit obligation and plan assets to the amounts presented in the statement of financial
position for each of the reporting periods is presented below:

Plan assets
2023 2022
Principal beginning 8,999,283 7,495,230
Retaimed Earnings 1461,203 1,549,204
Contributions 1,617,548
Withdrawals (500) (500)
Net Income 323,701 (88,001)
Unrealized Market Gain/(loss) - Other Comprehensive
Fair Value of Plan Assets 10,783,687 10,573,481
Defined benefit obligation _
2023 2022
Defined benefit obligation, beginning 9,077 421 7,695,952
Current service cost 1,622314 1,281,469
Remeasurement - actuarial demographic assumptions (2,111,045)
Benefits paid
Defined benefit obligation, end 8,588,689 9,077 421

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate, the
salary growth rate and the average life expectancy.

As additicnal information for funding, a 5-year cash flow projection is as follows: (assuming 3% annual interest to be
earned by the retirement fund and no optional retirement availed)

Year Fund beg. Contribution Benefit Payments Interest Fund end.

2024 10,783,687 323,511 11,107,198

2025 11,107,198 333,216 11,440,413
160f 31
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2026 11,440,413 343,212 11,783,626
2027 11,783,626 353,509 12,137,135
2028 12,137,135 364,114 12,501,249
Total 1,717,562

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

2023 2022
Loans and receivables 208,717,467 198,778,553
Loan Commitments None None

Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk results from mismatches between asset and liability positions which are subject to unfavourahble
movements in interest rates with potentially adverse impact on margins, net interest income and economic value of a
bank’s assets, liabilities and shareholders’ value. Interest rate risk may be measured using methods which include
sensitivity analysis and simulation modelling. The Bank has its Interest Rate Risk Policy in which risks limits are laid
down. The Average Yield of Interest-Generating Assets and Average Cost of Interest-Bearing Deposits for both years
are presented as follows:

2023 Average balance Interest Inc/ Exp Average retum/cost
ASsets
Loan and receivables 203,748,010 24,324,393 11.94%
Tnvestments 26,401,386 1,064,951 4.03%
Due from local banks 151,055,072 2,725,533 1.80%
Total inlerest-generating assels 381,204,469 28,114,877 7.38%
Total non-interest generating assets 24,154,728 - 0.00%
Total average assets 405,359,196 28,114,877 6.94%
Liabilities

Deposits 336,389,499 1,910,826 057%
Bills payable - - 0.00%
Total interesl-earning liabilities 336,389,499 1,910,826 057%
Total non-interest bearing liabilities 6,058,738 - 0.00%
Total average liabilities 342,448,237 1,910,826 0.56%
Net interest income 26,885,149

Net interest spread 24,240,603

Net interest margin 6.93%
21 R — _ Averygebalance  Interesting/Exp _Average return/cost _
Loan and receivables 174,674,441 27,504,145 15.75%
Investments 26,938,251 502,972 1.87%
Due from local banks 174,125,424 995,635 057%
Total interest-generating assets 375,738,116 29,002,752 7.72%
Total non-interest generating assets 44,789,577 7.670,688 17.13%
Total average assets 420,527,693 36,673,440 8.72%

Liabilities
Neposits 340,423 377 1,436,506 0.42%
Bills payable = = 0.00%
Total interest-earning liabilities 340,423,377 1,436,506 042%
Total non-interest bearing liabilities 6,919,076 - 0.00%
Total average liabilities 347,342,452 1,436,506 041%
170l 31
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Nel interest income 25,806,664
Net interest spread 23,390,939
Net interest margin 6.89%

4.3 Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity rick is defined within the Bank’s policy framework as ‘the risk that, at any time, the Bank does not have
sufficient realizable tinancial assets to meet its financial obligations as they fall due’,

The liquidity policy of the Bank is to ensure that it:

*can meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the normal course of business; and
+ mainlains an adequate stock of highly liquid assets to enable it to meet unexpected funding needs at short notice.
The Bank’s liquidity policy requires establishment and maintenance of three lines of defense:
* Cashflow management where the Bank creates a continuously maturing stream of assets and liabilities;

+ Maintenance of a liquid assets portfolio; and
« Maintenance of a diversified liability base.

The following table presents the Bank’s assets and liabilities for both years, analyzed according to when they are
expected to be recovered or settled within one year and beyond one year:

2023 Within 1 year 1-5 years 5 years over
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,172,617
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 5,418,764
Due from Other Banks 142,200,416
Loans and Receivables (gross less discount) 208,717,467
Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets 26,829,841 -
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 8,957,618
Investment properties 11,079,711
Other assets 3,858,105
Deposit liabilities (330,257,122)
Uneamed Income (3,142,034)
Other liabilities (2,144,665)
Total 50,795,285 23,895,435 -
2022 Within 1 year 1-5 years 5 years over
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,713,809
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 10,522,781
Due from Other Banks 159,909,729
Loans and Receivables (gross less discount) 198,778,553
Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets 25,972,932
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 9,553,055
Tnvestment properties 10,428,404
Other assets 4,432,561
Deposit liabilities (342,521,876)
Unearned Income (4,291,661)
Other liabilities (2,493,082)
Total 22,618,252 50,386,952 -
The Minimum Liquidity Ratios for both years are shown below:

2023 2022
A. Stock of Liquid Assets
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Cash on hand 3,172,617 2,713,809

Bank reserves on the BSP 5418,764 10,522,781

Deposits with other local banks 142,200,416 159,909,729

Totl 150,791,797 173,146,319
B. Qualifying Liabilities

Total on-balance sheet liabilities 335,516,332 349,352,654
Minimum Liquidity Ratio (after audit adjustments) 44.94% 49.56%

4.5 Capital Risk Management

The bank's objective when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns to shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the bank can adjust the amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored quarterly the Bank’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines developed by BSP as implemented by the Bank. The required information is
submitted to BSP and filed by Bank on a quarterly basis.

Composition of managed capital

Note 2023 02
Share Capital 17 50,000,000 50,000,000
Note 5 - Cash and cash equivalents
02 02
Cash on hand and in vault 3,172,617 2,713,809
Note 6 - Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
2023 02
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 5,418,764 10,522,781

‘Due from BSP’ account represents the aggregate balance of noninterest-bearing peso deposit account with the BSP
which the Bank maintains primarily to meet reserve requirements.

Circular 1092 series of 2020 prescribed the required rates on the required reserves against demand, savings and time
deposits of 2%. However, BSP issued Circular 1175 series of 2023 prescribes a 1% reserve requirements effective 30
June 2023, The bank has complied with this provision. The required reserves are broken down as follows:

2023 2022
Savings deposits 4,953,857 6,850,438
Time Certificate of Deposits
Demand Deposits T ——— ——
Required Reserves 4,953,857 6,850,438
Note 7 - Due from Other Banks
2023 2022
190131
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Private Banks
Commercial Banks 114,924,032 110,409,271
Rural Banks & Thrift Banks 11,286,989 11,980,198
Government Banks
Land Bank of the Phuls 5,137,705 4962429
Development Bank of the Phils 10,851,690 32.557,830
142,200,416 139.909.729
Note 8§ ~ Loans and Receivahles
2023 2022
Receivables from borrowers 211,943,747 206,416,208
Sales Contract Receivable 3,553,864 5,169,631
215,497,611 208,585,830
Allowanee for credit 105565
Receivable from borrowers (6,780,149) 7 (9.807.287)
SCR
(6,780.144) (9,807.287)
Uneamed interest and discounts AL
Loans and receivables, net 208,717 467 198,778,553

The following table shows the percentage of loans receivable, net of unamortized discount, to equity as at December

31:

2023 2022
Percentage of loans to equity 298% 299%
Percentage of DOSRI to equity 0% 0%
Fercrmage of RPT to equity 5% 2%
The movements in allowance for credit losses on loans and receivables from borrowers are as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year 9,807,287 9,673,257
Provision for credit losses on loans and receivables 11,053
Others (Transfer to ROPA /write-offs/other adjustments) (3,038,197) 134,030
Balance at end of year 6,780,144 / Q.R07,287

The following table shows the secured and unsecured portions of receivables from borrowers, as at December 31:

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
NON-DOSRI
Secured portion

REM Residential 2,811,036 1% 3,027,192 %
REM Commercial 17,222,420 8% 16,021,105 8%
REM Agricultural 6,016,142 % 6,013,572 3%
Other Collateral 185,364,397 87% 177,933,760 87%

Unsecured portion 529,751 0% 420,579 °
211,943,747 100% 203,416,208 100%

The following table shows the receivables from borrowers, classified as to terms as at December 31:
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Classified as lo terms: 2023 2022
Short term (1 year or less) 4,206,625 1,518,349
Medium term (Over 1 year to 5 years) 41,853,630 72,660,162
Long term (Over 5 years) 165,883,492 129,237,698
211,943,747 203,416,208
As at December 31 information on the concentration of loans and receivables, as to industry follows:
2023 2022
Amount % Amount %o
Agnculture, Forestry and Fishing 4,826,900 2% 6,013,572 3%
Constiuction 3,842,258 2%
Wholesale and Retail Trle
Repuir of Motor Vehicles and
Moton y les 5591,508 3% 16,021,105 8%
Transportation, Storage & Comm 46,758,176 2%
Financial Intermediation 593,201 0%
Keal Estate Activaties 3,540,562 % 3,027,192 1%
Public Administration & Defense 421,886 0%
Education 347,238 0%
Health and Social Work 111,159 0%
Othwr Community, Social & Pet. 5439,133 3%
Private Housholds 983,308 0%
Other Service Activities 1,794,445 1%
Motor loans 138,677,324 65% 176,139,315 87%
For Household C ! 811,094 0% 420,579 0%
211,943,747 100% 203,416,208 100%

The BSP considers that loan concentration of credit exists when the total loan exposure to a particular industry or
economic sector exceeds 30.00% of total loan portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and
managed accordingly except those that are under 'Motor Loans'.

As per MORB section 344, the Bank discloses loan transactions with investees and with certain DOSRI, Existing
banking regulations limit the amount of individual loans to DOSRI, 70.0% of which must be secured, to the total of
their respective deposits and book value of their respective investments in the lending company within the Bank. In
the aggregate, loans to DOSRI generally should not exceed total equity or 15.0% of total loan portfolio, whichever is
lower. As at December 31 the Bank is in compliance with the regulatory requirements. As at December 31 DOSRI
accounts under the existing regulations are shown in the table below (as reported to BSP):

2023 2022
DOSRI loans Related Party Loans DOSRI loans Related Party Loans

Qutstanding loans - 3,366,820 - 1,311,256
Perventage o total loan portfolio 0% 1.59% 0% 0.69%
Perventage of unsecured lo total 0% 0% o

loan portiolio - 1.59% » 0.69%
'}::;:;::Iu:y of past due 1o tolal Jow 0% 0% 0% 0%

s of unsecured to DOSRI/RPL ’ 0% 100% 0% 100%
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o L

% of non-pertorming unsevured o

DOSRI/RPL 0% 0% 0% 0%
Perventage of non-performing o
total loan portfolin 0% 0% 0% 0%

The following table shows the receivables from borrowers, net of unamortized discount, classified as to status as at

December 31:
Classified as to status of loans for 2023
Current Past Due Non-Performing Total

1 Agrarian reform /Other agri. Cr.

a. Agrarian reform loans 42,512 42,512

1n. Other agricullural Credit louns 2,360,299 3,613,231 5,972,630
2. SME Ioany

. Small scale 11,530,060 1,390,141 69,462 12,989,663

b Mediam sl 4,232,757 4,232,757
3. Loans for housing purposes 2,361,832 232,210 216,994 2,811,036
4. Loans for auta loans 168,568,991 8,967,719 3,530,167 181,066,876
5, Loans tor other personal use 529,751 529,751
6. Loans for other purposes ;1._9_71:249 — 326,272 4,297,521

Total 193,554,939 10,590,070 7,798,738 211,943,747
Classified as to status of loans for 2022
Current Past Due Non-Performing Total

1. Agrarian reform /Other agri. Cr.

A, Agrarian reform loans 114,991 114,991

b. Other agricultural credit loans 2,164,803 3,733,778 5,898,581
2. SME loans

. Small scale 8971493 634,540 2,141,600 11,747,632

1. Medlum scale 4,273,473 4273473
3. Loans for housing purposes 2,494,045 533,148 3,027,192
4. Loans tor auto loans 162,449,185 7,263,770 6,426,360 176,139,315
5. Loans for other personal use 420,579 420,579
6. Loans {or other purposes 1,044,715 362,732 386,998 1,794,445

Total 181,818,292 8,261,042 13,336,874 203,416,208

Note 9 - Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets

2023 2022
HTM Investments 27,012,000 26,166,104
Unamortized interest and discounts (182,139) (193,172)
26,829,841 25,972,932

Classified as Financial Assets at Amortized Cost, these quoted T-bills and bonds have fixed annual interest rates
ranging from 3.150% to 10.00%. The terms of these investments range from 1 lo 7 years. These refer 10 debt securities,
quoted in an active market with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that a bank has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Note 10 - Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

2023
Cost Beg. Balance Additions Disposal Ending Balance

220N
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Land 2,449,774 2449774
Bank premises-buiilding 20,400,626 20,400,626
IT Equipment 4,419,727 3,093 4,422,820
Furniture and Fixtures 3,041,623 23,727 3,065,350
Transportation equipment 3,199,049 511,464 3710513
Leasehold improvement 463,192 463,192
Total 33,973,991 539,284 - 34,512,276
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortizations e
Bank premises-huiilding 14,445,182 715,745 15,160,927
IT Equipment 3,986,370 248,732 60,525 4,174,578
Turniture and Fixtures 2,645,220 242,171 104,524 2,782,867
Transportation equipment 3,182,047 45,803 3,227,849
Leasehold improvement 162,117 46,319 208,436
Total 24,420,936 1,298,770 165,049 25,554,657
2022
Cost Beg. Balance Additions Disposal Ending Balance
Land 2,449,774 2,449,774
Bank premises-buiilding 20,400,626 20,400,626
IT Equipment 4,222935 19,792 4,419,727
Furniture and Fixtures 3,022,145 19477 3,041,623
Transportation equipment 3,199,049 3,199,049
Leasehold improvement 463,192 463,192
Total 33,757,022 216,269 - 33,073,991
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortizations
Bank premises-buiilding 13,596,722 848,460 14,445,182
IT Equipment 3,689,958 313,114 16,702 3,986,370
Furniture and Fixtures 2,665,163 216,832 236,775 2,645,220
Transportation equipment 3,182,047 3,182,047
Leasehold improvement 115,798 46,319 162,117
Total 23,249,657 1424725 253,476 24,420,936
Carrying Values 2023 2022
Land 2,449,774 2449774
Bank premises-buiilding 5,239,699 5955444
IT Equipment 248,243 433,357
Furniture and Fixtures 282,483 396,403
Transportation equipment 482,664 17,002
Leasehold improvement 254,756 301,075
“Total 8,057,618 9,553,055
Schedule of Depreciation 2023 2022
Bank premises-buiilding 715,745 848,460
IT Equipment 248,732 313114
Furniture and Fixtures 242,171 216,832
Transportation equipment 45,803 -
Leasehold improvement 46,319 46,319
Total Depreciation 1,298,770 1,424,725
230131
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Note 11 - Investment Properties

S
Real and other properties acquired 15,057,539 13,697,965
Accumulated depreciation (3,688,913) (2,980,647)
Allowance for losses (288,915) (288,915)

11,079,711 10,428,408

Note 12 - Other Assets

2023 2022

Petty cash fund 13,000 13,000
Accounts receivable 9,281,036 8,791,160
Stationeries and supplies 121,332 101,451
Prepaid expenses 69,023 113,199
Deficiency judgment receivable 166,070 166,070
Other investments - telecom/others 70,602 1,688,149
Net defined benefit asset 2,194,998 1,496,060
Miscellaneous assets 454,456 575,883
Deposits with Closed Banks 16,101,323 16,101,323
Impairment allowance (24,613,735) (24,613,735)

3,858,105 4,432,561

Note 13 - Deposit Liabilities
2023 2022
Savings deposits - active 330,257,122 342,521,876
Savings deposits - dormant -
Total Deposit Liabilities 330,257,122 / 342,521,876
2023
No. of Accounts No. of Accounts Amount

Savings deposits - active 5326 5281 342,521,876
Savings deposits - dormant
“Total 5,326 5,281 342,521,876

Interest rates for regular deposits is at 0.25% per annum. Time deposits, however, is at .5% to .75% per annum

depending on the amount and duration of the holding period.

Note 14 - Uncamed Income

2023 202
Other deferred credits 19313 9,732
Deferred gross profit in asset sold 3,122,721 4,281,928
Total Uneamned Income 3,142,034 4,291,661

Note 15 - Other Liabilities

2023 2022

Accrued interest payable 352,416 130,988
24 of 31
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' .I

Contributions payable 237,834 220,178
Accrued expenses 886,896 945,688
Net defined benefit liability -

Other liabilities 508,946 434,186
Accounts payable - ROPA - 679,731
Withholding taxes payable 131,084 82311
Total Other Liabilities 2,117,176 2,493,082

Note 16 = Income Tax Payable / (Income Tax Credit)

Income Tax Payable is computed as follows:

Note 2023 2022
Minimum Ci te [ncome Tax 2 195,462 271,044
_Eglﬁnr Income ;ax 22 435,453 725,765

Regular Income tax / MCIT (whichever is higher) 435,453 725,765
Add: Previous year's accountability
Less: Payments

Prior year's excess credit

Quarterly tax payments

Creditable tax withheld (see attached schedule) (407,965) (679,731)
Income lax payable/(Income tax credit) 27,488 36,035

Note 17 - Share Capital / Retained Eamings

2023 = 202
Common Preferred Common Preferred

Authorized Capital Stock

Amount 45,000,000 5,000,000 45,000,000 5,000,000

No of shares 450,000 50,000 450,000 50,000

Par value per share 100 100 100 100
Issued and Qutstanding

Amount 45,000,000 5,000,000 45,000,000 5,000,000

No of shares 450,000 50,000 450,000 50,000

Preferred shares has the following features: (a) Both Class A and B with a total of 50,000 shares have a fixed 10.0%
cumulative dividends and are non-voting, (b) 25,000 Class A preferred shares are convertible after five (5) years and
its optional, and (c) 25,000 Class B preferred shares are non-convertible.

The bank, in its BOD meeting dated November 8, 2022 announced the intention to apply for a downgrade of its
Rosario branch into a Branch Lite unit in order to comply with the new capitalization requirement for rural banks
under Circular No. 1151. The downgrade of its branch is still under pending approval by BSP.

Dividend Declaration
On January 26, 2022, the board of directors has approved the declaration of 7% cash dividends to all common shares
and 10% cash dividend to all preferred shares with a total amount of P 3,650,000 based on the list of stockholders as

of December 31, 2020.

On January 28, 2023, the board of directors has approved the declaration of 7% cash dividends to all common shares
and 10% cash dividend to all preferred shares with a total amount of P 3,650,000 based on the list of stockholders as

of December 31, 2022
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Note 18 - Interest Income

2023, 2022
Loans and receivables 24,324,393 27,504,145
Held-to-maturity investments 1,064,951 502,972
Deposits with banks 2,725,533 995,635
Total Interest Income 28,114,877 29,002,752

This account refers to interest earned and/ or actually collected from the borrowers. The banks follows the accrual
method of accounting in recognizing interest income on customer accounts. Accordingly, unearned discount is

amortized over the lerm of the loan.

The interest rates applied to loans and receivables varies depending on type of loans or services provided. It ranges
from B% to 31% for terms 12 months to 60 Moiths respectively for financing of brand new cars, Rates of financing
second hand cars, REM loans and Hold-out deposits charge different rates,

Note 19 - Interest Expense

M —— m ——————
Interest expense 1,910,826 1,436,506
1,910,826 1,430,506

This account refers to payments and or monthly accruals of interest on deposits. The computation of savings deposit
is on quarterly basis while the time/special savings deposit are on monthly accruals.

Note 20 - Non - Interest income

Note 2023 2022
Service charges and commissions 119,371 147,838
Gain from sale of non-financial asset (ROPA) 4,023,446 5,955,911
Miscellanoeus income 2 2,149,271 1,566,938
Total Non-Interest Income 5,202,087 7 7.670,688
Note 21 - Non - Interest expenses
2023 2022

Employees' Compensation & Other Benefits

Salaries and Wages 9,847,662 9,464,976

Fringe Benefits 3,075,657 3,186,556

SSS, Philhealth, and other contributions 1,290,411 1162775

Medical, Dental and Hospitalization 415,201 256,446

Contribution to Retirement/Provident Fund 1622314 1,381,469
Director's Fees 290,800 300,900
Taxes and Licenses 2,956,474 2,643,864
Other Administrative Expenses

Advertising and publicity 67,425 48,044

Documentary stamps used 176 24,712

Donations and charity 6,500 33,508

Fines and penalties 40,500 -

260131
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Fuels and lubricants 246,181 493,259
Information and technology 39,299 89,171
Insurance PDIC 674,486 711,032
Insurance expenses 216,096 228,031
Litigation 357,24 265,194
Management & other professional fees 380,605 343,000
Membership fees and dues 76,106 97,324
Other expenses 556,096 3042473
Periodicals and magazines 6414 8467
Postage, telephone , cable and telegrams 676817 685,551
Power, light and water 664,270 766,278
Rent 253,200 252,200
Reparis and maintenance 747,135 597,940
Representation and entertainment 196,005 398,671
Security, clerical, messenger & janitorial 1,779,805 2,005,894
Stationery and supplies used 184,142 241,843
Supervision 63,517 56,763
Travelling expenses 285413 431,205
Depreciation/ Amortization 2,033,956 2,109,062

Losses/Recoveries of Financial Assets (826,803) -
Total Non-Interest Expenses 28,225,753 31,329,806

The bank is a lessee under cancellable operating lease. The lease have a one-year term with renewal options. The
future minimum rentals payable under these cancellable operating lease as of December 31 are as follows:

08 30
Within one year 253,200 253,200
After one year but not more than five years 253,200 253,200

More than five years

Other expenses include notarial expenses, local fares, seminars and trainings, foreign currency exchange losses (if
any). PR-related expenses, some meals during official meetings, bookbinding costs, and other small value expenses
that are non-recurrings.

Note 22 - Income Tax Expense

President Rodrigo Duterle has signed into law the RA 11534 or the Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for
Enterprises (CREATE) Act to attract more investments and maintain fiscal prudence and stability.

RA 11534 cuts corporate income tax rate to 25 percent from the current 30 percent. This is retroactive from July 1,
2020. Corporations with net taxable income not exceeding PHP5 million and with total assets not exceeding PHP100
million, excluding land on which the particular business entity’s office, plan, and equipment are situated during the
taxable year for which the tax is imposed, shall be taxed at 20 percent.

RA 11534 cuts minimum corporate income tax rate to 1 percent from the current 2 percent. This is retroactive from
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023. This means that starting 1 July 2023, the MCIT for corporations (except non-profit
proprietary educational institutions and hospitals, and non-resident foreign corporations) will now revert to its
original 2% rate based on the gross income of such corporations. Furthermore, non-deductible interest expense is 33%
of interest income subjected to final tax.
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Revenue Regulation No. 25-2020 of the Burcau of Internal Revenue prescribes that the operating loss of the business
for taxable years 2020 and 2021, if applicable, shall be carried over as a deduction from gross income for the next five

(5) consecutive taxable years following the year of such loss.

Minimum Corporate Income Tax is compuled as follows: . —
2023 2022
GROSS INCOME 34,406,964 36,673,440
Less: Non-taxable income & income subjected to final tax 3790484 1,498,607
Gross taxable income 30,616,460 35,174,833
COST OF SERVICE
Interest expense, net of tax arbitrage 659,966 941,966
Employees' compensation and other benefits 16,251,245 15452222
Insurance - PDIC 674,486 711,052
COST OF SERVICE 17,585,698 17,105,219
GROSS INCOME FOR MCIT PURPOSES 13,030,783 18,069,614
MCIT, January 1 to December 31
MCIT, January 1 to June 30 (1%) 65,154 90,348
MCIT, July 1 to December 31 (2%) 130,308 180,696
TOTAL MCIT 195,362 271,044
Regular Income Tax is computed as follows:
2023 2022
Profit (loss) per books 4,270,385 3,907,128
Non-deductible expense (including tax arbitrage) 1,250,860 494,540
Provision for credit losses on loans and receivables 11,053 -
Total 5532,298 4,401,669
Less: Non-taxable income & income subjected to final tax (3,790,484) (1,498,607)
Net taxable income (loss) 1,741,814 2,903,061
RCIT, January 1 to December 31 435,453 725,765
RCIT, January 1 to June 30 (30%)
RCIT, July 1 to December 31 (25%)
Regular Income Tax / Income Tax Expense 435,453 725,765
Note 23 - Earnings Per Share / Book Value Per Share 11,288,969
The earnings per share is computed as follows:
2023 2022
Profit for the period 3,834,931 3,181,363
Less: Preference dividends for the current year (383,493) (318,136)
Net Income to common share 3451438 2,863,227
Weighted average number of shares:
Outstanding and issued shares 450,000 450,000
Less treasury shares
450,000 450,000
Earnings Per Share 8 3
The book value per share is computed as follows:
2023 2022
Total equity 74,690,719 72,385,631
280f 31
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Less: Preferred equity

50,000 Shares at 100 per share (5,000,000 5,000,000)
Common equity with 450,000 shares 69,690,719 67,385,631
Book Value Per Share 155 150

Note 24 - Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediarics, the other party or exercises significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions, The Bank’s related parties include:

1. Key management personnel, close family members of key management personnel and entities whicl are controlied,
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power is held by key management personnel or their close
tamily members,

2. post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of the Bank’s employees, and

3. other related parties within the Bank.

Rentmerations of Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly. The Bank considers the members of the senior
management to constitule key management personnel for purposes of PAS 24, The compensation of key management
personnel included under ‘Compensation and benefits’ in the statements of income are as follows:

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits 16,251,245 15452,222
Post-employment benefits 1,622,314 1,381,469
17,873,559 16,833,690

BSP-Approved Financial Assistance Program

The Bank has loans extended to officers and employees not classified as DOSRI transactions but a financial assistance
program which has been approved by BSP, As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, outstanding balances amounted to
P3,366,820 and P1,311,256 respectively. These transactions are non-secured and interest bearing and loan repayment
Is made ort a monthly basis througl salary deduction over the agreed termt.

Deposit Laibilities
The Bank, in the ordinary course of business, has deposit transactions with certain DOSRI and with outstanding
deposit balance as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Note 25 - Events After the Reporting Period

No any significant events took place after the Balance Sheet date that could affect the presentation of the financial
statements.

Note 26 - Disclosures on Capital Adequacy

For disclosure on computed capital adequacy, refer to the submitted of Computation of the Risk-based Capital
Adequacy Ratio Covering Credit Risks as of December 31, 2023 as submitted by the Bank.
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The deployment of assets in loans is good at 51%, The bank has minimized its total assels deployed as cash and cash
cquivalents at just 1% and has liquid deposits with BSP and other banks at high 36%. On the liability side, the bank
has relied primarily on savings. Savings mobilized from the clients constitute 98% of total liabilities

The risk weighted capital adequacy ratio of the bank, as reported, has moved to 17.75 as at December 31, 2023 from
16.91 as at December 31, 2022

The following table presents the components in the computation of the Risk-based Capital Adequacy Ratio, before

audit adjustments:
2023 2022

Net Tier 1 Capital 69,164,353 67,832,126
Net Tier 2 Capital 6,383,283 6,383,283
Tolal Qualifying Capital 75,547,636 74,215,409
Total Risk-Weighted Assels 425,528,307 438,906,708 _
Risk-based Captial Adequacy Ratio 17.75% 1691%
Tier 1 ratio 16.25% 15.45%
Common Tier 1 Ratio (after audit adjustments) 16.38% 15.35%
Risk-based Captial Adequacy Ratio (after audit adjustments) 17.88% 1681%
Other pertinent indicators in relation to CAR as follows:
Minimum Liquidity Ratio 44.94% 70.24%
Leverage ratio 16.80% 16.00%
Total Exposure Measure (Total assets, gross of GLLP)

Total Assets 410,234,540 422,445,853

GLLP 1,383,283 1,383,283

411,617,823 423,829,136

Note 27 - Supplementary Information Required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

The components of “Taxes and licenses’ recognized in the statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2023,

follow:
207 2023 2022
Gross receipt tax (GRT) 1,882,861 1,961,977
Business permits and licenses 299,117 296,752
Real property tax 197,718 161,221
Others 576,777 223,915
2,956,474 2,643,864
Note 28 - Quantitative Indicators of Financial Performance
- 2023 2022
L AT YEAR END
Current assets 386,339,105 397,897,803
Current liabilities 330,257,122 342,521,876
Current ratio 117 116
Past due 18,388,808 21,597,916
Total loan portfolio 211,943,747 203,416,208
Past due ratio 8.68% 10.62%
300f31
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Total Habilities 335,543,820 349,352,654
Total equity 74,690,719 72,959,170
Debt-to-equity ratio 449 479
II. FOR THE YEAR

Gross income 34,406,964 36,673 440
Total expenses 30,136,579 32,766,312
Net profit (before income tax) 4,270,385 / 3,907,128
Net profit margin rate (before income tax) 1241% 10.65%
Expenses over income rate 87.59% 89.35%
Net profit (after tax) 3,834,931 3,181,363
Average assets 416,273,181 420,527,693
Average share capital 50,000,000 50,000,000
Average equity 73,824,945 73,162,223
Return on average assets 0.92% 0.76%
Return on average share capital 7.67% 636%
Return on average equity 519% 4.35%
Net interest income 26,204,051 27,566,246
Average interest earning assets 389,175,241 386,321,578
Net interest spread 22,413,567 26,067,639
Ner interest margin 6.73% 7.14%

Note 29 - Implications of COVID -19 on our Business

Since the start of the pandemic, the spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many local economies and around the
globe. In accross the country, businesses are being forced to cease or limit operations for long or indefinite periods of
time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and
closures of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses, resulting in an economic
slowdown. Stock markets have also experienced great volatility and a significant weakening. Government have
responded with monetary and fiscal interventions to stabilize economic conditions. As the bank continue to assess
the impacts of COVID-19 on its financial performance, management have considered the following: (1) Evaluate
whether the bank can determine income and expenses that relate to COVID-19 on a non-arbitrary basis; (2) Consider
how the presentation of determinable COVID-19 impacts would fit into the current structure of the income statement;
and (3) Delermine the nature and extent of information to be given inside and outside the financial statements to
supplement the information about the bank’s financial performance in the income statement.

The bank has determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events and currently these hypothetical
scenarios no longer a factor in the Bank's operation,
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QUANTITATIVE INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

I. AT YEAREND

Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Current Ratio

Past Due
Total Loan Portfolio
Past Due Ratio

Total Liabilities
Total Equity
Debt-to-equity Ratio

1l. FORTHE YEAR

Gross Income

Total Expenses

Net Profit (before income tax)

Net Profit Margin Rate (before income tax)
Expenses over Income Rate

Net Profit (after tax)

Average Assets

Average Share Capital

Average Equity

Return on Average Assets
Return on Average Share Capital
Return on Average Equity

Net Interest Income
Average Interest Earning Assets
Net Interest Spread
Net Interest Margin

2023

386,339,105
330,257,122
1.17

18,388,808
211,943,747
8.68%

335,543,820
74,690,719
4.49

34,406,964
30,136,579
4,270,385
12.41%
87.59%

3,834,931
416,273,181
50,000,000
73,824,945
0.92%
7.67%
5.19%

26,204,051
389,175,241
22,413,567
6.73%

2022

397,897,803
342,521,876
1.16

21,597,916
203,416,208
10.62%

349,352,654
72,959,170
4.79

36,673,440

32,766,312

3,907,128
10.65%
89.35%

3,181,363
420,527,693
50,000,000
73,162,223
0.76%
6.36%
4.35%

27,566,246
386,321,578

26,067,639
7.14%
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H. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY

PANGASINAN BANK (A Rural Bank), INC.
Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Ratio
As of December 31, 2023

Total Qualifying Capital  (Schedule A below) 75.548
Risk-Weighted On-Balance Sheet Assets 384.151
Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 41.377
Net Risk Weighted Assets 425.528
Adjusted CAR covering credit and operational risk 17.75

Schedule A: Computation of Capital

Tier 1 (Core) Capital

Paid up Common Stock 45.000
Surplus, Reserves, and Undivided Profits

Retained Earnings 19.379
Undivided Profits 3.827
Other Comprehensive Income 0.958
Total Tier 1 Capital 69.164

Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital
Upper Tier 2 Capital

Paid-up perpetual and cumulative preferred stock 5.000

General Loan Loss Provision 1.383
(Limited to 1.00% of gross risk-weighted assets)

Total Tier 2 Capital (limited to 100% of Tier 1 capital 6.383

TOTAL QUALIFYING CAPITAL 75.548
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PANGASINAN BANK (A RB), INC.

Name of Bank

COMPUTATION OF THE RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO COVERING COMBINED
CREDIT MARKET AND OPERATIONAL RISKS

SIMPLIFIED SOLO BASIS

As of DECEMBER 31, 2023

CONTROL PROOFLIST

PART |. CALCULATION OF RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (in absolute amounts

Calculation of Qualifying Capital Ly
A1 Tet 1 Capital (Sum of A.2 and A 3) 3950000000007 10000 60,164,353 21
A2 Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 395000000000711000 68.176,613.22
A3 Additional Tier 1 Capital 395000000000712000!
Ad Ter 2 Capital 395000000000720000 6,383,283 18
AS Total Qualifying Capital [Sum of A.1 and A.4] 395000000000700000! 75 547,636,389
B. Calculation of Risk-Weighted Assets t A
B1 Total Credit Risk-Weighted Assets [B. 1(d) minus B.1(h) | 195331000000000000] 384,151,270.18
(3) Risk-Weighted On-Balance Sheet Assets 100000000000811000 384,151.270.18] . T
(b) Risk-Weighted Off-Balance Sheet Assets 400000000000812000
(0) Counterparty Rsk-Weighted Assats 110100000000813000 AT
(d) Total Credit Risk Waighted Assets [Sum of B 1(a), B, 1(b) and | 100000000000810000

8.1(c)}
(e) Deductions from Total Credit Rek-Weighted Assets FEE
1) General Loan Loss Provision (in excess of the amount permitted | 175150500000000000

to be included in Tier 2 captal)

|[Part i1, ltam G {1)(b) minus Part Il, ltem 8.1 (7) ]
@ |Unbooked aliowance for credt bsses and cther capital 365052000000711000

adjustments affecting asset accounts based on the letest report

of examination as approved by the Monetary Board
(h) | Total Deductions [Sum of B.1(1) and B.1(g)] 165000000000810000 (G
B2 | Total Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 195000000000830000]. 41,377.036.76
B3 | Total Market Risk-Weighted Assets 1mmoouoonmt A r s
B4 [Total Risk-Welghied Assets [Sum of B.1, 8. 2and 8.3] 1000002000008000C0 | 425,526,306
C. Minimum Capital Ratios : (RN
[#X] |R'SKBASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO [A.5 divided by B4[ 990000000000000000| 17.78)

mutiply by 100]
c2 Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio [A 2 dvided by B.4 multiply by 100]| 990000000000000001 18.02)
c3 (Capital Corservation Buffer [C 2 minus 6) 990000000000000002 | 15.08|
c4 ITier 1 Capital Ratio [A.1 divded by B.4 mukiply by 100] 290000000000000003 m

I hereby certify that all matters set forth in this Computation of the Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Ratio Covering Combined Credit Market and
Operational Risks are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

ANNE Q. DE

rsien

Authorized Signatory

Page 250 of 250



